

Annual Report 1999 - 2000

Family Services and Housing





MINISTER OF FAMILY SERVICES AND HOUSING

Room 357 Legistative Bailiding Winnipeg, Mantiriha, CANADA RAG 098

September 2000

His Honour Peter Liba Lieuten int-Governor Province of Manitob

May It Please Your Honour:

I have the pleasure of presenting herewith the Annual Report of the Department of Family Services and Housing of the Province of Manitoba for the year 1999/2000,

Respectfully submitted,

Tim Sale



Manitoba

Deputy Minister of Family Services and Housing



Winnipeg, Minitobe, CANADA R3C 0V8

Septembor 2000

Tim Sele Minister of Family Services and Housing 357 Legislative Building

Sirt

I have the honour of presenting to you the Annual Report of the Department of Family Services and Housing for the fillical year ending March 31, 2000.

In 1999/2000, the programs and services of the former departments of Housing and Family Services were combined into one organization. A new direction in income essistance programming was implemented through *Building independence*, an initiative offering support to Employment and income Assistance participants looking for work. Improved initiatives and services for persons with disabilitie ensure that these citizens have the support they need to live safely and participate fully in community life. The devolution of child and family services mandates to Mells and First Nations communities will result in more Aboriginal communities developing and delivering child welf re services that reflect their unique status, and cultural and linguistic heritage.

Family Services and Housing is committed to supporting Manitoba children, families and individuals to live and participate in the community to the fullest of their potential. The department will continue to work in partnership with other governments, departments, and community organizations to ensure the most effective delivery of programs and services to Manitoba cilizens,

Respectively submilled,

22 mills

Tannis Mindell



Table of Contents

Title	Page
Minister's Letter of Transmittal	3
Deputy Minister's Letter of Transmittal	5
Table of Contents	7
Vision, Mission and Goals	10
Overview	11
Minister and Executive Support	15
Human Resource Services	16
Policy and Planning	17
Administration and Finance	17
Financial and Administrative Services Information Systems	17 20
Employment and Income Assistance	22
Program Services Income Assistance Programs Employment and Income Assistance Health Services Municipal Assistance Income Assistance for Persons with a Disability Building Ind pendence Income Supplement Programs 55 PLUS - A Munitoba Income Supplement Child Related Income Support Program (CRISP)	23 23 24 30 31 33 35 36 36 39

42 43 45 51 56 56 56 56 60 63 63
43 45 51 56 56 56 56 60 63
48 51 56 56 56 56 60 63
48 51 56 56 56 56 60 63
55 56 56 58 60 63
56 56 58 60 63
56 58 60 63
56 60 63
60 63
63
63
66
66
80
84
89
-91
97
100
100
100
100
101
102
103
103
104
104
105
106
107
108
108
110
110
113
113
114
115
116
117

Financial Information	119
Revenue Summary Table	119
Five-Year Expenditure and Staffing Summary Table	121
Reconciliation Statement	122
Expenditure Summary Table	123
Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation	131
Financial Statements	131
Appendix A	165
Direct-Managed Public Housing Portfolio	165
Appendix B	172
Rent Supplement Units	172
Appendix C	174
Provincially Administered Housing Portfolio	174

Vision, Mission and Goals

Vision

The vision of the Department of Family Services and Housing is to:

 Support Manitoba children, families and individuals to live and participate in the community to the fullest of their potential.

Mission

The mission of the Department of Family Services and Housing is to:

- provide financial support to Manitoba citizens in need while assisting them to achieve greater selfsufficiency and independence.
- support persons with disabilities to achieve full participation in society;
- keep children safe and protected and assist people facing family violence;
- promote the healthy development and well-being of children and families, and
- assist Manitobana to have access to adequate and affordable housing.

Goals

Based on its vision and mission, the Department of Family Services and Housing has established the following goals:

- To provide financial support for citizens in need which enables them to live with dignity and security;
- To support idults living with a mental disability to safely live and participate in the community,
- To assist persons with disabilities to develop the skills necessary to find and keep work;
- To provide quality early childhood interventions which foster the development of healthy youth and adults;
- To support quality child day care which is accessible and affordable;
- To protect children from abuse and neglect;
- To provide supportive and preventative services for families;
- To provide housing assistance which results in individuals and femilies in need having a safe and secure place to live; and
- To recognize the contribution that staff and the wider community make in assisting the department reach its goals.

Overview

The Departments of Family Services and Housing were amalgamated in 1999. This new combined department provides a comprehensive range of social services, income assistance and housing programs for Manitobans who are vulnerable, in financial need or require affordable housing.

The department is organized into five divisions: Administration and Finance, Employment and InCome As istance, Community Living, Child and Family Services, and Housing. The executive function in the department includes support for the offices of the Minister and Deputy Minister.

The depirtment delivers services throughout the province through several networks of regional offices. The two major regional service systems for Family Services programs include the Employment and income Assistance District Offices, which deliver the Employment and Income Assistance program, and the Family Services Regional Offices, which provide a range of social services. Maps of these regional systems are provided following this Overview. Provincial Housing policy, program delivery and the management of provincial housing assets are carried out through three organizational entities, including the Housing Division, the Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corpor tion, and the Manitoba Housing Authority. The Housing Division services are delivered centrally from Winnipeg. The property management function for the provincially owned housing portfolio is provided for by the Manitoba Housing Authority in district offices located in Winnipeg and rural Manitoba.

The statutory responsibilities of the Minister of Family Services and Housing are as follows:

The Adoption Act; The Child and Family Services Act; The Community Child Day Care Standards Act; The Employment and Income Assistance Act; The Housing and Renewal Corporation Act; The Intercountry Adoption (Hague Convention) Act; The Intercountry Adoption (Hague Convention) Act; The Parents Maintenance Act (Section 10); The Social Services Administration Act; The Vulnerable Persons Living with a Mental Disability Act; and The Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act.

The Employment and Income Assistance Act, The Social Services Administration Act, and The Housing and Renewal Corporation Act require the Minister to report annually to the Legislature. These reporting requirements for 1999/2000 are met by this Annual Report.







Minister and Executive Support

Minister

 Provides overall policy direction to the department pertaining to program and financial matters, as they relate to the provision and delivery of services by the department.

Executive Support

- Provides indvice to the Minister and leadership to the department on program matters, policy development, and repolution of policy issues.
- Interprets and implements government policy through the delivery of departmental programs.
- Ensures effective and efficient management of departmental programs.
- Safeguards the public interest through enforcement of legislation and regulations.
- Ensures effective development and management of the department's human resources.

09-1A Minister 09-18 Executive Support

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00* \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No,
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	573.4	11.00	573.2	0.2	
Total Other Expenditures	78.7		80.7	(2.0)	

The 1999/2000 Estimate reflects amounts as displayed in the Printed Miun Estimates on behalf of the departments of Family Services and Housing, as well as an allocation from the En bling Appropriations respecting workforce adjustment costs.

Human Resource Services

The major objective of the Human Resource Services Branch is to:

provide the department with a comprehensive range of human resource services that includes
assisting in the development and maintenance of exemplary employment standards and practices,
and to provide services to assist the department in managing and maximizing the availability and
quality of human services.

Splicific ervices provided for the department include recruitment, election and payroll activities, job analysis, job classification and evaluation, consultation in arrist relating to employee relations and orginization design, grivvance handling, staff development and training, and human resource policy divelopment and development and development and training and human resource policy divelopment and delivering a ringe of training and development activities to meet needs identified by managers. Payroll ervices to employee are managed through the System Application Product (SAP) system. The branch ensures the integrity of employee integrity and that employees are compensated in a timely fashion.

The branch continues to work to promote and integrate the principles and practices of Employment Equity considerations in staffing, retention, and employment development activities, in partnership with management.

The branch has provided extensive support to the One-Tier Project (the transition of City of Winnipeg Social S reviews staff to the Province). This support included the implementation of an Employee Transition Agreement to handle the orderly move of staff from the City of Winnipeg to the Province of Manitoba, effective January 1, 2000. The branch has been actively involved with the closure of the Pelican Lake Centre. While the employees are not civil servents. Human Resource: Services has taken an active role in en uring a fair and reason ble closure process. The Branch has also provided significant support to the corporate term with implementing SAP.

The Human Resource Services Branches of Health, Family Services and Housing were consolidated into one unit, providing a full range of human resource services to the entire sector.

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actuat 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Varlance Over (Under)	Expl No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	839.1	18.00	831.8	7.3	
Total Other Expenditures	86.5		8.88	(2 3)	

09-1D Human Resource Services

Policy and Planning

Policy ind Plinning provides the Minister, Deputy Ministir, sinior management, divisions and programs with information and assist nee contributing to effective policy development and program planning. The brinch undertakes strategic planning, policy development and coordination, conducts program analysis and is is is the inflictiv nees of depictmental programs, provides support to exicutive and divisional minagement; provides support for kigi lative dibite and Estimates review, and prepares policy papers. Staff more in the dipictment in intergovernmental, interdepartmental, and inter-octoral discussion related to a broad range of social issues.

In 1999/2000, branch staff were involved in a number of activities, such as developing new policies for Manitoba's income assistance system, undertaking caseload trind and dimographic analysis. coordiniting ligitative proposals, facilitating strategic planning, developing program outcomilling, representing the department on aboriginal issues; undertaking program evaluations, representing the Province on the federal/provincial/territorial National Child Brindit, Brindits and Sirvice for Persons with Disabilities and the Employment Assistance for Persons with a Disability Working Groups, supporting the 2000/01 budget progress; pirticipating in community con ultitions with persons with disabilities, assisting with ministerial eorrespondence; assisting with the preparation of the dipartment's Annual Riport and daveloping Internet and Internet attes for Family Services and Housing.

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	741.7	15.50	816.1	(74.4)	
Total Other Expenditures	246.9		177,7	69.2	

09-1E Policy and Planning

Administration and Finance

The Administration and Finance Division is comprised of two branches: Financial and Administrative Services and Information Systems. These branches provide centralized financial, administrative and information systems support services to the department.

The division is also responsible for the Integrated Services Delivery Project and the Human Services component of the Better Systems initiative.

Financial and Administrative Services

The Financial and Administrative Services Branch is responsible for maintaining an active comptrollership function, by ensuring that financial and administrative policies, services and reporting systems are diveloped and administered to effectively meet management and internal requirements. Specific responsibilities of the branch follow.

- Directing the department's annual estimates exercise; evaluating and analyzing program requirements, and linking planning with budgeting, monitoring, and reporting.
- Coordinating the department's financial forecasting and reporting exarcises; monitoring departmental financial performance; and assisting managers with the development and identification of program performance indicatoril.
- Coordinating the development of departmental financial management policies and providing functional direction and advice regarding financial planning, controlling, and reporting.
- Providing financial accounting services, including processing of all departmental payments of accounts and riverius, m initialing departmental receivables, reconciling expenditure data from the SAP accounting system, providing expanditure reports and expenditure information for cost-charing purposes, and providing functional direction on financial and administrative policies and procedures.
- Providing active comptrollership activities by ensuring that departmental receipts and disbursements are processed in accordance with governing legislation and established accounting policies and procedures.
- Coordinating departmental responses to access to information under The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act.
- Providing administrative services, such as management of the department's which fleet coordination of parking, purchasing, records management, insurance and risk management. coordination of office space requirements; and coordination of Workplace Health and Safety activities.
- Administering the Health Services program, which provides drug, dental, and optical supplies and services to Employment and income Assistance perticipants and children in care. Areas of responsibility include: providing stituistical and financial data, developing annual budget and cash flow information; negotiating various agreements with professional organizations supplying health services and goods; and providing pharmaceutical liaison services, including auditing of pharmacy drug claims for product eligibility, pricing, prescription drug abuse, and inappropriate prescribing and dispensing practices.
- Administering the Employment and Income Aselstance Lkin Rigistry, including registration of lien renewals, lien diricharges, and collection of related revenue.
- Coordinating the department's internal audit activities, including maintenance of the departmental audit follow-up action plan, ensuring that issues identified in the audit report are resolved.
- Providing administrative support to the Vulnerable Persons' Hearing Panel. Activities include the coordination, attendance, and scheduling of hearings.
- Coordinating French Language Services both within the department and including a number of external agencies which deliver services on behalf of the department. This activity includes working with the Advisory Committee on French Language Social Services.
- Coordinating an integrated aervice delivery project to improve the effectiveness of departmental service delivery systems.

In 1999/2000, the branch recorded a number of achievements:

- provision of ongoing management reporting within the department by which the department's fiscal status, as well as emerging financial and program management issues, are brought to the attention of executive management and central government;
- ongoing identification and monitoring of emerging financial and program management issues and monitoring to ensure that control and accountability systems are in place;
- ongoing coordination of the department's annual Estimates exercise, including the production of the department's Estimates Supplement and the provision of Estimates briefing material;
- assistance with preparation of the department's Annual Report,
- assistance with the implementation of the government's SAP accounting system throughout the department. This involved the transition of accounting staff over to the new system, the creation of interim and ongoing operating procedures, and the provision of support to field staff. The branch also continued as an active member on the government's implementation Team;
- provision of timely and accurate responses to access to information requests, consistent with
 requirements of The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act;
- conducting departmental reviews of financial and administrative systems and implementation of comptrollership activities;
- continued improvement and enhancement of the Employment and Income Assistance Health Services drug program benefits and operating procedures; and
- assumed the responsibility for coordinating and reporting of administrative and financial activities for the Housing division.

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	1,673.0	39.00	1,756.8	(83.8)	
Total Other Expenditures	481.0		493,4	(12.4)	

09-1F Financial and Administrative Services

Information Systems

The Information Systems Branch is responsible for providing tachnical expertise in developing and maintaining computer systems, which apport departmental programs. These systems may be operational or administrative in nature. The branch's support includes strategic and tactical information technology planning, information systems analysis, design, implementation, and ongoing support to the users of existing systems. The branch currently provides tachnical and operational support through outsourcing greements with IBM Canada tacinated EDS Systemhouse Ltd in eooperation with the Desktop Services Branch of Government Services.

Existing autom tild systems support the Employment and Income Assistance program, the Child Related Income Support Program, 55 PLUS - A Manitobe Income Supplement, the Child Day Care Program, Residential Care Licensing, Office of the Vulner ble Persons' Commissionar, Reh bilitation and Community Living, Child and Family Services, and Housing program.

During the year, the branch has continued to maintain the operational integrity of its existing systems and has delivered critical development for specific information systems. Major accomplishments include:

- Continued Implementation of the Child and Family Services Information System (CFSIS) in private agencies and regional government offices. Case and facility information is now routinely entered and accessed by caseworkers, supervisors, and management.
- Replacement of obsolate deaktop hardware through the department's transition into the Desktop initiative's Managed Environment.
- Migration of the CFSIS application from QS/2 to Windows NT to support the implimentation of the Deaktop Initiative's Managed Environment.
- Continuation of Phase 2 of the Systems Day topm int Life Cycle for the marged municipal and provincial Employment and income Assistance (One-Tier) program in the City of Winnipeg.
- Continuation of the Partners in Progress agreement with IBM Canada Ltd., which outsources
 the technical and operational support for the dip rtm int's City of Winnipeg Employmint ind
 income Assistance locitions disktop infrastructure and Child and Firmily Sirvices' database
 servers. This initiative allows the information Systems Branch to provide consulting er/vices to
 the systems users and to focul on the dipartm int's strategic information technology priorities.
- Ongoing support, maint in incluent enhancements to the Social Allowinges Management Information Network (SAMIN), the CFSIS, the Child Day Care System plus 35 othir builtings applications, including Housing applications.
- Successful transition of the department's information systems into the year 2000.
- Continued representation in the Better Systems Initiative to communicate departments I requirements and to help ensure effective delivery. This involves coordinating the department's activities for the Human Services component of the Bitter Systems Initiative which is focusing on the development of a new information system for Child Day Care.

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Tetal Salarkia and Employee Benefits	1,491.1	28.00	1,519.0	(27.9)	
Total Other Expenditures	791.8		818.9	(27.1)	

09-1G Information Systems (Family Services)

Employment and Income Assistance

The Employment and Income Assistance Division is responsible for Program Services, six major income transfer programs and Building Independence.

Program Services provides leadership, direction, flucal management and support for the division. Employment and income Assistance District Offices, under Program Services, provide as istance to Manitobans in need, in accordance with the relevant legislation and government policy. Field staff assess eligibility, provide as istance, and monitor cases.

The income transfer programs include: Employment and Income Assistance, Health Sarvices; Municipal Assistance; income Assistance for Persons with a Disability; 55 PLUS - A Manitoba income Supplement; and the Child Related Income Support Program (CRISP). These programs are designed to provide employment support and financial assistance to Manitobans in need by providing basic assistance or income supplements.

Building Independence initiatives offer opportunities to income assistance participants who are looking for work and wanting to participate meaningfully in their communities.

The division consists of four major branch a: Program Services, Income Assistance Program, Building Independence and Income Supplement Programs.

The major objectives of the division are to:

- provide program and administrative direction and support, and divisional field resources to manage and deliver employment and income assistance services;
- provide employability assessments, personal job planning, work incentives, and other supports to help participants enter or re-enter the labour market;
- provide income assistance to persons in need;
- provide for cost-sharing and regulation of municipal assistance;
- provide additional financial assistance to income assistance participants with a disability to help meet the costs as ociated with a disability;
- provide support for identified projects focused on the needs of specific target groups aimed at
 promoting job opportunities and increasing job skills and employebility; and
- provide financial supplements to low-income persons 55 years of age and over and to low-income families with children.

Program	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Employment and Income Assistance	\$210,425,0	\$199,384.5	\$261,161.3
Women and Infant Nutrition Program*	0	1,028.6	1,470.1
Health Services	18,832 0	21,921.1	29,538.7
Municipal Assistance	89,925.9	77,637.4	4,957.5
Income Assistance for Persons with a Disability	9,592.6	10,010.9	11,635 5
Building Independence	4,983.0	5,553.9	2,626.1
55 PLUS - A Manitoba Income Supplement	6,652.2	6,380.8	6,133.9
Child Related Income Support Program	1,658.9	1.363.4	1,385.7
Total	\$341,969.6	\$323,290.6	\$318,908,8

Financial Assistance Expenditures by Program (\$000) 1997/98 to 1999/00

 Community-Based Programming only. The monthly Nutritional Benefit is included in the Employment and Income Assistance expenditures for 1998/99 (\$167.7) and 1999/00 (\$875.6).

Program Services

Program Services provides leadership, direction, fiscal management and support for the Employment and incom Assistance District Offices, Income Assistance Programs, Building Independence and Income Supplement Programs. In addition, the office provides program policy direction, analysis, and strategic program planning. Other activities include overpayment recovery from former Income assistance participants and user support for the division's computer network.

09-2A Program Services

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries & Employee Benefits	19,964 6	453.52	21,246.0	(1,261.4)	
Total Other Expenditures	7,925 6		7,324.6	601.0	

Income Assistance Programe

Income Assistance Programs assist Manitobans to regain their financial independence by helping them to make the transition to work, and to meet the cost of their basic living in accordance with The Employment and Income Assistance Act. The Employment and Income Assistance and Municipal Assistance for programs provide basic financial assistance, while the Health Services Program provides essistance for essential health services. Income Assistance for Persons with a Disability provides additional assistance to income assistance participants with a disability.

Employment and Income Assistance

Employment and income Assistance, operating under the authority of *The Employment and Income* Assistance Act, is the largest of the Income Assistance Programs in terms of both cuseloads and expenditures.

The major objectives of Employment and Income Assistance are to:

- assist Manitobans to regain their financial independence by helping them to make the transition from income assistance to work; and
- provide income assistance to Manitobans in need.

Financial assistance is provided to persons in need who are eligible for assistance under *The Employment and Incoma Assistance Act* including, single parints, persons with a physical or mental disability, aged persons, persons requiring the protection of a crisis intervention facility, children whose parents are unable to support them, persons with dependants in need of special care, as well as persons not in one of these categories reaiding in areas of the province where municipal assistance is not available (general assistance). Eligibility may also be granted under special case consideration at the discretion of the Mini ter. Persons in need who do not qualify for Incom

Eligibility for income assistance is further determined by a needs test in which the total amount of a hous hold's financial resources is compared to the total costs of its basic assistance as defined in *The Employment and Income Assistance Act* and Regulations. Certain items and income are not included in the calculation of financial resources.

Employment and income Assistance provided assistance to an average monthly classical of 34,077 in 1999/00, a decrease of 4.2 per clint from the previous year.

During 1999/00, approximately 12.1 per cent of the income assistance called mild@use of the workincentive provisions of the program.

Employment and Income Assistance Average Monihly Caseload by Office and Calegory of Assistance 1999/00

Office	Children	Sing le Parenis	Aged	Persons with a Disability	Crisis Facilty Cases	General Ass islance	Special Case	Tolal
Beausejour	6	301	8	643	1	38	2	999
Brandon	3	575	26	1238	16	24	1	1.883
Dauphin	1	289	23	422	5	110	3	853
Flinfton	3	96	0	69	0	47	Õ	235
Morden	6	186	16	510	4	1	Ö	723
Porlage la Prairie	5	314	14	838	19	33	2	1,225
Sekirk	8	355	24	723	13	26	1	1,150
Swan River	3	270	1	191	3	247	2	717
The Pas	0	2 36	3	95	5	148	1	488
Thompson	3	5 61	5	251	6	288	1	1.115
2-111 Ror & Streel	2	4,346	1	612	7	3470	105	8 543
896 Main Street	30	86	61	825	0	2372	1	3375
128 Market Avenue	36	6	84	6,813	2	3	0	6,944
391 York Avenue	0	2,120	0	20	1	3341	14	5.496
1-111 RorieStreet	0	46	2	22	23	233	5	331
Total	106	9787	268	13,282	105	10,381	138	34,077

Employment and Income Assistance Caseload by Month 1997/98 to 1999/00

Month	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00*
April	25,359	25,001	35,551
May	25,396	25,029	35,849
June	25,481	25,129	35,684
July	25,413	25,055	35.072
August	25,370	24.966	34,619
September	25,021	24,719	33,804
October	24,788	24,504	33,137
November	24,818	24,468	33,035
Decimber	24,891	24,383	32,909
January	24,784	24,323	33,004
February	24,696	24,309	33,084
March	25 018	24,301	33,172
Monthly Average	25,103	24,682	34,077

The caseload for Employment and Incom: Assistance inpresents the transition of the City of Winnipeg participants to the Province under the One-Tier initiative.

Employment and Income Assistance Average Monthly Number of Participants by Office 1997/96 to 1999/00

Office	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Beausejour	2,077	1,947	1,857
Brandon	3,691	3,434	3,223
Dauphin	1,717	1,699	1,701
Flin Flon	491	490	463
Morden	1,360	1,282	1,252
Portage la Prairie	2,427	2,290	2,095
Selkirk	2,349	2,167	1,985
Swan River	1,660	1,670	1,631
The Pas	1,476	1,354	1,167
Thompson	2,930	2,947	2,822
Winnipeg Centrel*	7,573	7,862	Ó
Winnipeg North*	5.216	4,894	0
Winnipeg West*	11,588	11,357	Ċ
Winnipeg South	5,896	5,498	0
2-111 Rone Street	0,000	0	19,498
896 Main Street		ō	3,932
	0		8,489
128 Market Avenue 391 York Avenue		0	12,280
	0	۵ ۵	562
1-111 Rorie Street			002
Total	50,453	48,891	62,967

* Winnipeg offices were reorganized in 1999/00 as part of the One-Tier Initiative.

Employment and Income Assistance Average Monthly Caseload by Category 1997/98 to 1999/00

Category	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Children Single Parents Aged Persons with a Disability Crisis Facility Cases General Assistance Special Cases	133 11,256 351 12,115 98 1,114 36	120 10,489 309 12,598 95 1,039 32	106 9,787 288 13,292 105 10,381 138
Total	25,103	24,882	34,077

Employment and Income Assistance Expenditures by Category (\$000) 1997/96 to 1999/00

Cale <u>g</u> o <u>ry</u>	1997/98	1996/99	1999/00
Children	\$533.3	\$512.4	\$450.7
Single Parents	114,445,5	101,266.4	92.081.4
Aged	1,344.3	1,219.0	1,152.8
Persons with a Disability	84,971,5	87,730.5	94.057.0
Crisis Facility Cases	1,052.8	1,096,7	1,035.0
General Assistance	6,889.1	6,375.1	66,044.7
Special Cases	782.8	756.9	1,605.6
Other	405.7	437.5	4 7 3 3 1
Total	\$210,426.0	\$199,394.5	\$261,161.3

Employment and income Assistance Expenditures by Month (\$000) 1997/98 to 1999/00

Month	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
April	\$17.096.1	\$16,343.1	517,130.2
May	17,207.3	15,822.7	21,165.8
June	17,873.6	17,431.6	26,061.5
July	17.495.2	15,722.6	23,580.2
August	16,869.0	15,653 8	19,214.4
September	18,800 6	16,472.5	21,445.4
October	18,227.7	15,886,5	20,257.7
November	16,238.6	15,959.3	20,891.0
December	16.585.6	15,742.0	21,408.5
January	19,154.8	16,338 2	20,639.0
February	18,062.5	16,619.1	20,320.7
March	16,814.0	21,423.1	29,045.9
Total	\$210,425,0	\$199,394.6	\$261,161.3

Employment and Income Assistance Participants Reporting Employment Income*

Office	Single	Persons with a Disability	General Assistance	Total
Beausejour	88	158	6	262
Brundon	169	236	1	406
Dauphin	64	66	13	143
Flin Flon	26	3	4	33
Morden	61	175	0	236
Portage la Prairie	81	237	1	319
Selkirk	97	101	1	199
Swan River	47	41	26	114
The Pas	46	12	18	76
Thompson	90	36	44	170
2-111 Rorie Street	382	213	124	719
898 Main Street	2	17	26	45
128 Markel Avenue	0	409	0	409
391 York Avenue	820	2	103	925
1-111 Rorks Street	5	1	6	12
Total	1,978	1,707	373	4,058

This chart reflects individual participants reporting employment income, rather than separate cases, as there
may be more than one participant in a case earling income.

Women and Infant Nutrition (WIN) Program

The Women and Infant Nutrition (WIN) Program is designed to improve the knowledge of nutritional practices among low-income families, and in turn, improve the nutritional health and general health status of pregnent women and children by providing community-based workshops on nutrition during pregnancy, breastfeeding, child development milestones, parenting strategies, meal planning, budgeting and food preparation.

For families on provincial income assistance who participate in WIN workshops, the program also provides an increased monthly nutritional benefit of \$65.00 payable during the third trimester of pregnancy as well as during the child's first year of life.

Women and Infant Nutrition (WIN) Program Expenditures by Category (\$000) 1997/98 to 1999/00

Category	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Nutritional Benefit*	0.0	\$167.7	\$875.6
Community-Based Programming	0 0	1,028.6	<u>1,</u> 470.1
Total	0.0	1,196.3	\$2,345.7

Monthly banefit is included in Employment and income Assistance.

Health Services

The Health Services Program provides essential drug, dental and optical supplies and services to Employment and Income Assistance participants and children in care

Generally, participants enrolled for more than three months are issued a Health Services card which allows them to receive basic drug, dental and optical supplies and services. Participants enrolled for three months or less may receive an interim health card which allows them to receive drug benefits. Participants who are not eligible for a health services card, such as general asistance participants and patients in a hospital or extended treatment facility, receive approval for their health needs on an item-byitem basis.

Supplies and services are generally provided in accordance with approved fee schedules. Arrangements for the delivery of health care supplies and services have been mide with the following professional and business organizations.

- Drugs Maniloba Society of Pharmacists
- Dental Manitoba Dental Association
- Denturist Association of Manitoba
- Optical Opticians of Manitoba

The approved fee schedules specify the types of goods and services to be provided, and outline the eligibility criteria for these goods and services, the level of payment, and related billing procedures.

Health Services provided benefits to an average monthly caseload of 37,314 in 1999/00. Over 86 per cent of the caseload was comprised of Employment and income Assistance cases, while the remaining 14 per cent were children in cere.

Average Monthly Number of Participents	53,649	50,227	63,883
Average Monthly Number of Cases	29,203	28 <u>,</u> 127	37,314
Totsl	\$18,832.0	\$21,921.1	\$29,538,7
Optical	528.8	659.4	722,8
Drugs	15,642.2	18.661.9	25,303.0
Expenditures (\$000) Dental	\$2.651.0	\$2,699.8	\$3,512.9
	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00*

Health Services Expenditures and Ceseload 1997/98 to 1999/00

 The caseload increase includes the transition of the City of Winnipeg participants to the Province under the One-Tier initiative.

Municipal Assistance

The Municipal Assistance Program encompasses the individual financial assistance programs administered and delivered by Manitoba municipalities. In accordance with The Employment and Income Assistance Act and The Municipal Act, municipalities are responsible for providing assistance to persons in need, within their bound ries, who are not eligible for provincial income assistance benefits.

Municipalities are responsible for the administration and delivery of municipal assistance, consistant with provincial regulation. Municipalities have the authority to establish exemptions for earnings and liquid assets, and may exceed provincially established assistance benefits at municipal expense.

The Department of Family Services and Housing has two main roles with respect to municipal assistance. The first is the administration of cost-sharing arrangements between the two levels of government. The province costshares financial assistance payments and certain administrative costs with municipalities, according to the provisions of The Employment and Income Assistance Act. Municipalities are reimbursed 100 per cent for financial assistance paid on behalf of non-area residents, while rembursement for assistance paid on behalf of area residents represents the greater of 40 per cent of gross payments or 80 per cent of gross assistance costs in excess of 2 mill on each dollar of the total assessment of that municipality. The province also reimburses municipalities 50 per cent of the amount by which the salaries of staff engaged in full-time social services work exceed the costs incurred in 1964 and 50 per cent of eligible administrative costs.

A second departmental role is to administer the provincial regulation and provide interpretation and support to municipalities.

Municipalities provided assistance to an average monthly cateload of 1,200 in 1999/00.

1997/98 to 1999/00				
	1997/96	1998/99	1999/00*	
Financial Assistance	\$85,380.8	\$72.748.8	\$4.626 7	
Welfare Services	4,545.1	4 888 6	330 8	
Total	589,925.9	\$77,637.4	\$4,957.5	

Municipal Assistance Provincial Share of Expenditures for Manitobs (\$000)

The expenditures for Municipal Assist new represent the transition of the City of Winnipeg to the Province under the One-The e leviti the

Municipal Assistance Number of Cases for Manitoba 1997/98 to 1999/00

		and the second se
1997/98	1998/99	1999/00*
16,239	13,402	1,294
15.928	12,804	1,258
15,027	12,275	1,206
14,154	11,741	1,150
	11,305	1,114
	11,233	1,128
	11,241	1,053
	11,713	1,154
		1,302
		1,111
		1,323
13.662	12,891	1,298
14,132	12,168	1,200
	16,239 15,928 16,027 14,154 13,638 13,256 13,126 13,207 13,723 13,851 13,875 13,875 13,862	16,239 13,402 15,928 12,804 16,027 12,275 14,154 11,741 13,638 11,305 13,256 11,233 13,126 11,241 13,207 11,713 13,723 12,192 13,851 12,464 13,875 12,751 13,862 12,891

 The caseload for Municipal Assist new represents the transition of the City of Winnipeg perticipants to the Province under the One-Tity initiative.

Municipal Assistance Number of Participants for Manitoba 1997/98 to 1999/00

1997/98	1998/99	1999/00*
27,631	22,364	2,501
27.009	21,398	2,454
25,487	20,828	2,393
	20,013	2,220
	19,244	2,138
	19,019	2,131
	18,986	2.037
	19,536	2,145
		2,419
		2,216
	-	2,503
22.832	21,163	2,468
23,920	20,411	2,302
	27,631 27,009 26,487 24,113 23,117 22,530 22,148 22,386 23,334 23,211 23,245 22,832	27,631 22,364 27,009 21,398 26,487 20,628 24,113 20,013 23,117 19,244 22,530 19,019 22,148 18,986 22,386 19,536 23,334 20,625 23,211 20,766 23,245 21,265 22,832 21,163

The caseload for Municipal A silitance represents the transition of the City of Winnipeg participants to the Province under the On-Tior initiative

Income Assistance for Persons with a Disability

The income Assistance for Persons with a Disability Program provides for additional financial assistance for adults with a disability enrolled under Employment and Income Assistance, in recognition of the additional costs associated with living in the community. Program benefits are \$80.00 per month.

The Income Assistance for Persons with a Disability Program provided assistance to an average monthly caseload of 12,406 in 1999/00.

Income Assistance for Persons with a Disability

Caseload by Month

1997/98 to 1999/00

Month	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
April	11,043	11,476	11,860
May	11,102	11,619	11,867
June	11,104	11.595	11,931
July	11,163	11,654	12,032
August	11,164	11,871	12,091
September	11,172	11,697	12,216
Oclober	11,183	11,715	12,434
November	11,207	11,733	12,599
December	11,294	11,796	12,723
January	11,290	11,822	12,888
February	11,339	11,844	13,043
March	11,413	11,869	13,189
Monthly Average	11,205	11,699	12,406

Income Assistance for Persons with a Disability Expenditures by Month (\$000) 1997/98 to 1999/00

Month	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
April	\$788.1	\$818.9	\$846.0
May	791.9	821.5	846.1
June	792.1	826.6	850.4
July	790.0	831.2	857.7
August	801.7	832.7	975,8
September	797.1	833.9	994.2
Oclober	797.8	834.9	1,012.7
November	799.5	836.2	1,026.5
December	800.0	841.0	1,036.5
January	811.1	842.8	1,050,5
February	809.0	844.6	1,063.4
March	814,3	846 6	1.075.7
Total	\$9,592.6	\$10.010.9	\$11,635.5

09-28 Income Assistance Programs

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.	
Employment and Income Assistance (including WIN expenditures)	\$262,631.4	\$266,168 1	(5,558.7)		
Health Services	29,538 7	29,138.9	399,8	1	
Municipal Assistance"	4,957.5	5,675,7	(718.2)	2	
Income Assistance for Persons with a Disability	11,636.5	11,708.8	(73.3)		

Provincial share of municipal assistance expenditure.

- The 1999/00 actual expenditure for Health Services was \$399.8 greater than the estimate which was
 primarily due to an increase in the number of prescriptions per case and an increase in the average
 cost per prescription. The increase in the average cost per prescription reflects participants' need for
 new and more expensive drugs.
- The 1999/00 actual expenditure for the Municipal Assistance Program was \$718.2 kiss than the estimate. This variance was primarily due to a lower than estimated caseload with some of the lower costs being offset by higher essistance-related costs.

Building Independence

Building Indipindince develops and coordinates initiatives that will help Employment and Income As istance and Municipal As istance participants to make real links to training and imployment. Building Indipendence provides support for identified projects almost at promoting job opportunities and increasing job skills and imployability.

In 1999/00, two new initiatives were implemented. The Family Day Care Provider Project, with involvement from Child Day Care and the Family Centre of Winnipeg, is training income assistance participants to become licensed family day care providers. The Connect 2 Volcemail Pilot Project is a free volcemail service offered by a number of community-based organizations to low-income personal service entry of the community-based organizations to low-income personal service entry.

09-2C Building Independence

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/000 \$000	Estimate 1999/000 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Building Independence	\$2,626.1	52,770 0	(143.9)	

Number of Participante in the Building Independence Programs

1997/98 to 1999/00

Program	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Family Day Care Provider Training	0	0	20
Taking Chargel	1,188	752	774
Community Home Services Program	283	289	212
Rural Jobs Project positions	27	21	27
Opportunities for Employment	430	1,093	760
Job Readiness	0	189	202
Sara Riel Inc.	0	0	24
Other	366	227	49"

The reduction is primarily due to the City of Winnipeg assuming sole responsibility for the Community Service Worker Project and the Province assuming sole responsibility of the Community Home Service Program under the Ore-Ther Initiative.

Income Supplement Programs

Employment and Income Assistance administers two Income Supplement Program (CRISP), which are located in Carberry and Killiarney, respectively. Staff assess ligibility, monitor cases, and provide information to participants and the general public.

55 PLUS - A Manitoba Income Supplement

The 55 PLUS Program provides quarterly income supplements to low-income Manitobans who are 55 years of ag and over. The program has two components. The first, or Senior Component, is for persons eligible to receive certain levels of benefit from the first of 20 Age Security programs (Guaranteed Income Supplement, Spoure's Allowance and Widowed Spouse's Allowance). Persons in this component are primarily 65 years of age and over. The second, or Junior Component, is for persons 55 years and over who are not eligible to receive Old Age Security benefits, and who do not receive assistance from the province or a municipality, but whose income fails within certain specified ranges.

An application for ben fits from the Senior Component Is not necessary, as eligibility is determined from the person's innual application to the federal Guaranteed Income Supplement Program. The 55 PLUS benefit is public to those individuals with little or no personal income other than income from Old Age Security and Guaranteed Income Supplement benefits.

An annual application is necessary for benefits from the Junior Component. In 1999/00, maximum benefits were paid to lingle persons with a net income of \$8,930.40 or less. Partial benefits were paid to rank persons with incomes between \$8,930.41 and \$9,722.40. Maximum benafits were paid to married persons with a net family income of \$14,479.20 or less. Partial benefits were payable to married persons with incomes between \$14,479.21 and \$16,207.20.

The maximum quarterly benefits available for both components for the April, July and October 1999 and January 2000 benefit periods were \$111.60 for single persons and \$119.90 for each eligible married person.

During 1999/00, 55 PLUS binn fits were provided to an average of 15,921 individuals per quarter. Approximately 60 per cent were in receipt of full ben fits from the program.
55 PLUS - A Maniloba Income Supplement Number of Participants by Marilal Status and Quarter 1997/98 to 1999/00

37

Program Component	<u> </u>	1997/98			1999/99 1999		1999/00	99/00	
	Single*	Married	Total	Single*	Married	Total	Single"	Marriod	Total
Senior									
April	9,139	3 564	12703	9076	3,559	12,635	9.14	3 497	12637
Jifly	9 1 2 4	3 504	12728	9060	3,570	12,630	8,515	3384	11,899
October	9197	3.821	12,818	9 111	3605	12,716	8,619	3,425	12,044
January	9307	3,586	12 893	9 204	3 580	12,784	8 6 8 2	3,416	12,098
Average	9,192	3 5 94	12,786	9,113	3,579	12,691	8,739	3,431	12,170
Junior									
April	1827	2,098	3,925	1,773	1,738	3,511	1633	1,579	3 2 1 2
July	2066	2.416	4,482	1983	2078	4 06 1	1967	1990	3857
October	2 067	2,439	4 508	1994	2075	4069	1917	2027	3944
Januaty	2,120	2 48 9	4 609	2,019	2,108	4.127	1952	2 0 3 8	3 990
Average	2020	2,361	4,381	1942	2,000	3942	1842	1,909	3,751
Tolal Program Average	11,212	5,955	17 167	11055	\$ 579	15633	10,581	5 340	15,921

Single perticipants include these value have never been manual as well as these value are no langer manual file, widewed, diverced, separated). Formanied participants, it name cases, both members of a couple receive 5.5 PLUS and in other cases only one spouse is a performant.

Program Component	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Senior			
April	\$1,138.9	\$1,133.6	\$1,144.4
July	1,146.8	1,135.7	1,070.9
October	1,160.5	1.142.6	1.081.6
January	1,159.7	1,145.0	1,086.9
Total	\$4,605.9	\$4,556.9	\$4,383.8
Junlor			
April	\$441.1	\$394.7	\$359,5
July	669.0	498.4	487.1
October	519.3	485.5	449.9
January	526.9	465.3	453.6
Total	\$2,046.3	\$1,823.9	\$1,750.1
Total Expenditures	\$6,652.2	\$6,380.8	\$6,133.9

55 PLUS - A Manitoba Income Supplement Expenditures by Quarter (\$000) 1997/98 to 1999/00

Child Related Income Support Program (CRISP)

The Child Related Income Support Program provides monthly supplements to low-income families to assist them in meeting the costs of raising their children.

CRISP benefits are available to Manitoba familles who

- do not receive provincial or municipal income assistance;
- support one or more children under 16 years of age who are listed as their dependents on a valid Manitoba Health Services card;
- receive the Canada Child Tax Benefit for these children;
- have a total family income within specified levels; and
- have not family assets of \$200,000 or kiss.

Benefits are determined by total family income for the previous tax year, less certain deductions. Estimated income for the current year may be used when there has been a change in the applicant's situation due to a relatively permanent or long-term disability, a change in marital status or the recent immigration of the family to Canada,

For the 1999/00 bin offt year, which started on July 1, 1999, one-dipendent families with net annual incomes of \$12,384.00 or less were eligible for the maximum benefit of \$30 per month. Annual benefits are reduced 25 cents for each dollar of net family income over the eligibility level for maximum benefits. Benefits were available only by application, and a new application is required for each benefit year.

Net family assets include all personal, farm and business assets of the family, excluding the principal residence, household furnishings and the family vehicle used most often. The value of an asset is determined to be its current market value less any amount owed on the asset.

During 1999/00, CRISP benefits were provided to an average of 1,777 families per month, representing 3,787 children. Approximately 57.6 per cent of the families were headed by single parents, and approximately 61.2 per cent were in receipt of full bunefits from the program.

Child Related Income Support Program Number of Cases and Number of Children 1997/98 to 1999/00

Month	1993	1997/98		8/99	1999/00	
	Number of Cases	Number of Children	Number of Cases	Number of Children	Number of Cases	Numbor of Children
April May June July August Septemb r October Nov mb r December J nuary F bruary M rch	2.745 2,833 2,674 896 1,468 1,877 2,057 2,123 2,153 2,202 2,280 2,338	6.060 6,217 6.259 1,780 3,072 4,042 4,484 4,609 4,679 4,679 4,787 4,931 5.036	2,405 2,462 2,526 922 1,324 1,560 1,685 1,629 1,870 1,973 2,017 2,085	5,185 5,262 5,390 1,837 2,834 3,326 3,584 3,584 3,864 3,976 4,191 4,265 4,378	2,139 2,145 2,247 654 1,186 1,460 1,637 1,840 1,902 1,978 2,021	4,489 4,510 4,689 1,305 2,406 3,078 3,502 4,027 4,142 4,295 4,379 4,621
Average	2,330	4,663	1,888	4,006	2,114 1,777	3,787

Child Related Income Support Program Number of Cases by Family Type and Month 1997/96 to 1999/00

- Month	1997/9	8	1998/9	9	1999/00	0
	Single Parent	Two Parent	Single Parent	Two Parent	Single Paront	Two Parent
April	1,266	1,479	1,245	1,160	1,236	903
May	1,316	1,517	1.279	1,183	1,253	892
June	1,330	1.544	1,307	1,219	1,309	938
July	512	384	549	373	427	227
August	800	688	724	600	736	450
September	975	902	842	716	855	605
October	1,066	991	920	765	950	687
November	1.094	1.029	1,019	810	1,026	814
December	1,108	1,045	1,035	835	1,069	833
January	1,142	1,060	1,110	863	1,111	865
February	1,172	1,108	1,148	869	1,146	875
March	1,212	1,126	1,193	892	1,169	945
Average	1,083	1,071	1,031	857	1,024	763

Child Related Income Support Program Monthly Expenditures and Average Monthly Payment 1997/98 to 1999/00

	1997/9	8	1998/	99	1999/00	
Month	Expenditures (\$000)	Average* Monthly Payment	Expenditures (\$000)	Average" Monthly Payment	Expenditures (\$000)	Average* Monthly Payment
April	\$157.3	\$56.32	\$139.0	\$55 20	\$111.0	\$53,76
May	168.1	56.18	140.0	55.03	126.0	53.77
June	05	55.83	143.8	55.04	130.0	53,44
July	213.4	51.52	49.2	50.50	35.8	51.37
August	109.2	53.19	94.6	53.91	88.2	52.03
September	137.9	54.70	99.8	53.23	108.8	54.74
October	132.6	55.19	100.4	53.39	112.2	56.12
November	123.4	55.35	105.8	53.40	149.1	58.03
December	125.2	55.54	106.5	53.97	117.2	57.97
January	129.0	55.62	116.3	54.30	124.8	57.90
Fibriuary	130.9	55.32	112.4	54.08	127.7	57.93
March	131.4	55.23	165.6	53.79	154.9	58.57
Total Expenditures	\$1,558.9		\$1,363.4		\$1,385.7	

* Average monthly payment does not include benefits paid retroactively.

09-2D Income Supplement Programs

Exponditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries & Employee Benefits	\$525.2	17.00	\$596.8	(71.6)	
Other Expenditures	270.7		333.3	(62.6)	
Financial Assistance	7,519.6		8,335.1	(815.5)	
Total Other Expenditures	\$7,790.3		\$8,668.4	(\$878.1)	

Community Living

The Community Living Division provides coordination, direction and support for adult community living and vocational rehabilitation programs, the Manitoba Developmental Centre, regional delivery of social services, and residential care licensing.

The major objectives of the division are to:

- deliver a comprehensive range of social services throughout the Province of Manitoba, including
 programs and services of the Community Living Division and Child and Family Services Division;
- provide program direction and funding for supported living programs for adults with a mental disability and for vocational rehabilitation programs for adults with a physical, mental, psychiatric or learning disability;
- provide residential care and developmental programs for adults with a mental disability residing at the Manitoba Developmental Centre,
- license and monitor community residential care facilities; and
- administer the substitute dicision-miking provisions of The Vulnerable Persons Living with a Mental Disability Act.

The branches of the division are:

- Regional Operations:
- Adult Services;
- Minitobi Devilopmintal Centre;
- Residential Care Licensing, and
- Office of the Vulnerable Persons' Commissioner.

Regional Operations

The Rigional Operations Branch delivers a comprehensive range of social services programs throughout the Province including supported living for adults with a mental disability, vocational rehabilitation, child and family support services, children's special services, (amily conciliation, child day care and emergency social services.

Regional Operations Branch staff, in eight regions, work in partnership with communities, program directorates, related agencies and other provincial/federal departments in support of all Department of Family Services and Housing programming.

The objectives of Regional Operations are to:

- provide support to adults with a mental disability and their families, to assist adults with a mental disability to live in the community in the least restrictive manner possible;
- deliver vocational rehabilitation programs for adults with a mental, physical, psychiatric or learning disability;

- provide preventive services to families, to promote and maintain the well-being of the family unit through aducation and community development activities;
- deliver child protection services to children who are experiencing reglect or abuse and to provide support and protective services to children in care;
- provide support to families with children who have a mental or physical disability;
- provide referral, conciliation, assessment, and mediation services to families in dispute;
- provide support to child care facilities to meet established standards of care, and ensure financial support for eligible families; and
- ensure emergency social services plans are in place and to provide assistance to local municipalities in the event of an emergency or disaster.

09-3A Regional Operations

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Varlance Over(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	14,923.9	310.41	15,360.6	(436,7)	T
Total Other Expenditures	2,696.4		2,095.3	601.1	1

 The variance was primarily due to support costs for the transitioning of Pelican Lake Centre residents flowing through Other Expenditures rather than Salaries.

Adult Services

The Adult Services Branch is responsible for the planning, development, maintenance, overall direction, and man gement of programs and resources that support and enhance the quality of life of adults with distabilities living in the community.

Support ervices are provided through the Supported Living program for adults with a mental disability and the Vocational Rehabilitation program for adults with a mental, physical, psychlatric or learning disability. The Adult Services programs are delivered primarily through eight regional offices and over 100 external agencies.

The Adult Services Branch also provides funding for the operation of two of the Province's three divelopmental centres. St. Amant Centre and Pelican Lake Centre.

In addition, the branch is responsible for the development and negotiation of service purchase agreements with external service providers, agency and developmental centre relations, the coordination of psychological services, and staff development and training for government and external agency staff who work with persons with disabilities.

The objectives of the Adult Services Branch are to:

 fincilitate the directopment of community-based care, accommodiation, day and support services to adults with a mental disability.

- assist adults with a montal, physical, psychiatric or learning disability in accessing the workforce through the provision of assessment, training, education, and support services;
- provide direction and establish standards governing services offered within the mandate of the branch;
- ensure that policies and programs developed are responsive to the changing needs of the target populations;
- provide leadership and direction to organizations, spencies, and the regional operations system in promoting effective and efficient program administration practices.
- establish and monitor funding to external agencies that deliver survices to target populations;
- develop and implement service purchase agreements with external agancies that delineate the parameters of the services to be purchased by the branch;
- work with Ragional Operations staff in developing and monitoring regional budgets for services to eligible adults;
- monitor and evaluate programs and services provided by funded agencies and the regional delivery system;
- provide consultation and technical direction to regional field management and external agencies which provide services to adults with a disability; and
- provide a training and development program for regional and agency staff.

The major activities of Adult Services in 1999/00 included:

- provision of residential resources and community-based supports for adults with a mental disability;
- establishment of new residential situations in the Supported Living program;
- provision of day services for adults with a mental disability, which included funding for safe and reliable transportation for 85 per cent of the participants. Other program participants used independent means of transportation or were within walking distance of their day services,
- provision of School-to-Work Transition employment services with on-site training for adults with a mental disubility leaving school;
- provision of training and employment-related services to individuals with mental, physical, psychiatric or learning disabilities;
- provision of upports to participants of "in the Company of Friends";
- signing of 35 (or approximately 44.5 per cent of total funding) service purchase agreements with external agencies; and
- Implementation of a domonstration project, the "Community Living Stabilization Service," operated by St. Amont Centre.

Supported Living

In keeping with the department's goals of supporting adults with a mental disability to safely live and participate in the community, providing better, more effective services to individuals apported by the department, and developing effective partnerships with the community, the Supported Living program provides:

- a range of program supports including care, life skills development, training, respite funding, as well
 as protection and crisis intervention as necessary to assist a duits with a mental disability to live in the
 community in their residential option of choice, including:
 - family home;
 - independent living; and
 - residential care facilities licensed, shared homes that include foster homes and private and agency-managed facilities.
- a range of supports and training to assist adults with a mental disability to participate in the community through day program activities including:
 - supported employment and follow-up services that support individuals in jobs at competitive ways in community settings;
 - services with a vocational focus that develop, maintain and maximize an individual's vocational and social skills that may lead to competitive employment. These services may be delivered in a day services facility or in a community setting, and
 - individualized personal div topm of services that develop, maintain and maximize an Individual's personal care skills, emotion if growth, physical development, socialization opportunities and communication skills. These skills may be delivered in a day services facility, in a community setting or in the individual's home.
- public and specialized transportation within prescribed provincial safety standards for all individuals who require this service to access day services.

All program supports and training for higible individuals are based on an individual person-centered plan, as required under The Vulnerable Persons Living with a Mental Disability Act.

Total Caseloads

The following two tables provide information on the Support of Living program's total caseload, which includes individuals for whom some type of fund diservice was provided (e.g., residential, respite, day services), is well as individuals who only received as latince through case management activities (e.g., counselling, referral).

Supported Living Total Caseload by Type of Accommodation as at March 31/2000

	1998/99	1999/00
Accommodation	Active Files	Active Files
Foster Homes & Private Licensed Residential Care Facilities	538	598
Parental Home	865	923
Agency-Managed Residential Care Facilities	859	897
Extended Family	151	160
Independent Living with Support	469	483
Independent Living	301	330
Alternate Care (e.g. Hospitals, Personal Care Homes)	117	106
In the Company of Friends	26	30
Total	3,326	3,527

Supported Living Total Active Caseload by Type of Day Activity as at March 31/2000

1998/99	1999/00
Active Files	Active Flier
135	134
276	309
1,049	1,105
803	521
26	30
308	363
72	77
657	688
3,326	3,627
	Active Files 135 276 1,049 803 26 308 72 657

The tables in the following sub-sections provide information on the number of individuals funded for each type of service and, therefore, exclude individuals only rectiving case management services. It should be noted that many individuals rective more than one type of funded service.

Residential Services

Residential Services provide for the care and accommodation of adults with a mental disability to live in a number of residential and independent living options.

The objectives of the Residential Services program are to:

- enable an individual to choose from among a variety of living options and to provide supports to the individual to continue to live in his/her chosen living option;
- provide a safe and supportive community environment for adults with a mental disability, and
- promote and support independence in a variety of community settings.

In 1999/00, many Supported Living program lines that provided supports in a variety of living options were consolidated into one program line - Residential Services. This initiative reduced multiple funding streams and reduced administrative workloads for external agencies and departmental staff with regard to billing and funding processes.

Region	1997/98*	1998/99	1999/00
Winnipeg	2	728	811
Eastman		115	114
Interlake		1 16	130
Central	*	192	166
Westman	* *	219	240
Parkland		118	122
Norman		48	51
Thompson		23	24
Total	1,445*	1,661	1,680

Residential Services Individuals Funded by Region 1997/98 to 1999/00

During 1998/99, several budget lines were consolidated into Residential Services. Although statistics were maintained eccording to previous budget lines if is estimated that residential services were provided to approximately 1,445 individuals. A regional breakdown is not evaluable.

In the Company of Friends

In the Company of Friends is a program option that provides individuals with a mental disability the opportunity to manage their own lives through supported decision-miking

The objectives of the program are to:

- link individuals to volunteer support networks in the community; and
- provide a funding vehicle that gives individuals the flexibility to develop or purchase services and supports appropriate to their unique desires and needs.

Individuals choosing this option manage their own lives with support from family and frkinds. If an individual does not have natural supports, a formal support network is developed for him or her.

In the Company of Friends Individuals Participating in Program 1997/98 to 1999/00

	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Number of Participants	19	26	30

Support Services - Respite Services

Respite Services provide short-term care for adults with a mental disability to provide relief for primary caregivers.

Primary caregivers, for the purpose of Respite Services, include natural families, as well as the operators of licensed foster care facilities.

The objectives of Respite Services are to:

- provide supports which enable primary caregivers to continue to provide community-based residential care; and
- provide short-term alternative cure in the least restrictive environment, and in a manner which is
 minimally disruptive to the individual's life-style.

	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Winnipeg	261	255	285
Eastman	95	105	120
Interlake	57	58	54
Central	59	67	68
Westman	99	119	89
Parkland	53	51	41
Norman	10	11	12
Thompson	7	6	7
Totai	641	671	676

Respite Services Individuals Funded by Region

Support Services - Crisis Intervention

The Crisis Intervention program provides individualized support to adults with a mental disability who are living in the community and who are experiencing a crisis.

Crisis Intervention is designed to provide immediate supports pending the development and implementation of long-term plans.

The objectives of Crisis Intervention are to:

- ensure the immediate physical safety and well-being of individuals in crisis and those around them,
- maintain the individual who is in crisis in the least restrictive alternative while long-term plans are being put into place;
- provide immediate assistance or relief to caregivers and service providers who are experiencing crisis with an adult with a mental disability;
- prevent institutional placement of individuals due to lack of time to develop appropriate program
 options; and
- provide caregivers and service providers with on-site assistance in dealing effectively with crisis situations.

Crisis Intervention	
Individuals Funded by	Region
1997/98 to 1999/00	

Region	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Winnipeg	154	176	207
Eastman	В	13	21
Interlake	25	10	19
Central	10	3	8
Westman	31	34	67
Parkland	11	14	12
Norman	6	5	6
Тһотриоп	2	3	9
Total	247	258	349

Day Services

Day Services maximize the independence and productivity of idult, with a mental disability by assisting them in idepting to and participating in the province's workforce; facilitating their involvement in the community and enhancing their potential for person if divelopment.

Service options include supported employment and follow-up services, services with a vocational focus, and individualized development services:

- Supported Employment and Follow-Up Services are aimed at supporting individuals in jobs in community sutlings. Individual support and training are provided in employment settings within the community. Once a job is secured and training is completed, follow-up services are provided to ensure job retention.
- Services with a Vocational Focus are aimed at developing, maintaining, and maximizing an individual's vocational and social skills. The ultimate goal is competitive employment in integrated community settings.
- Individualized Development Services are almed at developing, maintaining, and maximizing an
 individual's personal care skills, emotional growth, physical development, nocialization opportunities,
 and communication skills through the provision of in-house or community-based activities. Personal
 development services may also include activities with a vocational focus where ver possible.

Rogion	1997/98°	1998/99"	1999/00"
Winnipeg	863	937	1,033
Easiman	271	284	285
Interlake	140	138	139
Central	300	312	307
Westman	246	264	266
Parkland	165	142	124
Noman	29	29	32
Thompson	18	21	22
Total	2,052	2,127	2,208

Day Services Individuals Funded by Region 1997/98 to 1999/00

* Includes Follow-up Services.

Day Services - Special Rate

Day Services - Special Rate provides resources to adults with a mental disability whose needs cannot be adequately met through other existing day services programs and rates.

The objectives of Day Services - Special Rate are to:

- provide short-term, from 2 to 12 months, intensive support to assist adults with a mental distibility to
 access and benefit from existing services and support systems;
- provide planned long-term supports to individuals who require enriched service provision, and
- facilitate community-based day services for individuals currently living in developmental centres whole needs cannot be met by current service options or who are geographically isolated from existing service options.

1997/98 to 1999/00			
Region	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Winnipeg	149	192	237
Eastman	12	20	24
Interlake	5	4	8
Central	10	12	16
Westmen	26	27	35
Parkland	5	6	8
Norman	4	4	6
Тһотрвол	6	7	7
Total	217	272	341

Day Services - Special Rate Individuals Funded by Region 1997/98 to 1999/00

Day Services - Administrative Support

The objectives of Day Services - Administrative Support are to.

- · provide funds to day services operators to assist in offsetting the costs of program administration, and
- acknowledge the administrative costs of program operation and improve the administrative capability of eligible non-profit agencies.

Day Services - Administrative Support Spaces Funded 1997/98 to 1999/00

	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Number of Spaces	1,684	1,731	1.852

Day Services - Transportation

The Adult Services Branch funds transportation services for adults with a mental disability who etiend departmentally approved and funded day services.

Public transportation is the option of choice for individuals who, given the opportunity and appropriate training, are capable of utilizing it. Where distance or the level of disability dict to that public transportation is not the safest, most effective option, specialized transportation services are purchased from a number of private and non-profit carriers.

The objectives of Day Services - Transportation are to:

- purchase safe transportation from appropriately equipped and licensed corners for individuals who
 require specialized services as a result of their mental and/or physical disability,
- purchase public transportation, primarily bus passes, for individuals who have the physical and mantal skills to utilize such services; and
- purchase services based on established rates and in consideration of historical experience with the quality of services provided.

Day Services - Transportation Individuals Funded by Region 1997/96 to 1999/00

		the second s	
Region	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Winnipeg	795	800	969
Eastman	219	232	242
Interlake	96	88	111
Central	243	243	224
Westman	181	208	220
Parkland	87	111	86
Norman	19	22	24
Thompson	12	15	9
Total	1,663	1,729	1,885

Protection of Vulnerable Persons Living With a Mental Disability

The Vulnerable Persons Living with a Mentel Disability Act (the Act) is designed to protect vulnerable prion from buse and neglect. The Act states that individuals providing sirvices to vulnerable prisons are legally oblig ted to riport their suspicions of ibuse or neglect to the Department of Fimily Services and Housing. Other members of the public in incour grid to riport my surplicions of abusion niglect to the police or the Dipartment of Fimily Services and Housing. The department must investigate every report of ibuse or neglect and, under the Act, disignated staff have the authority to conduct investigations. Emirgency Intervention can also be undertaken if the vulnerable person is defined to be in immediate danger.

Annual Reports Of Alleged Abuse/Nogloct

1997/98 to 1999/00

	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Reports of Alleged Abuse/Neglect	142	265	267
Referred to Police or RCMP	39	199	62
Person Charged Under Criminal Code	2	4	3

		10		ns of Abuse/N March 31, 200	-				
Region Types Of Alleged Abuse/Neglect								Region	
	Verbal	Physical	Sexual	Emotional	Financial	Not Recorded	Total		
Central		18	5	3	Э	1	30		
Eastman		1			1		2		
Interlake		15	4		1	1	21		
Norman		1		2	1		4		
Parkland	1	1	1		1		4		
Thompson		2					2		
Westman		4		1	1		8		
Winnipeg		145	47	13	6	2	217		
Total	5	187	57	19	14	4	286		

Note: One allegation may involve two or more different types of alleged abuse, resulting in a difference between the total for types of alleged abuse/neglect and the total number of reports of alleged abuse/neglect.

Staff Development and Training

Staff Development and Training provides training opportunities to both government and non-government staff working with duits with ment I dis bility who re support d through the Support d Living program and adults with dis bility who re support d through the Voc tional Rehabilitation program.

The objectives of the Staff Development and Training program are to:

- consult and liase with external service providers, Regional Operations staff and program staff on anongoing basis to determine priority needs;
- provide for staff development and training programs that enhance the ability of agencies and government staff to ensure the quality care and safety of individuals in reaidential and day programs; and
- ensure the ongoing availability of education to government and non-government staff providing cure and support to adult, with a mental disability in the community.

In 1999/00, Slaff Development and Training provided, purchased or subsidized training services for over 2,200 gency and gov rom int staff who work with individuals with a disability. Included among the training clivity is were emergency first aid, non-viol nt crisis intervintion, sixuality and relationships, learning disabilities and supported imployment, and Dividopmental Service Worker courses. In addition, training related to *The Vulnerable Persons Living with a Mental Disability Act* Included individual person-centered planning and protection skills.

St. Amant Centre and Pelican Lake Centro

The Adult Services Branch provides funding for the operation of St. Am ant Centre and Pelican Lake Centre, both design ted as developmental centres by Regulation under The Vulnerable Persons Living with a Mental Disability Act. Developmental centres provide 24-hour residential care for individuals with a mental disability who require specialized services.

<u>St. Amant Centre</u>, loc ted in Winnipeg, is owned and operated by the Grey Nuns of Montreal who are responsible for appointing a community 80 and of Directoril. St. Amint Centre services 182 idults and 40 children residing at the centre who have sivere mental and physical disibilities. In iddition, the centre operates a clinical outreach program, Family C in projects, and Crisis Stabilization services to assist children and adults to continue to live with their families in the community.

Pelican Lake Centre, located in Ninette, is owned and operated by the Sanatorium Board of Mantoba and serves approximately 53 adults residing at the centre with moderate to severe mental disabilities. The centre is scheduled to close by December 31, 2000, with all remaining residents transitioning to alternativa living arrangements in the community.

St. Amant Centre Number of Residents 1993/94 to 1999/00

Fiscal Year	Number of Children	Number of Adults	Number of Residents	Children % of Residents
1993/94	94	155	249	37.8%
1994/95	80	166	246	32.5%
1995/96	72	178	250	28.8%
1996/97	63	184	247	25.5%
1997/98	53	183	236	22.5%
1998/99	49	177	226	21.7%
1999/00	40	182	222	18.0%

* As at March 31. The number of residents is based on long-term admissions and does not include temporary respite.

Pelican Lake Centre Number of Residents 1993/94 to 1999/00

Fiscal Year	Number of Adults
1993/94	70
1994/95	70
1995/96	70
1996/97	70
1997/98	69
1998/99	69
1999/00**	53

* As at March 31. The number of residents is based on long-term admissions and does not include temporary respite.

The decrease in the number of residents is a result of residents beginning to be transitioned to the community due to the announced closure of Pelican Lake Centre in December 2000.

Vocational Rehabilitation

The Vocational Rehabilitation program assists eligible adults with a disability to pursue and secure gainful employment by providing a spectrum of vocational training, education, and support services.

Individual vocational training plans are submitted to the Vocational Rehabilitation program by Vocational Rehabilitation Counsellors employed by Regional Operations or grant lunded agencies. Based on these plans, lunds are approved to enable individuals to access vocational training services.

The objectives of the Vocational Rehabilitation program are to:

- provide vocational rehabilitation services to adults with a disability, to anhance their independence and ability to contribute socially and economically through employment in the competitive labour force: and
- assist adults with a mental, physical, psychiatric or learning disability to access the competitive work. • force through the provision of assessment, training, education, and support services.

Disability	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Physical Disability	1,325	1,373	1,372
Psychiatric Disability	635	693	760
Mental Disability	635	663	640
Learning Disability	195	206	236
Sight Disability	649	862	859
Hearing Disability	188	196	181
Total	3,827	3,983	4,048

Vocational Training **Total Active Caseload by Olsability**

Vocational Rehabilitation Total Ceseloads by Region/Agency

as at March 31, 2000 1999/00 1998/99 1997/98 Region/Agency 1,055 919 898 Winnipeg 208 172 176 Westman 48 43 Eastman 133 126 144 Central 82 104 Interlake 127 130 121 Perkiend 8 9 Norman 21 24 Thompson 2,376 2.375 2,313 Grant Funded Agencies 4,048 3.827 3.983 Total

48

65

10

24

Vocational Training Individual Funded by Disability 1997/98 to 1999/00

Disability	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Physical Oisability	394	392	363
Psychi tric Dis bility	340	361	361
Mental Disability	247	237	237
Learning Disability	96	96	99
Sight Disability	42	42	35
Hearing Disability	101	97	83
Total	1,220	1,225	1,168

The following table outlines the services purchased by type of service. The number of services provided is much larger than the number of individuals served, as any one individual may consume a number of different services simultaneously or over time.

Vocational Training Services Purchased by Type 1997/98 to 1999/00

Type of Service	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00	
Education - University	142	129	113	
Education - Community College	134	110	112	
Education - Special Colleges*	71	58		
Education - School	30	21	34	
Education - Out of Province	26	18	16	
Work Assessment Training	3,221	3,693	3,767	
Transportation	1,317	1,382	1,289	
Special Services	1,924	1,859	1,788	
Total	6,865	7,270	7,128	

Other collages in Manitoba.

09-38 Adult Services

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	1,592.0	32.00	1,733.6	(141.6)	
Other Expenditures	1,311.0		1,286.1	24.9	
Financial Assistance and External Agencies	83,806.9		82,858,8	948,3	1
Total Other Expenditures	85,117.9		84,144.7	973.2	

 The variance was mainly due to more services required in the Residential, Respite and Crisis intervention programs to address critical needs in the community.

Manitoba Developmental Centre

The Minitoba Developmental Centre (MDC) is a residential facility providing care, supervision, and developmental programs for adults with mental disabilities from all regions of Minitoba.

The objectives of MDC are to:

- provide resident-sentred developmental care and programs in accordance with the vision shared by staff, residents, family, and the community and in accordance with accepted accreditation standards in the long-term care field;
- specialize in services for geriatric residents, residents with profound or multiple disabilities, and residents with difficult behaviours, focusing MDC's distinctive competencies towards residents who are "at risk in" or "at risk to" the community.
- provide respite care and outreach services to assist community care providers in transitioning and maintaining discharged residents in the community;
- ensure a safe, therapeutic environment for residents, staff and visitors of MDC which includes a wellness/health promotion service delivery model, staff trained in safety and emergency procedures, and safe buildings, plant and equipment;
- explore opportunities for partnerships with community agencies to benefit the residents of MDC;
- maintain liaison with families of residents and encourage active participation in the residents' care, and
- provide orkinitation, training, and ongoing education of staff targeted to MDC's distinctive competencies, the development of leadership consistent with a team-based model of service delivery, and progressive developments in the operation of MDC.

In 1999/00, MDC recorded a number of major accomplishments:

Community Liaison

 In partnership with the Registered Psychiatric Nurses Association of Manitoba, MDC participated in a pilot project on Continuing Competency of Registered Psychiatric Nurses. Over 95 per cent of RPN's at MDC took part.

Developmental Focus on Residents' Needs

- Completed the Individual Planning Process for 300 residents with participation from the residents, their family members, Substitute Decision-Mikers and staff;
- Outfitted two former staff houses to initiate life skills training programs for residents of the Habilitation and Specialty Care programs and facilitate discharge to the community;
- Expanded the Speech Therapy program to full-time;
- Expanded rehabilitation services to include Occupational Therapy focusing on assistment of occupational performance, wheelchair modifications and life kills training;
- Initiated a review of Vocational Training workshops and delivery of vocational and supported employment services to improve efficiency and effectiveness of service;

- Completed renovations to a 20-bed residential area for residents with challenging behaviours which post a risk to themselves, to others or to the environment. A therapeutic milliou model of treatment was implemented, and
- Expanded mini resident councils to several individual residential areas, thereby providing
 residents with opportunities to voice their concerns related to their home are s.

Recommunilization

In collaboration with Adult Service and Regional Operations, developed a list of 23 MDC residents writing for placement in the community when funds are available.

Quality of Care

- Undertook a review of Behaviour Therapy and Psychology Services to evaluate effectiveness
 of clinical supervision and delivery of services;
- Undertook a Quality of Life survey in 1999 with 179 residents, demonstrating that residents are generally satisfied with their quality of life at MDC. The results were presented at the 1999 St. Amant Conference,
- Achieved 3 year accorditation status in October 1999 from the Canadian Council of Health Facilities Accreditation, and
- Establish d outcomes and performance indicators to evaluate the efficacy of the therapeutic milieu in the Habilitation Program.

Improved Management

- 20 care teams completed 5-day team building training and 181 additional staff completed 1day awareness sessions;
- Automated a comprehensive incident recording and reporting system to track incidents related to residents and staff,
- Conducted a comprehensive (eview of Pharmacy costs and of utilization of medications at MDC;
- Administration and Operations conducted a Quality of Service Survey to evaluate satisfaction with laundry, housekeeping, nutrition and food, mobile and financial services provided to each residential area.
- Reviewed organization and delivery of services provided by Vocational Training Workshops undertakin; and
- Re-engineered four additional centre-wide processes which are high cont, high fisk or high volume to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of day-to-day operations.

Health and Safety

- Renegotiated a 3-year contract with the University of Manitobal Dental College for proventative and restorative dental services;
- Submitted a multi-year capital works plan to Government Services and Highways for children standards used for residential care facilities; and

 In collaboration with MDC's Workplace Health and Safety Committee, reduced the risk of residents ingesting harmful cigarette butts by identifying designated smoking areas for staff and residents on the grounds and providing education.

Fiscal Year	Opening Population	New Admission	Re- Admission	Total Admissions	Discharges	Deaths	Closing Popul tion
1990/91	563	4	20	24	19	9	579
1991/92	579	9	20	29	23	11	574
1992/93	574	5	8	13	18	10	559
1993/94	559	3	8	11	10	12	548
1994/95	548	6	1	7	9	7	539
1995/96	539	4	4	8	5	10	632
1996/97	532	4	2	6	10	10	518
1997/98	518	2	2	4	11	15	495
1998/99	496	0	0	0	8	8	482
1999/00	482	2	Ó	2	3	14	467

Manitoba Developmental Centre Admissions and Separations 1990/91 to 1999/00

09-3C Manitoba Development Centre

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	22,972.3	590.0	23,856.2	(863.9)	1
Total Other Expenditures	3,209.8		3.093.3	116.5	

1. The variance was primarily due to delays in recruitment of staff.

Residential Care Licensing

The Residential Care Licenaing Branch is responsible for licensing community residential care resources which provide service to adults with a mintal disability, a mintal illness, or the infirm aged. The branch ensures that care facilities comply with fire, safety, and health standards.

Services provided by the branch include: developing and maintaining standards, processing applications for licensing, monitoring facility operations for conformity with regulated and established licensing criteria, maintaining and providing facility registries, disseminating statistical information, and assisting in program development.

In 1999/00, 178 licensed adult residential care facilities, including 1,342 bed spaces, were inspected for continued compliance with standards.

The branch also provides consultation and support to the designated licensing authorities for approved facilities. In 1999/00, there were 607 approved homes, including 1,167 bed spaces, licensed by Regional Operations Managers and Regional Health Authorities.

09-3D Residential Care Licensing

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimato 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	245.2	4.00	247.2	(2.0)	
Total Other Expenditures	33.6		36.4	(2.8)	

Office of the Vulnerable Persons' Commissioner

The Office of the Vulnerable Persons' Commissioner is responsible for administering the substitute decision-making provisions of *The Vulnerable Persons Living with Mental Dis bility Act.* A substitute decision-maker (SDM) is an individual appointed by the Vulnerable Persons' Commissionar to make decisions for a vulnerable person who requires decisions to be mide and is unable to make them. A vulnerable person is defined in the Act as an edult living with a mental disability who is in need of assistance to meet his or her basic needs with regard to personal care or management of his or her property.

Review of Porsons with Orders of Supervision

Under the transitional provisions of the Act, which was proclaimed on October 4, 1996, the office had three years to review the situations of persons who had Orders of Supervision is used under Part II of *The Mantal Health Act*. A total of 1,584 persons with a mental disability were identified as having an Order of Supervision.

During the first six months of 1999/00, the office completed the process of reviewing the persons identified as having an Order of Supervision. The following indicates the number of applications that were reviewed during this time period.

Number of applications received	161
Number of applications reviewed	414

A number of the applications that were reviewed had been submitted in the previous fiscal year.

The statistics for the persons whose situations were reviewed for the first six months of 1999/00, is well as the preceding thirty months of the transition period, are as follows:

Order rescinded, dismissed or lapsed	163
Alternate disposition	77
Person deceased during the review period	85
SDM appointed	1.259
Total	1.584

Almost all of the 163 persons whose orders were rescinded, dismissed or lapsed were living in community settings. The vast majority of the 77 persons with an alternate disposition were adults who were found to have a Part I order under *The Mental Health Act* or who had relocated to another province.

Over 700 of the 1,259 Individuals who had an SDM appointed were living in developmental centres on October 4, 1999. Approximately 36 per cent of all SDM appointments were for persons 50 years of age or over.

Under The Mental Health Act, the Public Trustie was almost always appointed as the "committee" for persons with a mental disability. However, under the new Act, the Public Trustee is only appointed when there is no one else who is suit ble or willing to perform this role. Most of the periods who were under an Order of Supervision other had no involvement, or limited involvement, with their families. The statistics for the SDMs appointed for persons who formerly had orders are:

Public Trustee		Family and other Persons	
Property only	159*	Property only	1
Personal care only	4	Personal care only	125*
Both areas	1,018	Both areas	70

Denotes that a number of vulnerable persons have a family member or friend as SDM for personal care and the Public Trustee as SDM for property.

When the Public Trustee was appointed as the committee for a person with a mental disability under *The Mental Health Act*, the committee had total dicision-making authority over all facets of that person's life with no limit on the length of time the popointment was in effect. SDM appointed under the new Act can only make decisions in the reas in which decisions are required and for aspectfuld time period. All appointments are regularly reviewed and the persons appoint diare subject to the obligations and reporting requirements stipulated in the Act.

Persons Without Orders of Supervision

Applications for the appointment of an SDM have also been submitted on behalf of persons who were not under an Order of Supervision. The number of applications that were received and the number of appointments that were mide for the period April 1, 1999 to March 31, 2000 are shown below.

Number of applications received	83
Number of SDMs appointed	96

The main reason that the number of appointments exceeds the number of applications received during the fiscal year is that a number of the appointments were made with respect to applications that had been submitted in the previous fiscal year.

For the period October 4, 1996 until March 31, 2000, there were a total of 129 vulnerable adults for whom an SDM has been appointed who did not have an Order of Supervision at the time of application.

The statistics for the SDMs who were appointed are as follows

Public Trustee		Fimily and other persona	
Property only	19"	Property only	2
Personal care	1	Personal care only	14*
Both areas	59	Both areas	44

 Denotes that a number of vulnerable persons have a family member or friend as SDM for personal care and the Public Trustee as SDM for property.

In addition, during the period April 1, 1999 to March 31, 2000, there were a total of 24 applications for the appointment of an emergency SDM. The appointment of an emergency SDM was made for 23 of these applications.

Educational Initiatives

The Act is a relatively new and complex piece of legislation. There is a continuing need to carry out educational activities to advise a wide variety of individuals and groups on the provisions of the Act. During 1999/00, the office responded to inquiries from the public and provided informational presentations to vulnerable persons, parents and relatives of vulnerable persons, staff at Pelican Lake Centre, non-profit and advocacy organizations including Associations for Community Living, students at Red River College, accial workers from First Nations communities and Family Services and Housing community arvice workers. It is estimated that over 320 persons attended these presentations.

A number of educational materials have been developed to assist members of the public, vulnerable persons, relatives and friends of vulnerable persons, and service providers to understand the Act. These materials include a video, fact sheets, brochures and information packages. Fact sheets provide answers to commonly asked questions about SDMs, the hearing process and related topics.

In addition, fact sheets and other materials are sent to individuals in rectipt of notice of application for the appointment of an SDM that has been referred for a hearing. The fact sheets are helpful in providing blockground on why the notice is bling sent, as well all explaining substitute decision-making and the hearing process. Under the Act, notice is given to the vulnerable person, the applicant, the proposed SDM, the person's committee, the perion's nearest relative and friends, and service providers who are involved with the person. As such, a number of notices are sent out for each application. During 1999/00, several thousand fact sheets on SDMs and the hearing process were distributed.

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Verlance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	350.9	4.00	240.5	110.4	
Total Other Expenditures	126.3		252.5	(126.2)	

09-3E Office of the Vulnerable Persons' Commissioner

Child and Family Services

The Child and Family Services Division is responsible for the delivery of a range of high quality social services to strengthen and support Manitoba families. The primary goal of the divisional programs is to support 1 mily unity. How wer, when families are unable to fully carry out their responsibilities, divisional programs provide for the protection and well-being of family membra. When the rights of children and families are in conflict, the division insure that the needs of children are met. The division also supports families through the provision of eccessible, high quality child care. As well, for families with children who have a physical and/or mental disability, division 1 programs provide support to families so that children with a disability may live in the family home.

The programs and services administered by the division are delivered through five program branches: Child, Family and Community Development, Family Concillation, Family Violence Prevention, Child Day Care and Children's Special Services. In April 2000, the structure of the division changed (see organization chart). The following information reflects the structure that was in place during the 1999/00 fiscal year.

The major objectives of the division are to:

 manage, direct, and support divisional programs to ensure effective service delivery within available budgetary and human resources.

The major objectives of the division are achieved through:

- provision of divisional comptrollership and quality control through direction of, consultation with, and assistance to program branches, to onsure that program commitments are met within available budgetary resources;
- direction and co-ordination of divisional financial management processes including budget preparation, monitoring, and reporting;
- direction and co-ordination of the development of policy, program, and service delivery options consistent with governmental and departmental objectives and the changing needs of client groups.
- direction, co-ordination, and monitoring of the implementation of service purchase agreements with agencies in receipt of funding through the division; and
- initiation of and participation in the cross-system co-ordination of services, such as interdepartmental committees and working groups, and First Nations organizations.

Child, Family and Community Development

The objectives of Child, Family and Community Development are to.

- plan and develop a comprehensive continuum of child and family services throughout the province designed to support, supplement, and where noces ary, substitute for parental care.
- operate as a central directorate and provide administrative, program, and funding support to external
 gencies and regional offices to ensure the delivery of high quality services in accordance with
 provincial statutory requirements, policy direction, and budgetary ellocations which:
 - strengthen families to enable children to remain in their own homes;
 - engage communities in the resolution of child and family services issues;
 - protect children at risk of abuse and nigkict;
 - Investigate all gations of child abuse;
 - provide support to pregnant adolescents and young parants;
 - provide substitute parental care, including foster and residential care; and

- provide appropriate permanent placements for children, including adoption, when reunification is no longer an available option.
- manage the Family Support Innovations Fund, including the review and recommendation of potential projects and monitoring and reporting on those approved for funding.

Child and family services are provided through a network of external agencies and regional offices mand tod to provide services under *The Child and Family Services* Act and *The Adoption Act*, and by ancillary and related service organizations that provide a range of preventative and supportive services to children and families, including minor and single parents.

The branch also maintains the Central Adoption, the Post Adoption, and the Child Abuse Registries; the Inter-provincial Desk, which facilitates the inter-provincial movement of children and the transmission of child protection alerts, Intake and Inquiry, and a Provincial Placement Desk, which manages the use of residential cure and treatment resources and Residential Child Care Facility Licensing.

The Child and Family Services Act provides for the licensing and funding of placement resources for children, including foster homes, group homes, and child care treatment centres. The mandated agencies and regional offices approve foster homes, while the branch approves residential care facilities.

The Adoption Act provides for the licensing of not-for-profit adoption agencies.

Activities carried out by the branch include.

- Planning and Development Consultation, development and co-ordination of strategic plans for child and family services system; development and enhancement of new initiatives; consultation and development of service standards and of the Child and Family Services Information System (CFSIS);
- Policy and Legislation Identification of policy development issues; review of legislation; preparation of legislative changes and regulations and implementation of new policies and legislation in the child and family services system;
- Quality Assurance Negotiation of service purchase agreements and review of programs and services mandated or funded by the branch to ensure compliance with legislation and standards;
- Service Promotion and Support Promotion of high quality services delivered by agencies and community organizations through consultation, training, projects, research, and evaluation;
- Budgeting and Funding Funding of child and family services agencies, including the development
 of budgeta, funding mechanisms and contractual relationships, the reviewing of financial
 requirements and results and the maintenance of reporting requirements to ensure accountability for
 public funds; and
- Centralized Provincial Services Administration of centralized provincial services.

Planning and Development

Planning and development activities in 1999/00 reflected government priorities related to communitybased services, program and financial accountability, quality of services, and volume management issues. Child and Family Support activities resulted in the following accomplishments:

- continued support for a strategic shift in services to emphasize femily preservation, family support, and family responsibility through 24 projects supported by the Family Support Innovations Fund;
- continued involvement in cross-system co-ordination efforts through a number of ongoing interdepartmental activities;
- Introduction of case management standards and documentation tools to seven agencies for assessment and development;

- ongoing divelopment of the Child and Family Services Information System (CFSIS) and extension of CFSIS to Dakota Ojibway Child and Family Services, South est Child and Family Services and Sagkeiing Child and Family Services including training and ongoing support,
- signing of a Mimorandum of Understanding with the Minitoba Metls Federation to develop a plan to create a mindate and a service system to deliver child and family services to Metis people and ongoing negotiations with the Assembly of Minitoba Chills on a similar mimorandum for First Nations people; and
- mandating of Peguis Child and Family Services and Kinosao Sipi Minisowin Agency.

Policy and Legislation

In 1999/00, the branch continued to implement Chapter 47, The Adoption and Consequential Amondments Act, and Chapter 48, The Child and Family Services Amondment and Consequential Amondments Act. These Acts came into force by proclamation on March 15, 1999. Implementation included the following:

- distribution of copies of the Acts and regulations;
- addition of new prescribed forms to the Child and Family Services Information System;
- licensing of two adoption sigencies, Adoption Options Inc. and Canadian Advocates for African Children;
- ongoing consultation and training for child and family services agencies, child care facilities, licensed doption agencies and the courts regarding the new legislation and regulations; and
- implementation of regulations and procedures to support the investigation of reports of abuse against a person who works for a child and family services agency or for a child placement resource.

Quality Assurance

The branch continued to give priority to on-uring that quality services were provided by external agencies. Activities included:

- program reviews of residential child care facilities;
- follow-up on 22 Chief Medical Examiner's (CME) reports on the deaths of 24 children;
- extensive consultation and support in the development of action plans to address the recommendations contained in program reviews, CME's and Children's Advocate's reports;
- finalizing of 3 new program delivery agreements and monitoring of 24 ongoing agreements with project sponsors under the Winnipeg Development Agreement; and
- fenewal of service and purchase agreements with external agencies.

Service Promotion and Support

In 1999/00, program consultation and support were provided to agencies, regional offices, and other service orginizations through individual and group meetings, work hops, gency visits, ricords management, and forms distribution. Achievement, resulting from this activity were:

- provision of four modules of Competency-Based Training to 623 direct service workers from the child and family services system, Competency-Based Training for Trainers for 13 persons, and 13 issuespecific workshops for 325 perticipants and the provision of nine modules of Youth Care Competency-Based Training to 478 youth care workers;
- ongoing training of Child abuse committees;
- ongoing consultation with child and family services agencies and child care facilities regarding legislation, policy, services, resources, and funding,
- preparation of the "Orientation Guide to Adoptions"; and
- training and ongoing support to agencies involved in testing new case management standards and documentation tools.

Budgeting and Funding

As part of the ongoing work to improve financial management, efficiency, and increased accountability, branch activitias resulted in the following accomplishments for 1999/00:

- continued support and monitoring of the projects funded under the Family Support Innovations Fund to ensure agency accountability and reporting;
- Implementation of additional service purchase agreements with agencies to improve accountability for the use of government funds;
- continued participation in the development of a strategic plan; and
- approval and funding of nine new projects and continued funding of 12 multi-year projects under the Winnipeg Development Agreement (Program 8), Innovative and Preventive Child and Family Services.

Funding was provided to three main agency groupings:

- Mandated Agencies;
- Child Care Treatment Centres/Residential Care Facilities; end
- Other External Agencies.

Mandated Agencies

Funding was provided in support of the following:

- <u>Central Support/Program Grants</u> These grants provide funding for Central Support. Services to Communities and Families, Protective Family Services, and Children in Care.
- <u>Basic Maintenance</u> These payments provide for the basic cost of children in care and are paid by agencies mainly to foster parents.
- Special Rate/Needs These funds are In support of the special needs costs for all children in care.
- Exceptional Circumstances Fund This fund is administered by the department to help offset unusually high-cost needs for children in care, the cost of approved Level V placements, and the high costs related to services provided in northern/remote locations.
- <u>Support Services</u> These funds are for the provision of individual, family and group support services for people at high risk.

- Project Grants These grants are in support of individually approved projects which:
 - address caseload, volume or management issues, or
 - pilot innovative approaches to preventive or treatment services.
- <u>Directorate Programs</u> Repatriation of children from Munitoba to their home province, adoption subsidies, Foster Parents' Insurance program, and legal aid.

Included in this category are five community-based child and family services agencies, 10 First National child and family services agencies, and five regional offices:

- Child and Family Services Aconcias: Winnipeg Child and Family Services Child and Family Services of Central Manitoba Child and Family Services of Western Manitoba Jewish Child and Family Service Churchill Child and Family Services
- First Nations Agencies: Dakota Ojibwry Child ind Family Sirvices West Region Child and Family Sirvices South it Child and Family Services Anishinasbe Child and Family Services (East - Intertribal) Ani him be Child and Family Services (West) Awasi Agency of Northern Minitoba Cree Nation Child and Family Caring Agency Island Like First Nations Family Services Piguis Child and Family Services Kinosao Sipl Minisowin Agency
- Regional Offices: Eastman

Interlaka Parki nd Norman Thompson

Child Care Treatment Centres/Residential Care Facilities

Funding was provided in support of the following:

- <u>Central Support/Program Grants Treatment Centres</u> These grants provide funding for central support and specialized programs operated by the four child-care treatment centres.
- Project Grants These funds are in support of treatment initiatives.
- <u>Residential Care Excilities</u> These funds are in support of the client costs for placement in group homes or child-care treatment centres (Level III - V), and are puid directly to the facility. Admissions are screened through the Provincial Placement Desk.
- Residential Support Services These funds are in support of supplementary child care workers to
 provide additional support for individual, high-needs, children placed in residential care facilities, or for
 the stabilization of the facility as a whole.

Included in this category are 41 residential care facilities (272 beds) operated by 4 child care treatment contres and 13 other organization//agencies:

 <u>Child Care Treatment Centres</u>: New Directions for Children, Youth and Families Knowles Centre Inc. Marymound Inc. Mecdonald Youth Services

Residential Gaous Home Orbanizations/Agencies
 B & L Homes for Children Ltd.
 Child and Family Services of Western Manitoba
 Church of God in Christ
 Churchill Health Centre
 Green Pastures Retreat Inc
 Heidorsson Group Homes
 Hydra House Ltd
 Jewish Child and Family Service (Chevrah Group Home)
 Jessie Group Home Inc
 Project Neichewam Inc.
 Buest Group Home Services Inc
 St. Ament Centre
 Ndinaw mang anag Endaswaad Inc.

Other External Agencies

Included in this category are 18 agencies that receive funding from the department for a variety of child and family services programs:

Villa Rosa Inc. Health Sciences Centre (Child Protection Centre) University of Manitoba (Elizabeth Hill Counselling Centre) Family Centre of Winnipeg Inc. (Family Support Program) Ma Mawl Wi Chi Itata Centre Inc. Manitoba Association of Residential Treatment Resources Inc. Manitoba Metis Federation Inc. Sport Manitoba (Drug Awareness Program) Pregnancy Distress Service Inc. Rossbrook House Inc. The Pas Action Centre Inc. Big Sisters and Big Brothers Association of Winnipeg Inc. Big Brothers and Sisters of Brandon Inc. Big Brothers and Sisters of Morden/Winkler and District Inc. Big Brothers and Sisters of Portage Ja Prairie Inc. Youth for Christ (Winnipeg) Incorporated

Centralized Provincial Services

The branch has responsibility for co-ordinating and providing specific services. the Central Adoption Registry, the Post-Adoption Registry, the Child Abuse Registry, the Inter-provincial Dask, Intake and Inquiry, the Provincial Placement Desk and Residential Child-Care Facility Licensing.

In 1999/00, activities in this area resulted in:

- placement of 127 children through the Centrel Adoption Registry;
- 690 new registrations on the Post-Adoption Registry, and 356 reunions facilitated on behalf of registrants;
- 2,237 reports to Manitoba agencies and regional offices of alleged physically and sexually abused children;
- recording of a total of 2,803 incidents of abuse and 2,182 abusers on the Child Abuse Registry;
- 456 employers/others were granted access to child abuse registry checks where an employee or a
 volunteer would work with children;
- processing of a total of 541 classs by the Inter-provincial Desk involving 259 out-of-province cases, 23
 repetriations of children and 259 inter-provincial elerts;
- investigation of 350 concerns raised through Intake and Inquiry;
- the review and prioritization of all placements into 272 residential treatment beds; and
- inspection of 51 child-care facilities, including 468 bed spaces, for continued compliance with the Regulation.
Number of Children by Present Status Who Have Been Placed¹ By Reporting Agency as at Maratil 31, 2000 (numbers include both lederal; and provincial responsibility)

	1	897/98				1998	/99			195	9/00	
Service Providers	Wards	VPA'	Olher	Tolal	Wards	VPA	Olher	Total	Wards	VPA	Olhar	Tolal
Child and Family Services Agencies										100		0.000
Winnipeg Child and Family Services	1,512	435	522	2,469	1632	410	456	2,498	1656 61	450	403	2.509
Child and Family Services of Central Manil.obs	64	29	54	147	63	23	34 27	120	124	28 19	23 50	193
Child and Family Services of Western Manitoba	121	13	24	158	130	13	2	170	4	3		11
Newish Child and Family Services	5	4	1	10 12	6	1	6	20	8	1	4	13
Sub-Total	1706	481	609	2795	1 839	453	525	2,817	1853	501	484	2 8 3 8
Nallve Agencies				- 20	4.94		00	042	213	13	53	279
Dakota Oilbway Child and Family Services	158	16	65	239	171	\$	66 35	242	213	41	49	300
West Region Child and Family Services	161	51	56	268	f82	43	35	260	243	263	49	506
Soultmast Child and Family Services	208	219	1	428	224	233	13	138	35	14	4	500
An ishinaabe Child and Family Services- Easi	90	52	9	151	93	32		203	136	40	11	189
Anishinaabe Child and Family Services- West	127	49	24	200	133	45	25		92	13.0	36	258
Awasis Agency of Northern Maniloba	89	96	46	231	130	73	48 6-9	251 284	166	77	52	315
Cree Nation Child and Family Caring Agency	136	45	47	228	155	60	28	88	44	12	52 16	72
Island Lake FIRSI Nations Family Services	38	15	23	76	43	17	28	00	\$5	t3	1	69
Peguis Child and Family Services		-	-	-			-			6	6	52
Kinisao Sipi Minisowan Agency"			•				•		40	0	0	52
SubTotal	1,007	543	271	1 8 2 1	1,131	508	291	1930	1 256	609	228	2,093
Regional Offices												
Eastman	46	22	14	62	68	22	5	93	59	16	13	88
Interlake	50	31	10	91	41	26	21	68	43	26	13	82
Parkland	77	6	14	97	71	16	22	109	75	12	27	114
Nomai	31	16	22	69	41	14	23	78	41	13	25	79
Thompson	177	10	84	271	160	24	59	243	152	29	93	274
Sub-Tolal	381	85	144	610	379	102	130	6 11	370	96	171	637
TOTAL	3,094	1.109	1,024	5,227	3,349	1,063	946	5,358	3 ,479	1 205	883	5,568

1. "Presed" refers to those presents other than the home of the child's parents or porsons in who se cars the child has been at the time of precentant

73

2. Voluniory Procement Agreemant. 3. Incorporated as a child and Ismaily services agoncy April 1. 1999.

Number of Children by Placement Placed by Reporting Agency

(seal March 31 0000)

2

Service Providers	Foster Home s ¹	Residential Care ²	●lher Placement Resources	Selected Adaption Probation	Olher NonPay Care Living Ariangements*	Tol,al
Child and Family Services Agencies Winnipeg Child and Family Services	1691	179	421	60	138	2.509
	81	3	14	7	7	112
Child and Family Services of Central Manil.oba	123	16	28	7	19	193
Child and Family Services of Western Manitoba	11	0	0	0	0	11
Jewish Child and Family Service	5	5	2	0	1	13
Churchill Health Centre	5	3	6	0		
Sub-Tolal	1,911	203	465	94	165	2,838
Native Agencies						
Dakota Ojibway Child and Family Services	171	10	72	0	26	279
West Region Child and Family Services	194	3	60	0	43	300
Southeast Child and Family Services	421	10	20	0	55	\$06
Anish habe Child and Family Services - East	46	2	0	4	1	53
Anishing abe Child and Family Services - West	179	7	1	0	2	189
Awasis Agency of Northern Maniloba	194	4	26	0	34	258
One Nation Child and Family Caring Agency	206	24	25	0	60	315
Island Lake First Nations Family Services	57	8	1	0	6	72
	62	1	2	0	4	6 9
Peguis Child and Family Services* Kinisao Sipi Minisowan Agency*	35	3	12	0	2	52
Sub-To tal	1565	72	219	4	233	2,093
	1965	7.8				
Regional Offices	72	3	0	0	13	86
Eastmai	66	5	3	0	8	82
Interlake	81	3	14	ĩ	15	114
Parkland	32	9	23	0	15	79
Norman		19		2	35	274
Thompsen	1.30	13	02	2		2.77
Sub-Total	387	39	122	3	86	637
TOTAL	3 863	314	806	101	464	5 5 6 8

Includes regulariale and apolicial rate foster homes.
 Includes private group homes, own-egency group homes, and residential treatment centres.
 Includes St. Amont Contre, Menirobe Youth Centre, hospit ets and other facilities.

3.

Incarporated as a child and family services agency April 1 1999 4

Child Maintenance Provincial Days of Care Actuals 1999/00

	Fo	sler & Special I	Rale Care			
Agency Region	Levell	Level 11.V	Sub-Total	Residential Care*	Tolal	
Child and Family Services Agencies						
Winnipeg Child and Family Services	247 554	519,308	766,860	58,652	825,512	
Child and Family Services of Central Manitoba	4773	28,718	33,491	1.047	34,538	
Child and Family Services of Western Manitoba	19 280	30,909	50,189	5,667	\$5 876	
Jewish Child and Family Service	87	2,746	2833	0	2833	
Churchill Health Centre	547	2,148	2,795	1766	4 561	
SubTotal	272,341	583 827	85-6,168	67.152	923 320	
Native Agencies						
Dakola Ojow ay Child and Family Service s	5,319	8,858	14,177	0	14 177	
West Region Child and Family Services	13,314	25,766	39,080	378	39458	
Southeast Child and Family Services	13,194	35.105	48,299	739	49,030	
Ans hinaabe Child and Family Services - East	2,787	7,382	10,169	0	10 169	
Anishinaabe Child and Family Services - West	15 569	18,968	34,557	754	35,321	
Awasis Agency of Nonliern Manitoba	0	11.083	1083	0	11083	
Cree Nation Child and Family Caring Agency	16,533	11,177	27,710	709	28,419	
Island Lake First Nations Family Services	0	6,827	6827	153	6980	
Peguis Child and Family Services	4 387	14767	19,154	0	19,154	
Kiniseo Sipi Misisowan Agency	0	458	45 B	0	458	
Sub-Tolal	71103	140,411	211,514	2,743	214 257	
Regional Offices						
Easiman	9,398	5757	15 15 5	B51	16,006	
Interiake	14,102	13,652	27,754	1,323	29,077	
Part: land	11,143	23025	34,168	1,567	35735	
Noiman	14,395	8074	22.469	2 8 18	25287	
Thompson	63 223	12.378	75,601	5,771	81372	
Sub-Total	112,261	52 8 8 5	175,147	12,330	187 477	
Tolal	455,705	787.124	1 242,829	8 2,225	1,325,054	

" Inducios group homes and child care treatment eenties.

Provincial Caseload by Calegory as al March 31, 2000

Fourier Broulders	Number of Children In Care	Number of Families Receiving Services	Number of Unmarried Adolescent Parents	Total
Service Providers				
Child and Family Services Agencies	0.000	3,054	153	5,716
Winnipeg Child and Family Services	2509	391	26	529
Child and Family Services of Central Maniloba	112	589	47	829
Child and Family Services of Western Manif.oba	193	146	0	157
Jewish Child and Family Services	11	15	o o	28
Churchill Health Centre	13		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Su b. To lai	2,838	4,195	226	7259
Native Agencles		-		72.4
Dakola Oldwary Child and Family Services	279	432	23	734
West Region Child and Family Services	300	507	0	8D7
Southeast Child and Family Services	5 06	304	8	818
An shinaabe Child and Family Services - East	53	185	3	241
Anishinaabe Child and Family Services - West	189	67	1	257
Avaisis Agency of Northern Manhoba	258	544	58	860
Cree Nation Child and Family Caling Agency	315	261	13	589
Island Lake First Nations Family Services	72	142	19	233
Peguis Child and Family Services*	69	93	1	163
Kinisao Sipi Minisowan Agency*	52	67	12	131
Sub-Total	2.093	2,602	130	48.33
Regional Offices				
Easiman	88	128	Ô	216
Interlake	82	256	6	344
Parkland	114	32 4	16	454
Norman	79	131	1	211
Thompson	274	3 15	18	607
Sub-Total	637	1,154	41	1,832
TOTAL	5,598	7,951	405	13.924

· Mecaperated as a child and Ipate services apartary April 1. 1999

76

History of Funding (\$000)

Service Provider	1997/98	1995/99	1999/00
Child and Family Services Agencies			
Winnipeg Child and Family Services	\$65,5373	\$67 534 7	\$73,385,7
Child and Family Services of Central Mantoba	3 265 6	3 4 3 0 2	3,398.9
Child and Family Services of Western Man Itoba	45416	4604.0	4892.7
Jewish Child and Family Service	2550	2622	312 6
Churwhill Headth Centre	55.8	1261	236.3
Sub Total	73,6553	75,957.2	82226.2
Native Agencies			
Dakola O loway Child and Family Services	625.8	722.1	759.4
West Region Child and Family Services	18246	20122	2,2494
Southoast Child and Family Services	1,7167	1,965 6	25879
Anishinaste Child and Family Services - East	13891	1.4702	6037
Anishinaabe Child and Family Services - West	1.586.7	1,6116	1,7395
Awas is Agency of Northern Maniloba	6487	596.3	723.7
Cree Nation Child and Family Caling Agency	7714	8770	1,3371
slaud Lake First Nations Family Services	2416	302.1	2994
Peguis Child and Family Services"	2410	302.1	8705
Ki iisao Sipi Minisowan Agency			26.8
Sub-Tolal	8,784,6	9547.1	11,1774
Regional Offices			
Eastnan	623.1	618.8	635 1
Intellake	1.2296	1443.5	1,5180
Parkland	1218 4	14652	1,711 7
Noman	8756	10465	10802
Thempson	3,3192	36567	3 992 6
Sub-Total	7,2659	B 230.7	8,9376
Directorate Programs	230.9	235.0	335.9
MANDATED AGENCIES SUBTOTAL	89,936.7	93,970.0	102677.1
Treatment Centres - Grants	3.840.4	3,8337	3.963.2
Residen la Care	14,383 9	15 190 6	16 520 3
Olher Agencies/Programs	6,162.6	6,408 1	6 4 3 9 4
TOTAL	\$114,323.6	5119,402.4	\$129600.0
TOTAL	\$114,323.6	5119,402.4	\$1

· Incorporated as a child and family services agency April 1. 1999

lource	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Child and Family Services Agencies			
Vinnipeg Child and Family Services	1,291	1,231	1,192
Child and Family Services of Central Manitoba	371	254	
Child and Family Services of Western Manitoba	86	103	186
	14	6	86
ewish Child and Family Service		2	7
Churchill Health Centre	Û	2	0
Sub-Total	1,762	1,596	1,471
Native Agencies			
Dakota Ojibway Child and Family Services	199	115	132
West Rigion Child and Family Services	213	180	124
	115	128	164
Southeast Child and Family Services			11
Anishinaabe Child and Family Services - East	33	33	
Anishinanbe Child and Family Services - West	32	45	41
Awasis Agency of Northern Manitoba			
Cree Nation Child and Family Caring Agency	89	86	110
aland Lake First Nations Family Services			-
Peguis Child and Family Services*		-	4
Kini to Sipi Minisow in Agency*			
Sub-Total	681	587	422
Perlevel Officer			
Regional Offices		17	47
asiman	4		
ntorlake	86	124	109
Parkland	90	65	62
Norman	89	41	36
Thompson	91	86	68
Sub-Total	362	333	344
Total	2,805	2,516	2,237
Age of Child			
Under 1 year	63	28	31
	276	173	133
1 - 3 years	1,383	1,158	1.045
4 - 10 years	809	785	701
11 - 15 years			
16 and over	294	<u>372</u>	327
Total	2,805	2,516	2,237
Raw of Child			
Sex of United		1,079	898
Sex of Child	1.139	I.Uro	Uau
Male Female	1,139	1,437	1,339

Report on Alleged Physically & Sexually Abused Children in Manitoba

* incomposited as a child and family services agency April 1, 1999.

	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Selected Manitoba Placements ¹	105	113	120
Selected Out-of-Province Placements		3	7
Total Selected Adoptions	105	118	127
Private [*] Placements Opened	37	22	36
De Facto [®] Placements Opened	28	36	37

1. Selected Adoption - A child is placed for adeption with approved applicants by the director or agency having permittent guardianship of the child. Private Adoption - A child may be edopted by persons with whom he/she has been placed directly by the biological parent.

 De Facto - A child may be adopted by parsens who have hed him/him in their austody without financial assistance for at least throw yours.

Youth Emergency Crisis Stabilization System (YECSS)

YECSS was established in 1997/98 with funds redirected from Seven Oaks Centre. YECSS, In partnership with major stakeholders, is concerned primarily with high-risk children and youth. The stakeholders are Macdonald Youth Services, Winnipeg Child and Family Services, Ma Mawi Wi Chiltete Centre Inc., Marymound Inc., Project Neecheewam, and Children's Hospital Emergency.

The leadership role in the development and delivery of the service has been assigned to Macdonald Youth Services - Youth Emergency Services. The system is designed to provide a 24-hour emergency crisis response, seven days a week. The following are services provided:

- Intake/Triage; .
- Mobile crisis capability (mobile crisis teams consisting of a clinically trained person and a youth careworker):
- Crisis stabilization units (one six-bed facility for boys and one six-bed unit for girls);
- Short-term treatment capability for children/families at or following the crisis until the mandated child care agency can respond:
- Case minagement function, particularly where the child/family is in crisis for a longer period of time and where the mandated child care agency is unable to meet the child's/family's needs;
- Home-based Crisis support/homemaker services; and
- Youth-emergency education service to facilitate the development of appropriate education plana.

Total Requests for Service	5,546
Total Number Resolved by Telephone	3.369
Number of Community Viaita by Mobile Crisis Team	2,177
Home-based Crisis Services	144
Crisis Stabilization Units - No. of Admissions	764
Referrals to Brief Treatment	522
Individual Clients Served	2,257
Youth-Emergency Education Service	186
Crisis Stabilization Unit - Day Care	2 232

April 1999 - March 2000

09-4A Child, Family and Community Development

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	PTE	Estimato" 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	3,660.3	65.00	3,418.8	233.7	1
Other Expenditures	3,620.4		3,609.1	11.3	
Maintenance of Children and External Agencies	129,600.0		122,225 7	7,374,3	2
Family Support Innovations Fund	2.427.4		2,500.0	(72.6)	
Total Other Expenditures	135,647.8		128.334.8	7,313.0	

The 1999/2000 Estimate reflects amounts as displayed in the Printed Main Estimates on behalf of the departments of Family Services and Housing, as well as an elecation from the Enabling Appropriations respecting workforce adjustment costs.

- The variance is primarily due to the reorganization of the branch, and higher that expected severance and vacation pay.
- The variance is primarily attributable to increased costs at Winnipeg Child and Family Services and increased maintenance costs in general.

Family Conciliation

The Family Conclitation program is delivered through the Child and Family Services Division of the Department of Family Services and Housing, and is the social services component of the Court of Queen's Bench, Family Division.

Family conciliation services are provided in Winnipeg directly by Family Conciliation, and in other areas of the province by regional office staff, funded by the Regional Operations Branch of the department in the Westman, Parkland, Norman, and Thompson Regions.

The objective of Family Conciliation is to:

 ensure the availability of a range of high quality dispute resolution services to families disrupted by separation or divorce, and where ongoing parenting of the children is of primary concern.

The major objectives of Family Conciliation are achieved through the following activities:

- administration of Family Conciliation Services (Winnipeg), which provides social services support to the Family Division of the Court of Queen's Bench, including Information/referral, court-ordered assessments, mediation, conciliation counselling, group programs, and the Parent Education Program;
- development and monitoring of program policies and service standards across the province;
- provision of training, consultation, and leadership in the development of regional services, and
- Consultation with other agencies, professionals and the public.

These activities involve the provision of the following services:

- Information and Referral is an intake service. Individuals and families are assisted in addressing issues and id ntifying possible solutions, are informed of community and government services which may be appropriate to their situation, and are referred accordingly.
- Conciliation Counselling is short-term, separation-related counselling focussed on parents' and children's adjustment to family reorganization after separation/divorce.

- Mediation is a structured, short-term intervention to assist families undergoing separation/divorce in diveloping a parenting plan, to maintain a continuing relationship amongst children, parents, and extended family, and to protect children from parental conflict. This is a preferred intervention for resolving custody/access conflicts.
- Court-Ordered Assessment Reports provide comprehensive family evaluations, professional opinions, and recommendations to the Court concerning the bist interests of Children in custody, access, and guardianship mitters. This process serves as a vehicle for the resolution of custody/ access/guardianship disputes by providing information that can be used in sittlement meetings. Inwyer negotiations, or litigation as circumstances warrant. It serves parents, children, lawyers, and the court by recommending courses of action and will ble resources that may serve to melliorate the destructive impact of conflict on the families involved.
- The Parent Education Program, "For the Sake of the Children," educates and focuses parents on the needs of their children in the context of divorce. It is very helpful to all separating parents, and is an essential first step to mediation.
- Children's Therapeutic Group for children aged 8 12, assists childran experiencing trauma, loss, and reorganization after divorce. This ten-week session is designed for children living in families experiencing severe parantal conflict.
- Staff presentations on children and divorce to community organizations, and participation in various community and government committees.

During 1999/2000, accomplishments for the Family Conciliation program, throughout the province, included:

- provision of high quality family conciliation services, which resulted in a total of 2,401 client service contacts and 2,359 clients served through the Parent Education Program, "For the Sake of the Children," for which implementation and development has continued;
- provision of conciliation counselling services (23 client service contacts);
- provision of mediation services to 567 families;
- a total of 205 court-ordered assessment reports; and
- delivery of children's workshops, involving 8 children.

In addition to these accomplishments, ongoing activities in 1999/2000 included

- continued public information and education, through numerous presentations and meetings, to inform the public of the needs of divorcing families, and the services provided by Family Conciliation;
- continued education to describe the service to lawyers and the courts, to encourage more appropriate referral and utilization of the service;
- review and determination of effective educational programming for divorcing/separating parents and their children; and
- Ongoing development and review of program guidelines.

09-4B Family Conciliation

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefite	641.1	15 50	789.8	(148.7)	
Total Other Expenditures	145.4		103.1	42.3	

Family	Conciliation	Service	Profile
	Gondination		

	1997/98					1995/99					1999100							
Type ofService	Wog	114 412 - MBN	Park+ 1end	1 Mang- aon	Nor- nun	Tolel	Wpg	West- m⊉n	Park- land	ThomP' son	Nor- m∂n	Total	Wpg	West- man	Park- land	Thomp- son	Nor - man	Tetal
Information and Referrat	14-06	48;	34	84	14	2,023	1,061	591	da	114	27	1.837	785	7 02	9	109	13	1,598
Consistion Consisting	41	9	5	В	15	78	27	0	7	9	5	55	9	3	0	10	۱	23
Mediation	522	69	13	18	16	638	\$31	95	0	27	14	675	420	12	3	bb	13	567
Court Condened Assictantions (Rep0) L	131	37	16	17	17	218	161	46	21	16	16	260	135	37	15	7	14	205
Chadrents Group	25	۵	6	6	•	26	20	0	٩	-	-	20	8	•	-	-	24	8
Partin Education Pressum	1,322	205	16	13	69	1625	1841	232	24	17	20	2,134	2,131	325	۰	۰	٠	\$'3 2 8
TOTAL	3,448	805	56	14.0	131	4,60.8	3641	972	104	183	82	4,982	3,473	1,0-19	27	170	-41	4,7.60

Family Conciliation Mediation Referral Sources

	Wilmipeg		Westman Region		Park Jand R eok m		Thompson Realon		Norm an R0 ₂ ion						
Referral Source	1997/98	1938/95	1999100	1997/98	1958/99	1999/00	1997/98	1998/99	19519700	1937:98	£938/99	1999401	19117798	1996/99	1999/00
Court	12%	11%	13%	22%	25*6	15%	6%	11%	-	a	25%	5%	13%	14%	0
arryar.	21%	18%	13%	42%	33%	44%	48%	22%		33%	30%	25%	31%	22%	23%
ie II	66%	59%	72%	35%	4 1%	39 39%	20%	58%	100%	54%	33%	54%	50%	50%	62%
llver	1%	12%	2%	1 96	176	196	3%	11%	6	17%	11%	16%	6 6%	14%	15%
la foi	1 100%	100 %	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100 %	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	180 %

Family Violence Prevention

The major objective of Family Violence Prevention (formerly Family DI pute Service.) Is to:

 promote the elimination of violence against women through the support of a continuum of communitybased services.

The activities carried out by Family Violence Prevention are as follows:

- development and implementation of policies and program standards for women's shellers, and support services for women, children and men caught in the cycle of family violence;
- provision of grants, monitoring, and evaluation of agencies financial operations and service delivery to ensure accountability for public funds, and
- provision of program consultation and support to external agencies.

These activities involve the provision of the following:

- Partner Abuse Program
- Women's Resource Centres

Partner Abuse Program

The purpose of the Partner Abuse Program is to support the development and mainten nee of services to women, children and man caught in the cycle of family violence, through the provision of funding and consultation to community-based agencies which offer crisis and support services. The Family Violence Prevention program also develops and monitors program policies, and has developed service standards for shelters.

Funding to community-based partner abuse services is provided through grants from the Family Violence Prevention program. Grants to shelt is are in support of short-term crisis counselling for residential and non-residential clents, children's counselling, and follow-up aervices to support women in becoming independent of their abusers. Funding is also provided through per diem payments from Employment and income Assistance and Rigional Operations. Two shelters receive funding to operate crisis lines. Grants are also provided for other specialized councilling and treatment programs for victims, for children who have witnessed family violence, and for abusers.

In 1999/00, the Family Violence Prevention program was allocated funding to support the following organizations, which as init Manitoba women, children and men caught in the cycle of family violence.

Women's Shelters;

- Eastman Crisis Centre Inc.
- Ikwi-Widdjiitiwin Inc.
- Parkland Crisis Centre Inc.
- Portage Women's Shelter Inc.
- Nova House Inc.
- South Central Committee on Family Violence Inc.
- The Pas Committee for Women in Crisis Inc.
- Thompson Crisis Centre Inc.
- Osborne House Ino
- Westman Women's Shelter (Young Women's Christian Association of Brandon)
- Crisis Lines;
 - Winnipeg Regional Line (Osborne House)
 - Provincial Toll-Free Line (ikwe-Widdjiltiwin Inc.)

- Residential Second Stage Programs;
 - Alpha House
 - Semaritan House Ministries Inc.
 - W.I.S.H. (Women in Second Stage Housing) Inc.
 - Swan Valley Crisis Centre Inc.
 - L'Entre-temps des Franco-Manitobalnes Inc.
- Urban Support Programs;
 - Immigrant Women's Association of Manitoba Inc.
 - Evolve Program (Klinic Inc.)
 - Family Violance Counselling Program (Ma Mawi Wi Chi Itata Centre Inc.)
 - Native Women's Transition Centre Inc.
 - The Laurel Centre
 - Family Violance Counselling Program (Norwest Co-op Community Health Centre)
- Supervised Support Programs;
 - Winnipeg Children's Access Agency
 - Brandon Access/Exchange Service
 - Thompson Access/Exchange Centre
- Specialized Programs.
 - Couples Counselling Program (Elizabeth Hill Counselling Centre)
 - You Can Stop Vickince Program for Men

Number of Clients Served by Residential Second Stage Programs

Type of Program	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Interim Housing"	120	182	116
Long-Term Second Stage**	269	281	348
Total	389	463	464

Includes women and children in Shelter Interim Housing.

** Includes non-residential, residential and follow-up women and children.

Number of Clients Using Other Partner Abuse Services (Urban Support Programs)

1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
1,860	2,098	1,631

Type of Agency	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Shelters Women's Resource Centres	33,313 93	34,941 232	37,327 108
Total	33,406	36,173	37,435

Number of Residential Bednights - Women's Shelter Services

Number of Clients Served by Shelters

Type of Service	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Crisis Intervention: - Residential - Non-residential	1,746 1,230	1,678 955	1,741 1,072
Children's Counselling	1,242	1,255	1,362
Follow-up Counselling	548	539	685
Total	4,764	4,427	4,860

Number of Calls Received by Crisis/Information Lines

Type of Service	1997/98	1998/99	1998/00
Winnipeg Region Provincial Toll-Free Other Crisis Lines	9.872 1.731 15,468	9,988 2,241 14,914	9,320 2,150 14,282
Total	27,071	27,143	25,752

Women's Resource Centres

Women's Resource Cintres provide information, programs, services, and training to assist women in making inform dichologis. Resource centres also undertake community development activities to assist women in the achievement of locial, conomic, and/or legal reforms.

For the 1999/00 flicel year, the Family Violence Prevention Branch funded eight women's resource centres (four larger centres and four smaller centres):

- Fort Garry Women's Resource Centre Inc.
- North End Women's Centre Inc.
- Women's Safe Haven/Resource Service Inc.
- Pluri-elles (Manitoba) Inc.
- Evergreen Women's Resource Centre Inc.
- Lake hore Women's Resource Centre Inc.
- Swan Valley Crisis Centre Inc.
- Snow Lake Centre on Family Violence Inc.

Number of Clients Served by Four Larger Women's Resource Centres

	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Total*	13,227	10,814	10,804

Includes information/refurnal, counselling and community-based second stage clients

Number of Clients Served by Four Smaller Women's Resource Centres*

	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Total	3,502	3,406	3,462

All four smaller women's resource centres were newly classified as such in 1999/00. The data will roll into one combined in this for women's resource centres next Annual Report.

During 1999/00, the accomplishments of the Family Violence Prevention program included

- new funding to the Evolve Program of Klinic Community Health Centre for a clinical supervisor who will provide support upon request for all provincially funded agencies delivering services to those crught in the cycle of violence;
- provision of financial support to domestic violence service agencies which provide shelter, support, and/or treatment for approximately 10,000 women, children and men who are affected by family violence.
- provision of additional resources to Pluri-liter (Minitobia) inc. to deliver long-term counselling services to women in rural Effincephone communities;
- provision of ongoing consultation with service providers rugarding policy issues and specific operational matters;
- service provision from four funded women's resource centres that deliver services to approximately 11,000 women and their families;
- Introduction of enhanced financkil support for all shelter agencies for the addition of one follow-up worker,
- new funding to the Lynn Lake Friendship Centre to establish a safe home facility service in the community;
- a general increase in funding to all external agencies;
- new funding provided to the communities of Russell and Dauphin to impliminitial program that provides countielling revices for man who ricognize their issue in behaviours.
- the branch being assigned the responsibility of becoming the provincial representative on the Fed rel/Provincial/Territorial New Identities Working Group – a project that assists women in life threatening situation by providing them with a new social insurance number and by recreating tax records and federal social benefits as an option of Lat refort; and
- observation of Domestic Violence Prevention Month through a variety of activities in the month of November.

Ongoing activities during the 1999/00 fiscal year were as follows:

- continued to undertake an analysis of funding models for all funded agencies and the corresponding financial implications to ensure that current identifiable vervice trends are reflected;
- continued to work with spencies to explore options regarding funding concerns raised;
- continued training of government employees on domestic violence issues and responses;
- continued to consult with funded agencies to solicit input into policy and procedures to resolve specific operational issues, and to assist in case in negement of client issues;
- monitored service purchase agreements with all egencies;
- negotiated new service purchase agreements and renegotiated those due to expire;
- Implemented administrative and program standards for all funded agencies to ensure efficient and effective service delivery;
- monitored the implementation of resommendations presented in agency audit reviews;
- undertook annual egency reviews;
- maintained and streamlined statistical systems;
- organized and hosted provincial meetings with shelters, women's resource centres, residential second stage programs, crisis centres and committees; and
- organized and implemented regional meetings on family violence prevention with relevant community take holders (RCMP, AFM, Child Welfare, etc.) in order to foster a community prevention/ intervention approach based on communication, support and referral.

Category	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Shelter	\$2,263.6	\$2,283.8	\$2,329.4
Fee Waiver	35.4	20 2	47.2
Crisis Lines	398 5	401.9	409.9
Facility Cost	658.8	780.8	681 <u>,</u>
Sheller Sub-Total	3.356.3	3,486.5	3,448.0
Committees	9.7	9.8	15.0
Second Stage	231.3	233.4	238.0
Urban Support Program	1,228.2	1,238.7	1,201.8
Women's Resource Centres	720.0	747.1	815.2
Lavoie Inquiry Initiatives	47.5	481.9	613.8
Olher	8	50.0	
Total	\$5,593.0	\$6,247.4	\$6,331.8

History of Funding to External Agencies by Type of Service (\$000)

09-4C Family Violence Prevention

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaties and Employee Benefilts	407.8	10.00	486.3	(76.5)	
Other Expenditures	99.9		90.9	9.0	
External Agencies	6,331.8		6.930.2	(698.4)	1
Total Other Expenditures	6,431.7		7,021.1	(589.4)	

1. The variance is primarily the result of part year implementation of Lavoie inquiry initiatives in 1999/2000.

Children's Special Services

The objective of Children's Special Services is to support families to maintain children with a mental and/or physical disability in their own homes, and to promote the development of normalized community arrangements to the greatest extent possible.

The objective of Children's Special Services is achieved through the following ectivities:

- planning, development, and monitoring of programs for children with a physical and/or mental disability;
- development of program policies and service guidelines for the delivery of services to Manitoba children with a physical and/or mental disability living with their families;
- support of the delivery of services by regional offices and agencies through consultation, training, research and evaluation;
- leadership in the development of resources to meet evolving damands within the context of current services;

- provision of lead riship and administrative support to the interdepartmental Unified Referral and Intake System (URIS) which supports children who require specific health care procedures in community programs, and
- provision of program consultation and funding support to external agencies and regional offices delivering therapy, respite services and family support services.

These activities involve the provision of the following services:

- · Community-based Family Support Services to families caring for children with a disability, and
- Funding to External Agencies providing supports to children with disabilities and their families.

Family Support Services

Children's Special Services provides families who have children with a mental and/or physical disability with variety of supports which reflect the unique circumstances of each family and the needs of the child with disabilities. These supports include care management support such a counselling, consultation, broking and coordination, and individualized services such as respire, child development, supplies, quipment, transportation, home modifications and the ray. The purpose of family support is to reduce stress incountered by the families and better enable families to care for their children with dis bilities in their own homes. Staff use a family-centred approach in the d livery of supports and services.

Children's Special Services delivers Family Support Services through the regional offices, staffed by the Regional Operations Branch of the Department of Family Services and Housing, and supports these services and staff by providing financial and program guidelines, consultation, training, research, and evaluation.

External Agencies

Children's Special Services also provides funding and consultation to external agencies that deliver specialized services, early intervention programs, respite care and other family support services for children with disabilities and their families. Funded gencies include Society for Manitobans with Disabilities, Rehabilitation Centre for Children. St. Amant Centre, Community Respite Services, Central Specch and Hearing Clinic and Open Access Resource Centre.

In 1999/00, the Provinci I Outreach Therapy for Children (POTC) program completed its first full year of operation. This program is funded by Children's Special Services and is deliver data a joint venture by the Society for Manitobans with Disabilities and the Rehabilit tion Centre for Children, with St. Ament Centre as a participating gency. It provided occupational therapy, physiotherapy and speech/language therapy services to 936 children with disabilities throughout Manitoba.

Children's Special Survices works closely with the Child Day Care and Child, Family and Community Development branches, the voluntary sictor, hospitals, schools, and private external gencies. The branch licts in conjunction with the Department of Education and Training and the Department of Health to ensure program coordination.

Children's Special Services provides leadership to the interdepartmental Unified Referral and Intake System (URIS) and administers funding to support children requiring specific health care procedures in community settings. In 1999/00, a revised <u>URIS Policy and Procedures Manual</u> was distributed and training sessions on its contents were conducted for school, community and Regional Health Authority personnel.

Number of Families Accessing Family Support Services

Type of Service	1997/98	1998/99	1999/00
Fimily Support Services	2,463 91	2.770 93	3.021 56
Total	2,554	2,863	3,077

URIS Group A mere to children who require complex health care procedures as defined by the URIS Classification of Medical Procedure. System: Children classified as Group A often have a long-term disability and require support from a medical assistive device or technology.

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	377 5	7 00	330.5	47.0	
Other Expanditures	324.8		294.5	30.3	
Financial Assistance and External Agencies	10,254.2		10 <u>,</u> 307 0	<u>(52 8)</u>	
Total Other Expenditures	10,579.0		10,801.5	(22.5)	

09-4D Children's Special Services

Child Day Care

The objectives of the Child Day Care Branch are to:

- promote sustain ble, accessible, high quality child care that supports the positive development of children and their families and to assist child care facilities to meet established standards of care; and
- plan and develop innovative means of meeting the child care needs of parents, to promote positive developmental care for children, including those with special needs, and to support parental participation in child care services.

The Child Day Care Branch is responsible for:

- developing legislation, regulations, policies and standards relating to child care in Manitoba;
- monitoring compliance with standards and regulations;
- providing financial assistance to eligible families;
- assessing centres' financial operations and providing grants;
- supporting safe, seessible, high quality child care;
- assisting families participating in employment and training to find and maintain suitable child care;
- recruiting and licensing new and existing child care providers to increase flexible child care options and subsidized spaces;

- supporting inclusion of children with special needs in child care, including children with disabilities and children of families in crisis;
- supporting parental participation in child care services; and
- reviewing and djusting regulations, policies and systems to implement and promote continuous program improvement in the guality of services experienced by families and child care providers.

Child care is provided for children 12 years of age or under in 7 categories of centres or homes, as follows:

- full-time day care centres four or more infants or six or more pre-achool age children are cared for on a full-time billine;
- school age day care contres nine or more children enrolled in Kindergarten to Grade 6 are cared for during out-of-school hours.
- nursery schools four or more infants or six or more pre-school age children are cared for on a part-time basis.
- Occasional day care contros four or more infants or six or more pre-school children are cared for on a cesual basis;
- family day care homes up to eight pre-school and school age children, including no more than five pre-school children and three infants, are cared for in a private home;
- group day care homes up to twelve children, of whom not more than three are less than two years of age, are cared for in one of the homes of the two people providing care; and
- private home day care up to four infant, pre-school and school age children are cared for in a private home where a licence is optional.

Throughout 1999/00, the Child Day Care Regulatory Review Committee continued to meet to make recommendations to Improve Manitoba's child care system. The 1999/00 budget included move towards the unit funding model, proposed by the Child Day Care Regulatory Review Committee, by increasing grants for infant and pre-school centre spaces by 15 and 10 per cent respectively. Family day care homes and nursery schools were provided a 2 per cent increase to their operating grants.

A total of 1,082 child care facilities provided 22,112 licensed child care spaces, including 18,352 centre-based and 3,760 day care home-based spaces.

Operating grants for 446 non-profit child care contres and 446 family day care homes, a total of 892 facilities, continued to be based upon the number of licensed spaces in the facility, the type of care, the hours of care offered and the ages of children enrolled. The maximum amount for each grant is established in regulation.

In 1999/00, all previously unfunded infant and pre-school expansion spaces that existed in funded centres were provided with operating grant funding.

Child Day Care continued to incourage new and existing child care providers to increase flexible and rural child care options. Operating grant ind/or start-up funding was provided to 44 child care facilities to expand their hours of service to accommodate the needs of M nitoban, who work seasonal or unconvintional hours. As well, funding was committed to support the divelopment of child care in rural areas. Operating and/or start up grants were provided to 10 n w or expanded rural centres.

Also in 2000, the first child care cantre moved into its new location under the reinstated Child Care in Schools Policy. This policy allows for the construction of child care facilities in new schools or in schools undergoing major renovations.

A joint effort to support Employment and income Assistance participants who have the aptilude and interest to become licinsed family day care providers was undertaken. This initiative provides training and employment opportunities, as well as the creation of child care services, for communities in greatest need of these services.

The reasons under which families qualified for a fee subsidy to assist them in the payment of their daily child care fee continued to be based on criteria of need (employment, seeking employment, education, midical med, special social med). The amount of provincial subsidy a family is eligible to receive continued to be based on family size, composition, income and cost of child cure.

An increase in the sub-idy budget on bled more children to access licensed child care, resulting in an average of 10,529 subsidized children. In 2000, the eligibility period for sub-idy to support a parent's job surch was increased to eight weeks from two weeks, twice per year. A Special Needs Subsidy Family Plan was introduced to ensure collaboration between families applying for special needs subsidy, their child care provider and the professional involved in assisting the family.

The Children with Disabilities Program assists parents of children with physical disabilities, such as developmental delays or emotional and/or behavioural problems, by supporting their child's placement/ integration in child care settings, including child care centres, family day care homes and nursery schools. Parents and child care facilities are involved as team members.

The program provides support and grants to eligible child care facilities and offers children an opportunity to reach their developmental potential in a community environment, which fosters positive attitudes towards the disabled. In 1999/00, the program budget increased by 29.4 per cent, supporting the integration of 970 children.

A lotal of 1,854 Child Care A sistants (CCAs), Early Childhood Educator (ECE) IIs and Early Childhood Educator (ECE) II is applied to Child Day Care and received classifications in 1999/00. Sixteen candidates successfully completed the Competency Based Attessement (CBA) Program and were classified at the ECE II is very by Child Day Care. Child Day Care's CBA Program has been offered since 1987.

In 1999, Child Day Care, Prior Learning Assessment Centre and Red River College developed a joint initiative to provide another alternative pathway to the ECE II classification level. This joint project, based on the CBA Program, use prior learning experiences to provide individuals who posses a post a condary education or international credentials an opportunity to obtain an ECE II classification level. The first 20 candidates griduated in summer 2000.

Child Day Care provides information to parents and interested individuals about child care services and options. An "Intake Line" is operated during regular office hours and is also accessible through a government toll-free telephone number. A "Subsidy Intake Line" assists parents to complete the application for child care subsidy. Information sessions are provided to individuals and groups interested in establishing a child care centre or becoming a licensid family day care provider. Subsidy orientations are provided for new and existing child care providers and workshops are available to assist Boards of Directors of child care centres.

Centres and Homes Total Facilities and Spaces

	199	8/99	1999/00			
Centres	No, of Centres	No. of Spaces	No, of Centres	No. of Spaces		
Fully Funded	412	12,746	431	13,863		
Partially Funded	15	514	15	522		
Unfunded Non-Profit	64	2,792	41	2,243		
Pnvale	41	1,671	41	1,724		
Totai	622	17,723	528	18,352		

Homes	199	8/99	1999/00			
	No, of Homes	No, of Spaces	No. of Homes	No. of Spaces		
Fully Funded	430	2,878	446	3,641		
Unfunded Non-Profit	114	768	108	719		
Total	544	3,646	554	3,760		

Fully Funded Centres and Homes As of March 31, 2000

	Centres		Homes		Total	
Region	No. of Centres	No. of Spaces	No. of Homes	No. of Spaces	No. of Facilities	No. of Spaces
Winnipeg	231	8.968	208	1,364	439	10.332
Westman	57	1,308	130	927	187	2,235
Eastman	36	883	17	123	63	986
Central/ South Central	44	1,086	24	158	68	1,244
interiake	21	501	30	199	51	700
Parkland	20	402	20	143	40	545
Norman	9	261	9	76	18	337
Thompson	1 <u>3</u>	474	8	51	21	526
Total	431	13,863	446	3,041	877	16,904

	Cer	itrea	Ноп	291	Tol	(4)1
Region	No. of Centres	No. of Spiices	No. of Nomes	No. of Spaces	No. of Facilities	No. of Spaces
Winnipag	13	462	â	0	13	462
Weslman	Ó	Ō	0	0	0	0
Eastman	0	0	Ô	Ô	0	0
Central/ South Central	0	0	0	0	0	0
Interlake	2	60	0	0	2	60
Parkland	0	Ō	0	0	0	0
Norman	0	0	0	0	0	0
Thomp on	0	0	0	0	0	Ó
Total	15	522	0	0	15	522

Partially Funded Non-Profit Centres and Homes As of March 31, 2000

Unfunded Non-Profit Centres and Homes

As of March 31 2000

	Cer	ntros	Но	mes	То	tal
Region	No. of Centres	No. of Spaces	No. of Homes	No. of Spaces	No. of Facilities	No. of Spaces
Winnipeg	26	1,777	83	543	109	2,320
Westman	3	77	5	37	B	114
Eastman	6	160	4	29	10	189
Central/ South Central	4	165	5	37	9	202
Interlake	1	15	4	24	5	39
Parkland	1	45	0	0	1	45
Norman	0	0	5	38	5	38
Thompson	0	4	2	13	2	17
Total	41	2,243*	108	719	149	2,962*

 "No. of spaces in centres" and "total number of spaces " Includes 1.117 unfunded spaces approved as expansion spaces in funded centres.

Private Centres As of March 31, 2000

Region	Total No. of Facilities	Total No. of Spaces
Winnipeg	37	1,598
Other Regions	4	128
Total	41	1,724

Licensing Orders, Suspensions, Refusals

1999/00

Facilities	Number of Licensing Orders*	Licence Suspensions/Refusals
Non-profit centres	1	-
Private centres	0	
Homas	2	
Total	3	

 A licensing order is issued under Section 18 of The Community Child Day Care Standards Act when serious violations of licensing regulations oecur.

09-4E Child Day Care

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 5000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries	2,282.5	49,50	2,211.7	70,8	
Other Expenditures	559.4		470.0	89.4	
Financial Assistance and Grants	50,269.6		61,016.7	<u>(746 1)</u>	1
Total Other Expenditures	50.829.0		61,485.7	(656.7)	

 The full amount for extended and rural child care was not paid out in 1999/00 due, in part, to the time required to create new child care services, some centres did not apply for funding, summer closures provided some savings, and the average cost of subsidy per child was down slightly. These decreases were offset by an increase in Children with Disabilities grants.

Social Services Advisory Committee

The Social Sovices Advisory Committee is stabilished by *The Social Services Administration Act* and appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor-in-Council. The Committee serves as an independent appendent of the apply the legislation governing financial assistance programs, the licensing of day care centres and residential care facilities, private adoption agencies, as well as eligibility for the Vocational Rehabilitation of Disabled Persons program.

The jurisdiction of the Committee as an appent board for the income assistance programs, including the Municipal Assistance Program, is not out in Section 9 of *The Employment* and *Income Assistance Act* and in Subsiction 451(4) of *The Municipal Act*. It is in this capacity of an appent board for these programs that the Committee hears appeals throughout Minicipal Act. It is in this capacity of an appent board for these programs that the Committee hears appeals throughout Minicipal Act. In addition, appendice concerning denies of the right to apply for assistance, and concerning an unressonable delay in miking a decision, are heard. Final orders or decisions of the Committee may be subject to appeal to the Court of Append, when permission has been obtained from a judge representing that Court. Permission may be granted only when the jurisdiction of the Committee or a point of law are in guestion.

In accordance with Section 13 of *The Social Services Administration Act*, appeals regarding the denial, suspension or cancellation of a licence or letter of approval relating to a residential care facility or child care facility (other than foster homes) are heard by the Committee is well. Decisions of the Committee may be open to appeal to the Court of Quern's Bench. In addition, the Committee hears appeals related to Child Day Care subsidies to parents and guardians, and appeals with respect to 55 PLUS - A Manitoba Income Supplement.

The Committee also hears appeals with regard to the Vocational Rehabilitation of Disability Persons Program, under Regulation 1/90 of The Social Services Administration Act, Appeals may be filed when the Director refuses an application on the grounds that the applicant does not meet the eligibility criteria. A well, the Committee has been designated the appeal process for The Vulnarable Persons Living with a Mental Disability Act. Appeals for individuals in this group can be filed on the issue of eligibility or the individual support services plan. The Committee also hears appeals for The Adoption Act, under Part 1.1, Section 9(2) of The Child and Family Services Act. As well, under Regulation 17/99 of The Child and Family Services Act, the Committee hars appeals for licensing of child car facilities (other than foster homes).

In its advisory capacity, the Committee considers matters referred to it by the Minister, and responds by way of a report. The Committee also draws to the attantion of the Minister issues which arise from hearings that may have implications for the department.

During the hearings, or in its decision letters, the Committee may draw an appellant's attention to other available services. In this regard, the Committee members undertake to keep themselves informed about relevant agencies, programs and policies.

In 1999/2000, a total of 850 appeals were received by the Social Services Advisory Committee,

Expanditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Ovar/(Under)	Expl, No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	221.7	4.00	207.8	13.0	
Total Other Expendituras	73.5		159,1	(85.6)	1

09-1C Social Services Advisory Committee

 The surplus reflects a dicrease in appeal activity and a change in accounting practice respecting the racording of board member per diams. Although voted in Other Expenditures, the per diams were charged against Salaries and Employee Ben fills.

Social Services Advisory Committee Appeals Received by Basis of Appeal and Disposition 1998/99 and 1999/2000

						Dis po	ş it iOn								
	Appopls	Appopis Received		Asbwed		Diamasand		WWhatswn		Old Not Appear		Outside Jurisdiction		Appeals Pending	
	1999/00 *	1990/99	1909/00	19:98/38	19-35400	1998/99	1999/00	1938/99	1999.00	1998/39	1999100	1996/99	1998/00		
to Alowed to Apply	4	\$	0	0	1	2	2	6	0	2	1	0	0	0	
Decisions Oslayod	7	12	0	1	2	0	6	8	0	18	0	1	0	0	
Application Denied	263	152	11	8	102	56	104	60	30	11	6	2	10	10	
Şu s pendedi Wilh inçid	59	34	2	0	25	5	23	22	8	6	0	2	1	0	
Cane led	222	216	3	10	69	79	56	98	19	18	15	Θ	9	4	
Vəried	\$2	14	1	2	5	4	8	7	1	0	0	0	0	2	
Assists are Insufficient	297	397	19	29	103	117	135	204	20	23	6	9	11	14	
None	29	16	0	0	1	0	14	3	0	0	14	12	0	2	
TÔTAL	593	850	2 /6	50	3 28	263	377	413	78	50	43	34	31	32	

1: 1999-99 includes 37 900% at segainst the Churd Day Care Program (including 1 toomang and 1 Tarms and Curculang); 10 egainst the Okaro Activities Conciliancing, 10 egainst 55 PLUS, A Manhabe Impanto Supplement: Legainst the Virmianal Rehabits from Program: and 1 egainst Videorable Program.

2. 1959/2000 includes 28 appliate equilibrial the Child Day Core Program. I against the Office of Residential Core Licensing

11 egainst 55 PLUS - A Marticle Interne Supplement, 1 egainst the Vocational Reliabilitation Program and 3 against the Vulna able Aaraans Program

Social Services Advisory Committee Disposition of Appeals Received by Program 1998/99 and 1999/2000

						D is po	sition							
Բւթցու	Appeə iş J	Roce wed	Altowed		D'sm	D 'sm issed		Withdrawn		reoggA	Ouis de Jurisdiction		Appeals Pending	
	1998/90	1979/00	1998/99	1999-00	1998/99	1999/00	1998/99	1999/00	195,8199	19 99/00	1996/99	1999/00	1998/99	1950/0
Junicipal Assialance	336	70	17	6	141	28	113	20	50	9	8	3	6	2
Income Assistance	499	736	16	42	168	\$21	535	367	27	49	33	29	23	20
Dey Čare														
. Subsidy	35	28	3	0	10	5	24	22	0	0	0	1	0	0
· Lice naing	1	0	0	ō	1	Ő	0	0	0	ō	õ	ō	0	Ő
Terms & Conditions	1	0	0	0	1	Ő	Ő	ō	0	ō	0	0	0	0
S PLUS - A Manbelo														
meane Suppler want	10	11	0	0	2	7	<u>5</u>	4	1	0	2	0	0	0
Residentia i Care	10	1	2	0	4	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	2	1
laned 670 V														
Rehabitation	1	1	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
tomemaker S envices	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Alnekable Persons	1	3	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	1
OTAL	893	850	36	50	22.8	263	377	413	78	58	43	34	34	32

Housing

When the Department of Housing and the Department of Family Services were amalgamented during the 1999/2000 fiscal year, the Department of Housing became the Housing Division of the Department of Family Services and Housing.

Provincial housing policy, program delivery and the management of provincial housing assets are carried out through three organizational entities in Manitoba.

The Housing Division

- The division has overall responsibility for the development, delivery and administration of provincial housing policy and programs.
- In September 1998, the Province of Manitobal entered into a new Social Housing Agreement with the federal government through the Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC). This Agreement transferred responsibility to the province for approximately 17,500 federal units that are primarily owned by non-profit organizations under several program and funding arrangements.
- The division employs all staff necessary to support the programs/operations of the Manitoba Housing and Renew I Corporation (MHRC) and accordingly, the MHRC has no employees.
- The division provides administrative support to the Manitoba Housing Authority (MHA).

The Manltoba Housing & Renewal Corporation (MHRC)

- The MHRC is crown corporation, created by statute, that operates pursuant to The Housing and Renewal Corporation Act (R.S.M.1987 Chapter H180). It is gov rnid by a board of directors under the provisions of the Act, with policy direction from the government. As set forth by statute, the MHRC board of directors is appointed through Ord r-in-Council.
- The MHRC has operated as the delivery arm for fideral/provincial cost-shared social housing
 programs and other capital programming provided by the province from time to time. The MHRC is
 an approved lender under *The National Housing Act*, issues mortgages and loans and holds as ets.
- The MHRC owns ill assets but is fininclally dipendent upon the gov mmint of the Province of Minitobil, receiving in unnual transfer payment basic tily qual to the difference between MHRC's revenues and its expressibles federal recoveries from the Canadi Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC). As part of the government's innual Estimates process, the ideal dollars are voted by the Legislature to the Department of Fimily Services and Housing which, in turn, "transfer" funds to the MHRC as required. In iddition, under The Loan Act, the MHRC is directly voted monies to be used for the purposes of its capital activities.
- The MHRC receives substantial support from the federal government through the CMHC pursuant to several cost-sharing agreements for fideral/provincial housing programs. The MHRC's other primary source of revenue is in the form of rents from tenants in its housing portfolio.
- The MHRC provides ubsidies for approximately 36,700 housing units developed under verious federal/provincial housing programs.

The Manitoba Housing Authority (MHA)

- The Manitobe Housing Authority (MHA) was created in 1992 under *The Housing and Renewal* Corporation Act to replace approximately 100 housing authorities throughout the province.
- The MHA provides the property management function for the provincially-owned public housing portfolio. It is governed by a board of directors appointed under Ministerial order.
- The MHA receives policy direction from the MHRC board of directors and its Chief Executive Officer who is also the Assistant Diputy Minister of the Hou ing Division.

- The MHA has no assets, but has its own employees who manage and maintain the rental stock. The MHA has a complement of approximitely 300 staff (who do not have civil service status) and employs roughly 100 caretakers on a contract basis for projects located throughout the province. Support services, such as research, planning, fin actel, performed, legal and information systems services are provided to the MHA by the Housing Division.
- All revenues and expenses, including the administrative cost of operating the MHA, are the responsibility of the MHRC.

For the sake of simplicity, in the program narratives that follow there is often no distinction mide between the corporation, the division, and the housing authority, and references to the "division" are intended to encompass all three entities. However, the entities have been identified separately in the audited financial statements, as required for financial reporting purposes.

Organization of the Division

During the 1999/00 fiscal year, when the Department of Housing was amalgameted with the Department of Family Services, significant changes took place in the organization and operational structure, and the Department of Housing became the Housing Division of the newly formed Department of Family Services and Housing. As at March 31, 2000, the operations of the division can be divided into the following areas of responsibility:

The Housing Services Branch (previously Planning and Portfolio Administration) provides planning for program development, coordination, and evaluation, forecasting and statistical support services to the department in support of strategic and operational decision making. The branch also analyzes and makes recommendations about corporate assists and provides ongoing monitoring and evaluation of program operations. The branch administers licensing under *The Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act.* The branch also provides portfolio administration services to monitor the operating agreements in place for the private non-profit portfolio transferred from the federal government under the Social Housing Agreement and for the sponsored and private non-profit housing operations that were previously administered through the MHA.

The Corporate Services Branch (previously Finance and Operations) provides support services to the division in the following areas:

- Corporate Services ensures the corporate comptrollerable function is appropriately maintained to
 meet the needs of the division for financial control, accountability, reporting and the safeguarding and
 protection of financial and physical assits. The branch also coordinates and directs the division's
 annual financial planning process, and evaluates and makes recommendations related to corporate
 assets, reporting control policies and procedures.
- Capital Planning Services administers the Rural and Native Housing (RNH) program consistent with the Property Management Agreements (PMA), provides technical support and inspection services for the Private Non-Profit (PNP) and Sponsor Group (SG) projects, delivers fed rel/provincial costshared housing repair programs in Manitoba, and develops and maintains a long range capital plan for Direct and Sponsor managed projects.

With the creation of the Department of Family Services and Housing, the Human Resource Services responsibility for the Housing Division and the MHA was transferred to the Consolidated Human Resource Services unit for the departments of Family Services and Housing and Health. However, until the end of the 1999/00 fiscal year, salaries and other operating exploses continued to come from the appropriation for the form r Department of Housing. Services provided by this unit include payroll and ben fits administration, recruitment and selection, classification and compensation, labour relations, training and development, performined man grant and Affirmative Action.

With the creation of the Department of Fimily Sirvices and Housing, re-ponsibility for Information Sy time for both dipintments will consolidated within a central unit for the Dipintment of Family Sirvices and Housing. However, until the indiof the 1999/00 fiscally ar, salaries and open ting expenses continued to come from the appropriation of the former Department of Housing. Services provided by this unit include reviews of data processing and office utomation requirements and provision of user systems support.

Report on 1999/00 Activities under the Appropriation Structure of the Former Department of Housing

Housing Executive

This Appropriation consisted of

- (a) Minister's Salary
- (b) Executive Support

The Minister's and Deputy Minister's offices provided executive management, direction and control of departmental policies and programs. With the creation of the Department of Family Services and Housing, the responsibility for Housing was transferred to the new department. However, until the end of the 1999/2000 fiscal year, searchs and other operating explanes continued to come from the appropriation for the former Department of Housing.

Office of the Minister

30-1(A) Minister

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No,
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	7.2	0.50	13.5	(6.3)	

30-1(B) Executive Support

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	396.9	3.00	331.0	65.9	1
Total Other Expenditures	29.1		44.3	(15 2)	_

Adjusted figures reflect a transfer of functions to the Dop rtment of intergovernmental Affairs. The 1999/2000 Estimate also reflects an elecation from the Enabling Appropriations respecting wor force industment costs.

Housing Program Support

This appropriation consisted of:

- (a) Finance and Operations
- (b) Planning and Portfolio Administration
- (C) Human Resource Services
- (d) Information Systems

Finance and Operations

Following the am lig mation of the Depirtment of Family Services and the Depirtment of Housing during the 1999/2000 fiscal year, the branch's name was changed to the Corporate Services Branch. The Corporate Services Branch includes the Corporate Services and the Capital Planning Services functions. The Corporate Services Branch ensures the corporate comptrollership function is appropriately maintained to meet the needs of the depirtment, the division, the MHRC and the MHA for financial control, account bility, reporting and the safeguirding and protection of financial and physical as its. It provides comprehensive central support services to corporate operations and branch is including direction and support in financial planning. finincial evaluations and options regarding corporate assets, reporting control policies and procedures.

Capital Planning Services administers the Rural and Native Housing (RNH) program consistent with the Property Management Agreements (PMA), provides technical support and inspection services for the Private Non-Profit (PNP) and Sponsor Group (SG) projects, delivers federal/provincial cost-shared housing repair programs in Manitoba, and develops and maintains a long range capital plan for Direct and Sponsor managed projects.

Activities

Corporate Services:

- Plans, organizes and evaluates corporate accounting and financial management activities including financial reporting, expenditure and revenue processing and appropriation control, cost-shared reporting and claiming;
- Establishes and provides direction on corporate financial management policies, procedures and practices. Advises executive management on a timely basis regarding emerging financial and program management issues;
- Coordinates and supports the development of the corporate estimates in support of the division, the MHRC and the MHA;
- Coordinates, monitors and reports on the corporate entities which include the MHRC, the MHA and sponsor and private non-profit groups;
- Supports men gem int through the provision of analytical, consultative and evaluative advice on new departmental and corporate programs, financial proportials and ongoing operations;
- Provides for collection and administration of the loans and mortgage portfolio; and
- Provides ongoing monitoring and administration of the Mobile Home Loan Guarantee Program.

Capital Planning Services:

- Monitors RNH PMAs to ensure compliance with operating agreement provisions;
- Promotes and supports community-based housing boards by encouraging the development of new housing boards through the Community Housing Managers of Manitoba (CHMM) and providing training and assistance to existing boards to increase their ability to assume further management responsibilities for housing in their communities,
- Provides loans administration functions for the RNH portfolio;

- Provides detailed cyclical/aspect inspections and reports for PNP and SG projects;
- Delivers, monitors, provides tendership/coordination/training to external agencies/groups for federal/provincial cost-shared housing repair programs in Manitoba – Residential Rehibilitation Assistance Program (RRAP), Emergency Repair Program (ERP), Home Adeptation for Seniors' independence (HASI), Shelter Enhancement Program (SEP), as well as the provincially funded Homeowner Emergency Loan Program (HELP); and
- Develops a 10-year capital plan for Public Housing projects with input from the MHA and internal/external resources for \$G projects.

Mobile Home Loan Guarantee Program

The Mobile Home Loan Guarantee Program guaranteed loans made by approved lenders for the purchase of mobile homes. These guarantees allowed the lender to provide the loan at a lower interest rate and for a longer term, resulting in lower monthly payments by the borrower. This program terminated March 31, 1997. The following table provides program information for the past three years including outstanding guarantees as at March 31, 2000.

FISCAL	OUTSTANDING QUARANTEES		GUARA	and the second sec	CLAIM SETTLEMENTS		
YEAR	Total units	Amount \$	Total Units	Amount \$	Total Units	Amount \$	
1997/98	183	4,728,720	0	0	2	71,075	
1998/99	146	3,616,304	0	0	2	59,653	
1999/00	125	2.865,924	0	0	0	0	

Mobile Home Loan Guarantee Program

Homeownar Emergency Loan Program (HELP)

The Homeowner Emergency Loan Program assists low-Income homeowners by providing financing for emergency repairs that implicit the health and/or safety of a unit's occupants. The program, which has been active since the 1994/95 fiscal year, provides an interest free loan of up to \$3,000 to eligible homeowners for repairs of a health, safety or emergency nature. Inspection services for this program are provided by Capital Planning Survices.

Applicants must meet low-income criteria. Eligible repairs include emergency repairs to heating systems, foundations, plumbing, electrical, roofing, or repairs to improve accessibility for household members with a disability.

During the year ended March 31, 2000, the program provided the following assistance:

Number of loan applications received during this fiscal year	70
Number of leans committed	41
Average loan amount approved under the program	\$2,161
Total expenditures for this fincel year (000's)	\$68.6

The following table provides program information for the past three years:

FISCAL YEAR	NUMBER OF APPLICATIONS RECLIVED	NUMBER OF LOANS COMMITTED	TOTAL LOANS COMMITTED (000'E)	AVERAGE LOAN AMOUNT
1997/98	120	53	112,0	2,113
1998/99	126	74	159.6	2,156
1999/00	70	41	88.6	2,181

Homeowner Emergency Loan Program Three-Year Summary of Program Activity

30-2(A) Finance and Operations

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00* \$000	FTE	Estimato 1999/00* \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salarias and Employee Benefits	1,955 3	52.00	2,201.3	(246.0)	1
Total Other Expenditures	362.3		365.2	(2.9)	
Subtotal	2,317.6		2,565.5	(248.9)	
Less: Recoverable from other Appropriations	(388.6)		(364.4)	(24.2)	
Total Expenditures	1,929.0		2,202.1	(273.1)	

* Adjusted figures reflect a transfer of functions to the Department of Intergovernmental Affairs.

 The salary under expenditure is primarily due to staff positions being vacant for a portion of the fiscal year.

Planning and Portfolio Administration

Following the amalgamation of the Department of Family Services and the Department of Housing during the 1999/2000 fiscal year, the branch's name was changed to the Housing Services Branch. The Housing Services Branch provides program development, program coordination, forecasting and statistical support services to the division, the MHRC, and the MHA. In support of strategic and operational decision-making, and administers/monitors operating agreements with non-profit owned and/or managed housing projects.

Activities

- Coordinates the Housing Division's planning activities, provides ongoing housing program development, policy analysis and assistance in corporate budget preparation;
- Provides support for social housing activities, asset management decisions, market analysis and research;

- Administ r licen ing und r The Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act. (Currently, just over 200 seniors' housing projects licensed under the program.) Prior to June 1976, approved spon or licensed under The Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Constants' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Act were eligible to receive in Elderly and Infirm Persons' Housing Grant of up to \$1,700 for the single unit and \$2,150 for double unit Some of the segrent with paid to the spon are in year one. The remaining of intermediate to the intermediate to the sponsors over a 50-year period, and served to reduce the rentel charges to ten rits. Currently, 51 non-profit groups are receiving annual payments through egreements into under the Act. The innum cost of revicing these grants is \$170,257 until the year 2017, when the first of the agreement sequeres. The cost will then dicrease innum illy until the last agreement were set in 2029. (For funding illocition information, se Sub-Appropriation 30-3(B) Grints in Subsidies.),
- Provides ongoing program monitoring, evaluation and measurement in relation to the division's goals and objectives;
- Monitors compliance with operating agreement provisions and promotes efficient management of projects in accordance with program objectives;
- Links with agencies, ten int groups, all levels of government and local non-government groups, regarding issues, policies and guidelines relating to housing programs,
- Performs operational audits that review the full range of operations by non-profit or co-operative housing projects, including tenant selection, building maint nance, financial control, rent calculations, management control and board involvement;
- Recommends and implements solutions for projects experiencing financial or property management problems and identifies are a where idministration of individual projects can be improved and costs reduced,
- Conducts workshops and training tessions for non-profits and co-operative housing projects, and
- Monitors the disbursement of program subsidies in accordance with program criteria.

Housing Assistance for High-Risk Groups

Housing Services administers Housing Assistance for High-Risk Groups, which is sub-program 4A under the Winnipeg Development Agreement. This program provides greats to non-profit organizations to ecquire, removate, or build shelter for high-risk groups such as victims of family violence, the homeless, persons with disabilities, and borigin incitizes. The approved allocation for the program is \$1.0 million through March 31, 2000.

During the fiscal year ending March 31, 2000, \$3.60 was approved for the Parenting Support Project for adole cent mothers operated by the Mill Mill Chilltate Centre Inc. A 3- torey wilk-up approved building in the MRRC-owned Blake Gardens project in the Weston Park area was renovated to provide 12 self-contained units and 3,500 square feet of program spinol.

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Ov r/(Und r)	Expl, No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	892.6	20.00	1,002.6	(110.2)	
Total Other Expenditures	125.4		106.0	19.4	
Subtetal	1,018.0		1,108.8	(90.8)	
L se: Recover ble from oth r Appropriations	(380 0)		(495.8)	116.6	
Total Expenditures	638.0		Ģ12.0	26 0	

30-2(B) Planning and Portfolio Administration

Human Resource Services

This former branch provided human resource and payroll & rvices, including recruitment, selection, classification and comparisation, I bour relations, training and development and performance manigement. With the creation of the Department of Fimily Services and Housing, the Human Resource Services responsibility for the Housing Division and the MHA transferred to the Consolid ted Human Resource Services Unit for the departments of Fimily Services and Housing and Health. However, until the end of the current fiscal year, a large and other operating expenses continued to come from the appropriation for the former Department of Housing.

Activities

- Provides payroll benefits and services, as well as recruitment, selection and classification services to the MHA; and
- Provides human resource and payroll services to the former departments of Housing and Urban Affairs, and the Seniors Directorate, under the direction of the Consolidated Human Resource Unit within the Department of Education and Training.

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/{Under}	Expl No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	218.8	6.00	266.4	(47.6)	1
Total Other Expenditures	39.1		46.4	(7.3)	

30-2(C) Human Resource Services

 The salary under expenditure is primirily due to staff positions being vacant for a portion of the fiscal year.

Information Systems

This former branch provided business solutions and tichnology support to meet the needs/expectations of the departments of Housing and Urban Affairs, the Senior: Director M, the MHRC and the MHA. With the creation of the Department of Family Sarvices and Housing, responsibility for Information Systems for both departments was consolidated within a central unit for the newly formed department. However, until the and of the current fineal year, salaries and other operating expensions continued to come from the appropriation for the former Dispartment of Housing.

Activities

- Pursues the strategic use of information technology by working with the business units to develop and deploy solutions that address of the unit's problems, and identified opportunities for changes that improved service and increased effectiveness of operations;
- Administers corporate data on behalf of the business units and, by making it as accessible as possible, added value over the widest possible range of business activities; and
- Provides ongoing operational and technical advice and support to meet the agreed upon requirements and performance expectations of our customers.

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00* \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00* \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Total Salaries and Employee Benefits	755.7	15,00	942.4	(186.7)	1
Total Other Expenditures	1,133.6		1,307.2	(173.6)	

Adjusted figures reflect a transfer of functions to the Department of Intergovernmental Affairs.

 The salary under expenditure is primarily due to staff positions being vacant for a portion of the fiscal year.

The Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation (MHRC)

This Appropriation consisted of.

- (a) Transfer Payments
- (b) Grants and Subaidles

Transfer Payments

The MHRC has no staff. The division provides all staff services to the MHRC. The staff from the division are accountable for the activities administered and delivered through the MHRC. The MHA is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the publicly owned housing portfolio.

The MHRC owns ill as to but is financially dependent upon the gov rimmint of the Province of Menitobility of the difference between MHRC's revenues and its expenses less finderal recoveries from the Canada Mortging and Housing Corporation (CMHC). As pirt of the annual Estimates process, these dollars are voted by the Legislature to the dip rimmint which, in turn, "transfers" funds to the MHRC as required.

Activities

- Operates as a delivery arm for federal/provincial cost-shared social housing programs and other capital programming provided by the province from time to time.
- Issues mortgages and loans and holds assets, as an approved lender under The National Housing Act; and
- Provides subsidies for approximately 38,700 housing units developed under various federal/provincial housing programs. The MHA manages approximately 13,000 housing units and the remaining 23,700 housing units are managed by sponsor and non-profit groups.

Other MHRC expenditures include the following:

- Land Inventory is the funding required for related carrying costs that include interest costs, grants in lieu of taxes and planning and development;
- Market Value Adjustments is the estimated funding required to account for losses incurred on properties disposed; and
- Co-op Further/Complementary Assistance provides operating as istance to continuing housing cooperatives to low r housing charges to an mount qual to low end market rents and to increase subsidy pools available to low-income housaholds.
The following table summarizes the activities that account for the transfer payments.

Expenditure Category	Actual' 1999/00 (000'e)	Estimate 1999/00 (000's)	Variance Ov r/(Und r) (000'a)
MHA Housing Operations			
Direct Managed: Administration	0.486.0		(10.1.1)
Operating Expenditures	9,468.2 70,484 9	9.862.3 70.133.1	(404.1)
Gross MHA Operations	79,943 1	79.995.4	<u>351.8</u> (52.3)
Less: Rental Revenue	(47,237.3)	(44,987,0)	(2.250.3) ²
Net MHA Housing Operations	32,705.8	35.009.4	(2,302,6)
MHRC Housing Operations			
Portfolio Administration:		1.000	
Sponsor Managed	16,618.7	16,846.8	(228.1)
Private Non-Profit Federal Unilateral Portfolio	20,108.0	20,885.5	(777,5)
Gross Portfolio Administration	<u>38.173.8</u> 74,900.5	<u>41 250.0</u> 78,982 3	(30762) ³
Less: Rental Revenue	(18.043.9)	(18.649.6)	(4,081.8) 505.7
Net Portfolio Administration	56,866,6	60.432.7	(3,576.1)
Rent Supplement	5,180,5	5,909,4	_(728.9)4
Sub-Total MHRC Housing Operations	62,037.1	66,342.1	(4,305.0)
Residential Rehabilitation Assistance			
Program (RRAP)	1,621,9	690.0	831.9 ⁶
Other MHRC Expenditures	2.078.2	2.710.4	(632.2)
Net MHRC Housing Operations	65.637.2	69.742.5	(4.105.3)
Total Housing Operations	98,343,0	104,750,9	(8,407.9)
Deferred Federal Contributions	10,444,2	3,810.0	6,634.2 ⁶
Loss:Recoveries	(76.466.6)	(75.808.1)	(858,5)
Sub-Total Transfor Payments to MHRC	32,320.6	32,952.8	(632.2)
Valuation Allowance Adjustment	410,8		410.8 ⁷
Net Transfer Payments to MHRC	32,731.4	32,952.8	(221.4)

30-3(A) Transfer Payments Summary by Expenditure Category

1. Actuals have been edjusted for Contributed Services as reflected in MHRC's financial statements under note 17.

2 Higher than expected occupancy in MHA Direct Managed units has directly stiributed to increased rental revenue.

Under expenditure for the federal unitateral portfolio is primently due to more favourable interest reles on mortgage renewals.
Expenditures for the Rent Supplement Program have remained constant at last year's level.

 In 1999/09, MHRC entered into an agreement with the Canada Mongage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) to cost share in the Residential Rehabilitation Assistance Program (RRAP). The additional funding was provided from deterred redenal contributions.

6 Deterred federal contributions represent the level of funding recovered from CMHC under the Social Housing Agreement and the educatexpenditure regularments to administer the combined receiving royingle housing portfolio.

7. It is the Province of Mankoba's accounting policy to record the deficit/surplus of Crown organizations as an expenditure of the Province of Mankoba in the year in which they wire incurred. The expenditure is recorded as a valuation allowance against advances owed to the Province of Mankoba by the organization. The valuation allowance adjustment required for the MHRC in 1999/00 k in the amount of \$410.8.

Grants and Subsidies

Program detail can be found under the Shelter Assistance Branch, which reports to the Manitoba Housing Authority.

30-3(B) Grants and Subsidies

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 (000's) \$	Estimate 1999/0D (000's) \$	Verlance Over/(Under) {000's) \$	Expl, No.
Shelter Allowance For Family Renters	980.0	1,450.0	(470.0)	
Shelter Allowance For Elderly Renters	3,682.5	4,300.0	(617.5)	
Elderty and Infirm Persons' Housing Grants	192.6	170.3	22.3	
Inner City Strategy	70,0	0.0	70.0	
School Tax Assistance for Tenants 55 Plus	730.2	900.0	(169.8)	
Recoverable from the Department of Finance	<u>(</u> 730.2 <u>)</u>	(900 0)	169.8	
Total	4.925.1	6,920.3	(995.2)	1

 The under expenditure in Grants and Subsidies is due to both a lower than projected recipient base and average benefit paid for the Shelter Allowance programs and the School Tax Assistance program.

The Manitoba Housing Authority (MHA)

The ongoing management and operation of the direct-managed public housing portfolio is currently the primary business of the Minitoba Housing Authority (MHA). The und riving objective of public housing is to provide quility housing at an ifford ble rint to low-income seniors, families and others with an identified nied. The program is targeted to households whose income is too low to obtain afford ble, suitable indicated to commodiation in the private mark tilthout spending more than 30 per cent of household income on housing costs. Priority for entry into public housing is determined on an assessed need.

R ntal rates are based on a rent-g and-to-income ratio of 27 per cent of the household income. (R ntal rates for brich for units are based on a rent-g red-to-income ratio of 25 per cent of the household income to enhance the market bility of these smallar units, which are similar to itudio apartments.)

The MHA was incorporated in 1992 as an agency of the Manitobi Housing and Renewal Corporation to function is the property management arm of the former Department of Housing. It is responsible for the ongoing op retion and management of the public housing portfolio. The MHA seeks to maintain and improve the quality of the existing housing stock, and to provide an effective housing service to Manitobins of low and moderate income and to their with specialized needs. It is provides for the devicement and implementation of training strategies for external public housing agencies.

The MHA administers and manages social housing programs through direct management of approximitely 13,000 housing units (see Appendix A for a detailed listing of housing units by district office and community) and administers rent supplement programs for over 2,000 clients living in design ted private sector and non-profit properties (see Appendix B).

The operating results for fiscal year 1999/2000 relating to these activities are found in Schedules B and D of the Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation Financial Statements.

Activities

- The Head Office of the MHA provides the overall management, operational and program direction for Winnipeg and District Offices in rural Manitoba. This direction is provided in the areas of Tenant Services, Maintenance and Technical Services, Marketing and Promotion, Property Management, and Client Services.
- The District Offices provide direct application, tenant services, property management, and maintenance services to the clients, properties and communities in each region. They also administer the next supplement program.
- The MHA administers the Rent Supplement Program (see Appendix B), which assists low and moder to income family and elderly households to obtain suitable housing in the private rantel sector and In non-profit housing projects. The province subsidizes the difference between the approved market rental rate charged by the landlord and the rent-geared-to-income rate paid by the quilifying tenant. During the 1999/00 fiscal year, approximately 2,000 residents were as isted under the program.
- The MHA is also responsible for programs administered through the Shelter Assistance Branch. (For financial information see alito 30-3(B) Grants and Subsidies on the previous page.)
- Funds are provided for the Modernization and improvement (M & I) of the public housing stock. The work is undertaken to improve energy efficiency, repair deterioration, and modernize heating, electrical and mechanical systems to generally improve the quality of public housing. The 1999/00 work was funded from two components, Regular M & I and Special M & I, totalling approximitely \$10.6 million.

Following is a list of communities where Modernization and Improvement work was undertaken in 1999/2000

Community	Actual	Community	Actual
Alonsa	41,790	Morden	43,301
Altona	1,249	Niverville	4,010
Ashern	51.536	Ochre River	4,311
Beausejour	35,246	Pilot Mound	25,048
Binscarth	12,199	Plum Coulee	2,529
Birtle	8,177	Portage la Prairie	96,176
Brandon	320,720	Richer	6,000
Churchill	187.069	Riverton	22,762
Diuphin	118,531	Rossburn	5,518
Dominion City	10,000	Russell	49.302
Eriksdale	26,759	Setkirk	210,180
Fisher Branch	2.093	Sprague	12,582
Flin Flon	295.423	St. Laurent	95,544
Gilbert Plains	3,420	St Lazare	29.023
Gretna	12,620	Ste. Agathe	7,490
Grunthal	4,643	Steinbach	9,453
lle des Chenes	2,538	The Pas	29,065
Killarney	1,807	Vita	4,477
Lac du Bonnet	31.657	Winkler	7,608
Leaf Rapids	1,190	Winnipeg	2,115,728
Lorette	3,823	Winnipeg Beach	36,428
Miniota	5,381	Winnipagosia	13,310
Minitonas	56,423	Sponsors	2,210,404
Minnedosa	61,067		
Subtotal Regular M & I			6,333,806

1999/00 Modernization and Improvement (M & I) Activities

Special Modernization and Improvement				
Community	Actual	Community	Actual \$	
Altona	30,411	Neepawa	17,095	
Brandon	70,597	Pilot Mound	7,400	
Cranberry Portage	14,862	Portage la Prairie	42,869	
Dauphin	99,844	Rivers	30,816	
Deloraine	16,399	Russell	42,268	
Ethelbert	39.405	Salkirk,	281,688	
Fannystelle	7.468	Souris	14,534	
Gretna	12,529	St. Lazare	28,257	
Hartney	34,420	The Pas	100,800	
McCreary	7,029	Winnipeg	2,432,802	
Melita	26,255	I Sponsors	902,287	
Morden	35,885		L	
Subtotal Special M & I			4,295,900	
TOTAL MODERNIZATION	& IMPROVEMENT		10,629.706	

Shelter Assistance Branch

The Shelter Assistance Branch (formerly Client Services) is responsible for assisting eligible renters to access benefits under the following programs:

- School Tax Assistance for Tenants 55 Plus
- Shelter Allowance For Elderly Renters (SAFER)
- Sheller Allowance For Family Renters (SAFFR)
- Complementary Assistance Program (CAP)
- Public Housing Applications

During the 1999/00 fiscal year, the Shelter Assistance Branch (which is part of the MHA) administered the following programs:

School Tax Assistance for Tenante 55 Plus

The School Tax Assistance for Tenants 55 Plus Program provides an annual grant of up to \$175 to tenants aged 55 years or older, to offset the school tax portion of rental costs. The grant is payable once a year. Applications submitted during 2000 relate to rents paid during the 1999 cakendar year. This program is administered by the MHA on behalf of the Department of Finance, and expenditures are recovered from the Department of Finance.

Applicants must meet eligibility criteria. Ten into goid 55 plu whole net income is less than \$23,800 and who rented their principal residence in the private rental market during the privious calendar year are generally eligible. Pensioners who were eligible but did not receive their rebate during pravious years, can apply for benefits retroactively for up to four years. Ten into living in non-profit housing for the eligible under this program because rents in the indusing units do not include school to cost.

During the year ended March 31, 2000, the Shelter Assistance Branch provided the following services for the delivery of this program:

- staff handkid a total of 5,947 telephone inquiries, representing an average of 495 inquiries per month; and
- 1,665 persons attended the office, representing an average of 139 persons per month.

During the year ended March 31, 2000, the School Tax Assistance program provided the following assistance:

Total number of recipients	5.291
Average benefit paid	\$138,00
Total expenditures for this fiscal year (000's)	\$730.2

The following table provides program information for the plast three years.

FISCAL YEAR	TOTAL APPLICATIONS RECEIVED	TOTAL NO, OF RECIPIENTS*	EXPENDITURES (000's) \$
1997/98	6,713	6.020	599.0
1998/99	4,513	6,178	733.3
1999/00	6,043	5,291	730.2

School Tax Assistance for Tenants Aged 55+ Three-Year Summary of Program Activity

Includes multiple rebates for retroactive benefits, and application, received in previous fiscal year and paid in current flac al year.

Shelter Allowance For Elderly Renters (SAFER)

The Shelter Allowince For Elderly Renters program provides direct monthly cash esistance to persons ag d 55 and over who rent their living accommodation in the privite mirk tplace and who rent excerds 25 per eint of household income. The program sublidity between 60 per cent and 90 per cent of the portion of the eligible and that excerds 26 per cent of the household income. As income increases and rent decreases in proportion to income, the selector is reduced. The miximum bits fit under the program is \$170 per month.

Applicants must re- pply for ben fits on an annual blais and must most eligibility criteria. The maximum eligible income for a single rent rag of 55 or older is \$1,470 ptr month, and the maximum claim ble rant on which benefits are blased is \$405. The maximum eligible income for a renting couple in which one or both person(s) are grid 55 or older is \$1,650 ptr month, and the maximum claimable rent on which benefits are based is \$455.

Persions in receipt of Employment and income Assistance are not eligible for benefits under this program. Persons residing in runt-geared-to-income subsidized elderly persons' housing, rent supplement housing or personal care homes are not eligible for benefits under this program.

During the year ended March 31, 2000, the Shelter Assistance Branch provided the following services for the delivery of this program:

- staff handled a total of 12,059 telephone inquiries, representing an average of 1,005 inquiries per month; and
- 2,530 persons attended the office, representing an average of 211 persons per month.

During the year ended March 31, 2000, the School Tax Assistance program provided the following assistance:

Number of recipients who received benefits during this fiscal year	3,683
Number of recipients receiving benefits as at March 2000	3,230
Average monthly benefit (as at March 31st)	\$64.00
Average age of SAFER recipient(s)	78.0 years
Total expenditures for this fiscal year (000's)	\$3,682.5

The following table provides program information for the past three years:

Three-Year Summary of Program Activity				
FISCAL YEAR	AVERAGE NO. OF RECIPIENTS PER MONTH	NO. OF ACTIVE RECIPIENTS AT YEAR END	TOTAL NO. OF RECIPIENTS	EXPENDITURES (000's) \$
1997/98	3,370	3,177	4,358	4,131.6
1998/99	3,147	3,341	3.920	3,874,3
1999/00	3 2 1 6	3 230	3,683	3 682.5

Shelter Allowance For Elderly Renters Three-Year Summary of Program Activity

Shelter Allowance For Family Renters (SAFFR)

The Shelter Allowance For Family Renters program provides direct monthly cash assistance to eligible families who rent their living accommodation in the private marketplace and whose rent excerteds 25 per cent of household income. The program subsidizes up to 90 per cent of the portion of the eligible rent that exceeds 25 per cent of the household income. As income increases and rent decreases in proportion to income, the assistance is reduced. The miximum benefit under the program is \$180 per month.

Applicants must re-apply for banefits on an annual basis and must meet eligibility criteria. To qualify for this program, there must be at least one dependent child under 18 years of age living in the household. For two-perion household (including on adult and one child/dependent), the maximum eligible income is \$19,380 per year (\$1,616 monthly) and the maximum claimable rent is \$445. For a three-person household (including at least one child/dependent), the miximum eligible income is \$20,940 per year (\$1,745 monthly) and the maximum claimable rent is \$480. For a four-person household (including at least one child/dependent), the maximum eligible income is \$21,780 per year (\$1,815 monthly) and the maximum claimable rent is \$480.

Persons in receipt of Employment and Income Assistance are not eligible for banefits under this program. Persons residing in rent-geared-to-income government-subsidized housing or rent supplement housing are not eligible for benefits under this program.

During the year ended March 31, 2000, the Shelter Assistance Branch provided the following services for the delivery of this program:

- staff handled a total of 8,953 telephone inquiries, representing an average of 746 inquiries per month, and
- 1,499 persons attended the office, representing an average of 125 persons per month.

During the year ended March 31, 2000, the program provided the following assistance.

Number of family households who received benefits during this fiscal year	1,243
Number of family households receiving benefits as at March 2000	691
Average monthly benefit (as at March 31st)	\$107
Average age of SAFFR recipient(s)	33.0 years
Ratio of single-parent families	80.0%
Total expenditures for this fiscal year (000's)	\$980.0

The following table provides program information for the past three years:

Shelter Allowance For Family Renters Three-Year Summary of Program Activity

FISCAL YEAR	AVERAGE NO. OF RECIPIENTS PER MONTH	NO. OF ACTIVE RECIPIENTS AT YEAR END	TOTAL NO. OF RECIPIENTS	EXPENDITURES (000°=) \$
1997/98	780	607	1,603	1,286.8
1998/99	572	761	1.354	1,094.2
1999/00	590	691	1 243	980.0

Complementary Assistance Program (CAP)

The Complementary Assistance Program provides grant assistance to housing co-operatives, to lower housing charges for income tested occupants. Applicants must meet income eligibility criteria. Co ops submit monthly statements to the division to claim assistance on behalf of eligible clients.

While the program is closed to new applications from co-ops, CAP assistance continues to be provided to co-ops under previous commitments.

During the year ended March 31, 2000, the Shelter Assistance Branch provided the following services for the delivery of the CAP co-op programs;

- staff handled a total of 813 telephone inquiries, representing an average of 68 inquiries per month; and
- 128 persons attended the office, representing an average of 10 persons each month.

During the year ended March 31, 2000, the program provided the following assistance:

Number of co-ops receiving assistance	10
Number of households meaiving benefits as at March 2000	138
Total expenditures for this fiscal year (000's)	\$249.4

The following table provides program information for the past three years.

Complementary Assistance Program Three-Year Summary of Program Activity

FISCAL YEAR	NO. OF CO-OPS AT YEAR END	NO. OF RECIPIENTS AT YEAR END	EXPENDITURES (000's)
1997/98	10	165	312.6
1998/99	10	152	296.3
1999/00	10	138	249.4

Public Housing Applications

The Shelter Assistance Branch is responsible for the application process for family and elderly public housing in Winnipeg.

During the year ended March 31, 2000, the Shelter Assistance Branch provided the following services for the processing of housing applications

- stall handled 12,878 telephone inquiries, representing an average of 1,073 inquiries per month; and
- 7,302 walk-in inquiries were assisted, representing an average of 608 walk-in inquiries per month.

These stalistics apply to the Shelter Assistance Branch only and do not reflect the activity of the MHA Winnipeg District Office.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000, the branch received 1,718 family, 387 elderly and 2,955 other (e.g., single non elderly) applications for housing in Winnipeg, representing an average of 422 applications per month.

Amortization of Capital Assets

This appropriation provides for the amortization of capital assets.

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00* \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00* \$000	Varlance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Other Expenditures	397.9		418.5	(20.6)	
Total Other Expenditures	397.9		418.5	(20 5)	

30-4 Amortization of Capital Assets

Adjusted figures reflect a transfer to the Department of Intergovernmental Affairs

Financial Information

Part B - Capital Investment Authority

In accordance with the implementation of accounting policy changes respecting tangible capital assets in 1999/00, Family Services' Capital Investment Authority reflects the costs relative to the re-engineering and integration of the City of Winnipeg and provincial government's two separate income assistance delivery systems.

B.2 - 2 Family Services - One-Tier Income Assistance System

Expenditures by Sub-Appropriation	Actual 1999/00 \$000	FTE	Estimate 1999/00 \$000	Variance Over/(Under)	Expl. No.
Other Expenditures	8,708.0		8,710.0	(2.0)	
Total Other Expenditures	8,706.0	_	8,710.0	(2.0)	

Department of Family Services and Housing Revenue Summary by Source (\$000's)

for the year ended March 31, 2000, with comparative figures for the previous year

1	Actual 998-1999	Actual 1 999 - 2000	Increase/ (Decrease)	Expl, No.	Revenue Source	Actual 1999-2000	Estimate 1999-2000	Increase <i>l</i> (Decrease)	Expl. No.
					Family Services:				
					Government of Canada				
	\$3,088.4	\$29493	(\$139.1)		(1) Employability Assistance for People with Disabilities	\$2,949.3	\$29493	\$0.0	
	112.7	77.7	(35.0)		(2) Child Support Guidelines	77.7	70.0	7.7	
	19053	0.0	(1,9053)	1	(3) Taking Change!	0.0	0.0	0.0	
	4908	98	(4810)	2	(4) National Child Benefil	9.8	0 0	9.8	
	2 2 46 3	0.0	(2,2463)	3	(5) Other Items	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Ξ	\$7,843.5	\$3,0368	(\$4,8067)	_	Sub-Total	\$3,0368	\$3,019,3	\$17.5	
					Other Revenue:				
	\$4,452.5	\$5,177.5	\$725.0	4	(1) Children's Special Allowance Recoveries	\$5,177.5	\$5,250.0	(\$72.5)	
	56437	57537	110 0		(2) Income Assistance Recoveries	5,753,7	60200	(266.3)	
					(3) Levy for Local Government Welfare Purposes				
	209.8	2098	0.0		in Unorganized Territories	209.8	210.0	(0.2)	
	720.9	733.6	12.7		(4) Sundry	733.6	1,1250	(3914)	5
1	\$11,0269	\$11 <u>.</u> 8746	\$847.7		Sub-Tot al	\$11_8746	\$12,6050	(\$730.4)	
	\$18,870,4	\$14.911.4	_{\$3,9590}		Total - Family Services	\$14,9 11.4	\$15,624.3	(\$7129)	
					Housing:				
					Other Revenue:				
					(1) Cost and Fee Recovery from Canada				
	\$681.0	\$0.0	(\$6810)	6	Mortgage and Housing Corporation	\$0.0	\$721.1	(\$721.1)	6
Ξ	\$681.0	\$0.0	(\$6810)		Total - Housing	\$0.0	\$721.1	(\$721.1)	
-	\$19,55 1.4	\$14,911.4	(\$4,6400)		Total - Family Services and Housing	\$14,911.4	\$16345.4	(\$1.4340)	

Explanation Number:

- 1. Fiscal year 1998/99 was the last year of the Contribution Agreement with the federal government respecting Taking Charget
- 2. The decrease in National Child Benefit recoveries in 1999/00 reflects a reduction for the non-recursing recovery of transitional funding for Employment and Income Assistance clients in receipt of the Working Income Supplement.
- 3. The decrease in Other Items for 1999/00 primarily reflects an unexpected removery in 1998/99 respecting prior years' Canada Assistance Plan dalms.
- 4. The increase in Children's Special Allowance Recoveries in 1999/00 is primally the result of an enhancement to the National Child Benefil, combined with an annualization of this revenue source in 1999/00.
- 5. The decrease in Sundry Revenue in 1999/00 is primarily the result of a decline in Post-Adoption Search and Registration Fees.
- 6. The Cost and Fee Recovery from the Canada Morigage and Housing Corporation was eliminated in 1999/00 through the signing of the new Social Housing Agreement. Under the lennis of the new agreement, the Department would assume the full responsibility for all administrative costs.

Department of Family Services and Housing Five-Year Expenditure and Staffing Summary by Appropriation (\$000's) for the years ended March 31, 1996 – March 31, 2000

Actual Ad usted Expenditures' 1995/96 1996/97 1997/98 1998/99 1999/00 FTE S FTE S FTE S FTE \$ FTE \$ Appropriation Family Services: 125 50 68758 115 50 66216 115 50 66308 115 50 6,7897 11550 7 2984 09-1 Administration and Finance 3748240 29352 356691.3 29352 342,2665 45252 3476149 09-2 Employment and Income Assistance 300.51 387.2599 293.52 09-3 Community living 963.25 103.094.4 94875 104 615 1 940 75 109 3758 937 75 118 496 5 940.41 131.268.3 09-4 Child and Family Services 17280241 147.00 184.751.3 147.00 193,761.1 147.00 210.9921 154 50 167 912 3 147.00 41.0 29483 09-5 Amortization of Capital Assets --658863 1 1 496 77 657 449 2 1 493 77 661 3548 1 655 43 700 122 0 Sub-Total Family Services 1.54376 0551424 1.50277 5 Housing: 2712 350 217.0 350 2339 3.50 232.7 350 4332 30-1 Housing Executive 350 4592 2 4 36 2 6 93.00 47142 30-2 Housing Program Support 105.00 6 187 5 81.50 7150 105.00 64585 30-3 The Manitoba Howsing and Renewal 440307 59,160.0 436258 35,108.5 376565 --..... -Corporation 3979 30-4 Amodization of Capital Assets 39,7038 9650 43201.8 507604 108.50 65 564 5 85.00 48,451.9 75.00 Sub. Total Housing 108.50 724427 6 1,58177 705,901.1 1,56877 7010586 175193 743,323.8 1.652.26 715,9028 1.611.27 Total Family Services and Housing

Adjusted figures reflect historical data on a comparable basis in those appropriations affected by a reorganization, during the years under review.

DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES AND HOUSING

RECONCILIATION STATEMENT

DETAILS	1999/00 ESTIMATES (\$000'=)
FAMILY SERVICES:	
1999/2000 MAIN ESTIMATES	701,719.8
ALLOCATION OF FUNDS FROM:	
- Internal Reform/Workforce Adjustment	144.6
1999/2000 ESTIMATE - FAMILY SERVICES	701,864.4
HOUSING:	
1999/2000 MAIN ESTIMATES	44,997.2
TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS TO: - Intergovernmental Affairs	(106.3)
ALLOCATION OF FUNDS FROM: - Internal Reform/Workforce Adjustment	166.0
1999/2000 ESTIMATE - HOUSING	45,056.9
1999/2000 ESTIMATE - FAMILY SERVICES AND HOUSING	746,921.3

Department of Family Services and Housing Expenditure Summary - Family Services (\$000's)

for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000, with comparative figures for the previous year

Estimate 1999/00 ¹¹	Appropriation	Actual 1999/00	Actual 1998년99 ⁶³	Increase/ (Decrease)	Expl No.
	09-1 Administration and Finance				
\$27.0	(a) Minister's Salary	\$27.0	\$26.1	\$0.9	
	(b) Executive Support				
546.2	Salaries and Employee Benefiits	546.4	489.5	569	
60.7	Other Extenditures	78.7	78.3	04	
	(c) Social Services Advisory Committee				
207.8	Salaries and Employee Benefits	2217	189.0	32.7	
159.1	Other Expenditures	73.5	134.0	(60.5)	1
	(d) Human Resource Services				
831.8	Salaries and Employee Benefits	8391	738.9	100.2	
888	Other Expenditures	86 5	84.4	2.1	
	(e) Policy and Ptanning				
816.1	Salaries and Employee Benefits	741,7	6975	44.2	
177.7	Other Expenditures	246 9	211.7	35.2	
	(f) Financial and Administrative Services				
1,756.8	Salaries and Employee Benefits	1, 673 .0	1.544.3	128.7	
4934	Other Expend itures	481.0	473.9	7.1	
	(9) Information Systems			10	
1,519.0	Salaries and Employee Benefits	1,491.1	1.355.1	136.0	
818.9	Other Expendit:Ures	7918	767.0	248	
\$7,523.3	Total 09-1	\$7,298.4	\$6.789.7	\$508,7	

Department of Family Services and Housing Expenditure Summary - Family Services (\$000's)

for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000, with comparative figures for the previous year

Estimate 1999/00 •)	Appropriation	Actual 1999/00	Actual 1998/99 ¹⁰	Increase∤ _{⊉ecrease)	Expl. No.
	09-2 Employment and Income Assistance				
	(a) Program Services				
\$21,246.0	Salaries and Employee Benefils	\$19,984.6	\$16 105 8	\$3878 .8	2
7,3296	Other Expenditures	79256	5,855.3	2070.3	2
	(b) Ineome Assistance Programs				
268,188.1	Employment and Income Assistance	262,631.4	263,234.8	(6034.)	3
291389	Health Services	29,5387	26,566.1	2,9726	4
56757	Municipal Assistance	4,957.5	6,4252	(1467.7)	5
11,708.8	Income Assistance for Persons with a Disability	11,635.5	10,010,9	1,624,6	6
2,770.0	(c) Building Independence	2,626,1	5 6 18 9	(2,992,8)	7
	(d) Income Supplement Programs				
5968	Salaries and Employee Benefils	525.2	4457	79.5	
3333	Other Expenditures	2707	259.5	11.2	
8 335.1	Financial Assistance	7,5196	7 7 4 4 . 3	(224.7)	
\$355,322.3	Total 09-2	\$347,614.9	\$342,266.5	\$5,348.4	

Department of Family Services and Housing Expenditure Summary - Family Services (\$000's)

for the liscal year ended March 31, 2000, with comparative figures for the previous year

Estimate 1999/00 •)	Appropulation	Actual 1999/00	Actual 1998/99 ⁶¹	Increase/ (Decrease)	Expl No.
	09-3 Community Living				
	(a) Regional Operations				
\$15 360 6	Salaries and Employee Benefils	\$14,923,9	\$14,032.8	\$891.1	8
2,095.3	Olher Expenditures	26.96.4	2547.1	149.3	•
	(b) Adull Services				
1,733.6	Salaries and Employee Benelils	1592.0	1,459,3	1327	
1,2861	Other Expenditures	1,311.0	558.8	752.2	9
82,858,6	Financial Assistance and External Agencies	83,806,9	73,854.1	99528	10
	(c) Maniloba Developmental Centre				
23,856,2	Salaries and Employee Benefils	229723	21,867.7	1,104.6	11
3,093.3	OlherExpenditures	32098	3 350 9	(141.1)	,.
	(d) Residential Care Licensing				
2472	Salailes and Employee Benefiils	2452	236.5	8.7	
36.4	Other Expenditures	336	35.3	(1.7)	
	(e) Office of the Vulnerable Persons' Commissioner				
240.5	Salaries and Employee Benefits	350.9	329.9	21.0	
2525	Other Expenditures	126.3	224.1	(978)	12
\$131.060.3	Tolal 09-3	\$131,268,3	\$118,496.5	\$12,771.8	

Department of Family Service's and Housing Expenditure Summary - Family Services (\$000's) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000, with comparative figures for the previous year

Estimate 1999/00 **	Appropriation	Actual 1999/00	Actual 1996/99 ^의	Increase! (Decrease)	Expl No.
	09-4 Child and Family Services				
	(a) Child, Family and Community Development				
\$3 416 6	Salaries and Employee Benefits	\$36503	\$3 359.4	\$290.9	-
36091	Other Expenditures	36204	2.444.5	1,175.9	13
122 225 7	Maintenance of Children and External Agencies	129,6000	19 621 9	9,978.1	14
2,500 .0	The Family Support Innovations Fund	2,427.4	2.460.4	(33.0)	
	(b) Family Conciliation				
789.8	Salaries and Employee Benefits	641 .1	609.1	32,0	
103.1	Other Expenditures	145.4	149.1	(3.7)	
	(c) Family Violence Prevention				
486.3	Salaries and Employee Benefiits	407.8	291.3	116.5	15
90 9	Other Expenditures	99 9	95.2	4.7	
6,9302	External Agencies	63318	6,186.9	144.9	
	(d) Children's Special Services				
3305	Salaties and Employee Benefits	377.5	3396	37.9	
294.5	Other Expenditures	324.8	265 5	593	16
10,307.0	Financial Assistance and External Agencies	10,254.2	9.253.8	10004	17
	(e) Child Day Care				
2,211.7	Salaries and Employee Benefits	22825	2,174.2	108.3	
470.0	Other Expenditures	559.4	522.1	37.3	
51,015,7	Financial Assistance and Grants	50 269 6	45,988.1	4,281.5	18
\$204 781.1	Total 09.4	\$210,992.1	\$193,761.1	\$17,231.0	
\$3,177.4	09-5 Amortization of Capital Assets	\$2,948,3	\$41.0	\$2,907.3	19
\$701.864.4	Total Family Services	\$700,122.0	\$661,354.8	\$38,757.2	

Department of Family Services and Housing Exponditure Summary – Housing (\$000's) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000, with comparative figures for the previous year

Estimate 1999/00 •1	Appropriation	Actual 1999/00	Actual 1998/99 ³⁴	Incroase/ (Decrease)	Ëxpl. No.
	30-1 Housing Executive				
\$13.5	(a) Minister's Salary	\$7.2	\$13,1	(\$5.9)	
	(b) Executive Support				
331.0	Salaries and Employee Benefits	3969	180.5	216.4	20
44.3	Other Expenditures	29.1	39.1	(10.0)	20
\$308.0	Total 30-1	\$4 33,2	\$232.7	\$200.5	
	30-2 Housing Program Support				
	(a) Finance and Operations				
\$2,201.3	Salaries and Employee Benefirts	\$1,955.3	\$1623.9	\$331.4	21
365.2	Other Expenditures	3623	3565	5.8	
(3644:)	Recoverable from Other Appropriations	(388.6)	0.0	(3886)	22
	(b) Planning and Portfolio Administration				
1.002.8	Salaries and Employee Benefts	892.6	427,0	465.6	23
106_0	Other Expenditures	125.4	108.8	16.6	
(496.8)	Recoverable from Other Appropriations	(380.0)	0.0	(3800)	24
	(c) Human Resource Services				
266.4	Salaries and Employee Benefits	218.8	1741	44.7	
46,4	Other Expenditures	391	31.5	7.6	
	(d) Information Systems				
942.4	Salaries and Employee Benefils	7557	663.5	92.2	
1,307,2	Other Expenditures	1,133.6	977.3	158.3	
\$5,376.5	To tal 30.2	\$4,714.2	\$4,362.6	\$351.6	

Department of Family Services and Housing Expenditure Summary – Housing

for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000, with comparative figures for the previous year

Estimate		Actual	Actual	Incieased	Expl
1999/00 **	Appropriation	1999/00	1998/99 ^{b)}	(Deciease)	No.
	30-3 The Maniloba Housing and Renewal Corporation				
32952.8	(a) Trausfei Payments	\$32731.4	\$29,9697	\$2,761.7	25
5,920.3	(b) Grants and Subsidies	49251	5,138,8	(213.7)	
\$38,873.1	Toilal 30-3	\$37,656.5	\$35,108.5	\$2,548.0	
\$418.5	30.4 Amortization of Capital Assets	\$397.9	\$0.0	\$397.9	26
\$45,056.9	Total Housing	\$43,201.8	\$39,703.8	\$3,498.0	-
\$748,921.3	Total Family Services and Housing	\$743,323.8	\$701,058.6	\$42,265.2	

1. The decrease is primarily the result of an accounting change respecting the postug of board members salaries Beginning in 1999/00, board members' salaries were posted through the Branch's salary appropriation as opposed to operating.

2. The increases are primarily the result of increased staffing and operating requirements associated with the implementation of the One-Tier Income Assistance Delivery System in the City of Winnipeg.

- 3. The decrease is primarily due to a decrease in caseload.
- 4. The increase is primarily due to increases in the average cost per prescription and the number of prescriptions per case.
- 5. The decrease is primarily a result of lower average monthly caseloads.
- 6. The increase is primarily due to increased caseload and an increase in the monthly benefirit
- 7. The decrease is primarily due to a reduction in the funding for Taking Charge Inc: as a result of the expiration of the federal/provincial funding airangement.
- 8. The increase is primatily due to the general salary increase and the termination of the reduced work week effective April 1999.
- 9. The increase is primarily the result of central governments deskilop computer charges beginning in 1999/00.
- 10. The increase is primarily the result of increases in Supported Living and Day Services programs.
- 11. The increase is primarily due to the general salary increase and the termination of the reduced work week effective April 1999.

- 12. The decrease is primarily a result of an accounting change respective the posting of hearing panel members' sataries. Beginning in 1999/00, panel members' sataries were posted through the Branch's satary appropriation as opposed to operating.
- 13. The increase is primarily the result of central government's desktop computer charges beginning in 1999/00.
- 14. The increase is primarily due to increased costs by Winnipeg Chiki and Family Services, increased maintenance expenditures for children in foster care, and funding adjustments for Residential Care Facilities and First Nations agencies.
- 15. The increase is primarily due to the cost of 3.00 additional positions approved in 1999/00, the general salary increase and the termination of the reduced work week effective April 1999.
- 16. The increase is primarily due to increased training costs in the Unified Referral Intake System.
- 17. The increase is primarily due to increased volume and expenditure in the Family Support Program.
- 18. The increase is primarily due to volume increases in Subsidy and Children with Disabilities programs, and a funding increase in operating grants to child care infant and pre-school spaces as well as family day care and nursery schools.
- 19. The increase reflects the charge for Family Services' share of the Better Methods (SAP) and Desktop Management Initiatives, as well as the first year of amoutization applicable to the One-Tier Income Assistance Delivery System
- 20. The increase is primarily due to severance payouts of former Executive Support staff
- 21. The increase is primarily due to an additional 8.50 FTE's approved in 1999/00 for the new Rural and Native Housing and Technical Services area.
- 22. The salaries for the new Rural and Native Housing and Technical Services area were recoverable from other appropriations in 1999/00 (ref Expl. No. 21).
- 23. The increase is primarily due to an additional 1100 FTE's approved in 1999/00 for the new Polifolio Administration area
- 24. The salaries for the new Portfolio Administration area were recoverable from other appropriations in 1999/00 (ref. Expl. No. 23).
- 25. The increase is primarily due to the department fully drawing down the provincial funding for housing programs covered under the new Social Housing Agreement and the required provision for loss on MHRC's land portfolio in 1999/00.
- 26. The increase reflects the charge for the division's share of the Beller Methods (SAP) and Desklop Management Initiatives occurring in 1999/00

NOTES:

- a) The 1999/00 Estimatereflects amounts as displayed in the Printed Main Estimates on behalf of the departments of Family Services and Housing, as well as an atlocation from the Enabling Appropriations respecting workforce adjustment oosts. Additionally, Housing reflects a transfer of functions to the Department of Intergovernmental Affairs.
- b) The 1998/99 date has been reorganized to reflect the 1999/00 appropriation structure.

The Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2000

MANAGEMENT REPORT

The accompanying financial statements of The Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation are the responsibility of management and have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies stated in the financial statements. These accounting policies have been applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year. In management's opinion, the financial statements have been properly prepared within reasonable limits of materiality, incorporating management's best judgment regarding all necessary estimates and all other data available up to July 14, 2000.

Management maintains internal controls to provide reasonable assurance of the reliability and accuracy of the financial information and that the assets of The Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation are properly safeguarded.

The responsibility of the Provincial Auditor is to express an independent, professional opinion on whether the financial statements of The Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation are fairly presented in accordance with the accounting policies stated in the notes to the financial statements. The Auditor's Report outlines the scope of the audit examination and provides the audit opinion.

On behalf of Management

Henry Bos, Director, Corporate Services

Kim Sharman, A/Assistant Deputy Minister

July 14, 2000



Office of the Provincial Auditor

SCO 200 Ponage Averus Weinipeg Marcistas GANADA FISC (ICH

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Legislative Assembly of Manitoba

We have audited the balance sheet of The Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation as at March 31, 2000 and the statements of operations, The Manitoba Housing and Renewal Fund (Deficit) and cush flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these tinancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Corporation as at March 31, 2000 and the results of its operations and its each flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 2 to the financial statements.

Sauid

Winnipeg, Manitoba July 14, 2000

David Petric, CA for the Provincial Auditor

THE MANITOBA HOUSING AND RENEWAL CORPORATION BALANCE SHEET MARCH 31, 2000 (with comparative figures for 1999)

ASSETS

	2000	1999
Cash (note 4)	\$ 73,656,069	\$ 35,802,883
Accounts receivable and accruits (note 5)	22,448,931	49,677,268
Loans and mortgages receivable (note 6)	182,636,047	190,917,901
Investment in land and housing: Housing projects (note 7) Housing investment (note 8) Land development costs (note 9) Land (note 10)	327.806,811 17,540,773 681.904 12,505,098 358,534,586	334,107,113 18,557,064 1,083,494 14,327,139 368,074,810
Capital assets (note 11)	\$837,275,633	130,533 \$644,603,395

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Bank indebledness of joint venture (note 9)	s -	\$ 309,789
Accounts payable, holdbacks and accruais	26,268,832	23,202,926
Provision for modernization and improvement	26,218,703	29,018,983
Deferred revenue (noto 12)	1,977,414	1,718,105
Long-term debt (note 13)	570,894,272	587,704,091
Risk reserve fund (note 25)	12,469,377	12,190,152
Deferred federal contributions (note 14)	16,793,661	6,349,511
The Manitoba Housing and Renewal Fund (Deficit)	<u>(17</u> ,346,626)	(15,890,162)

Contingencies (note 24) Commitments (note 26) Guarantees (note 27)

Approved by the Board of Directors:

Director

(see accompanying notes)

\$644,603,395 H. Cor Diretor

\$637,275,633

THE MANITOBA HOUSING AND RENEWAL CORPORATION STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000 (with comparative figures for 1999)

	2000	1999
Grants from the Province of Manitoba (note 16)		
Grants from the Province of Munitopa (note 19)	5 38,836,916	\$ 37,580,934
Contributed services (notes 2 (I) and 17)	5,107,500	3,458,300
Housing operations		
Rental revenue (Schedule A)	57,502,187	56,710,305
Federal subsidies	21,602,035	24,048,468
Grant for modernization and improvement		15,000,000
	79 104,222	95,758,774
interest:		
Loans and mortgages	18,928,290	19,503,112
Bank and other	163,355	512,086
	19,091,645	20,015,198
Sales of land - joint venture (noin 9)	1,109,790	467.962
Other	4.704	311,999
	143,254,777	157,593,167
Expanditures		
Housing operations (Schedule A)	98,595,693	97,196,287
Renini subsidies (Schedule D)	12,032,710	12,427,897
Provision for modernization and improvement		15,000,000
Grants and subsidies (note 20)	7,968,236	5,993,034
Interest expense (note 19)	20,445,494	21,030,076
Administrative services (notes 2 (I) and 17)	2,980.300	2,201,100
Write down of land	1,454,708	
Co-op HomoSlart Program Basistence	259,744	314,413
Gain on sale of housing projects	(529,074)	(283,994)
Land expenses	96,699	47,207
Loss (Gain) on sele of land	51,731	(11,759)
Provision for loss on loans and mortgages receivable	58.021	181,570
Cost of land sales - joint veniure	790,082	353,074
Other	505,888	460,016
	144,711,241	154,928,723
(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expanditures transferred	P 10 100 1011	P. 0.001.111
to The Maniloba Housing and Renawal Fund (Daficit)	\$ (1.456.464)	\$ 2,664,444

(see accompanying notes)

THE MANITOBA HOUSING AND RENEWAL CORPORATION STATEMENT OF THE MANITOBA HOUSING AND RENEWAL FUND (DEFICIT) YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000 (with comparative figures for 1999)

	2000	1999
Balance at beginning of year	\$(15,690,162)	\$(18.554,60G)
(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenditure	_ <u>(1,4</u> 56,464)	_2,664,444
Balance at end of year	\$(17,346,626)	\$(15,890,162)

(see accompanying notes)

THE MANITOBA HOUSING AND RENEWAL CORPORATION STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000 (with comparative figures for 1999)

Cash provided by (used for):	2000	1999
Operating activities:		
Operating activities: (Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenditure	611 JPC 1011	* * * * * * * * * * * * *
(Denciency) excess of revenue over expenditure	\$(1,456,464)	\$ 2,664,444
Add (deduct) items not involving cash:		
Amorilzation	6,660,581	8,042,094
Loss (Gain) on sale of lend	51,731	(11,759)
Provision for loss on loss and mortgages	56,021	161,570
Write down of land	1,454,708	
Gain on sale of housing projects	(529,074)	(263,994
Federal subsidies - housing projects	(1,139,716)	(1,109,389
	7,097,787	9,482,966
Net change in non-cash balances related to operations;		
Accounts receivable and accruais	27,228,337	(13,045,517
Accounts physics, holdbacks and accruais	3,065,906	(197,682
Provision for modernization and improvament	(2,800,280)	14,018,983
Deferred revenue	259,309	(204,511)
Deferred federal contributions	10,444,160	8.349,511
Land development costs	401,890	209,870
Land in joint ventura	149,716	68,898
Risk Reserve Fund	279,225	12,190,152
	48,125,740	28,872,470
Financing activities:		
Borrowings	86,038	2,108,038
Repayment of borrowings	(16,895,857)	(14,688,000)
	(16,809,819)	(12,579,962)
Investing activities:		
Additions to land and housing	(544,355)	(59,676)
Additions to louns and morto gas	(183,723)	(890,516)
Proceeds from a le of land and housing	1,165,576	1,299,730
Proceeds from repayment of loans and mortgages	8,409,556	6,481,480
	8,847,054	6,831,018
increase in cash	38,162,975	23,123,528
Cash at beginning of year	36,493,094	12,369,568
Cash at end of year	\$73,656,069	\$35 493 094
Cash at end of year is comprised of:		
Cash	\$73,858,089	\$35,802,883
Bank indebtedness of joint venture		(309,789)
	\$73,658,069	\$35,493,094
(see accompanyin	g notes)	

(see accompanying notes)

THE MANITOBA HOUSING AND RENEWAL CORPORATION SCHEDULE OF HOUSING OPERATIONS FOR M.H.R.C. OWNED PROPERTIES YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000 (with comparative total figures for 1999)

	Manitoba Housing Authority Managed (Schedule B)	Sponsor Managed (Schedule C)	2000 Total	1999 Total
Revanue				
Rentai revenue	\$ <u>46,671,540</u>	\$10,830,647	\$57.502.187	\$66 <u>,7</u> 10,306
Expenditure				
Administration (note 17)	11,443,949	1,284,832	12,728,781	10,902,850
Property operating	31,888,310	7,733,998	39,622,308	38,296.031
Grants in lieu of taxes	8,171,169	1,617,780	9,768,949	11,945,551
Amortization and interest	30,425,460	6,030,195	36,455,655	36,051,855
	81,928,888	16,656,805	98,595,693	97,190,287
Operating loss	35,257,348	5,838,158	41,093,505	40,485,981
Less: federal subsidies	17,074,283	3,013,109	20,087,392	23,379,653
Net housing operations	\$18,183,065	\$2,823,049	\$21,006,114	\$17,106,328

SCHEDULE 8

THE MANITOBA HOUSING AND RENEWAL CORPORATION SCHEDULEOF MANITOBA HOUSING AUTHORITY HOUSING OPERATIONS YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000 (with comparative figures for 1999)

	-		PRE 1980	6		POST	r 1905		
	Regular Section 79	Ruial and Nalive Section 79	Urban and Rural Section 82	Public Non Protit Section 95	Olher	Ruial and Nalive Section 79	Public Non Profit Section 95	2000	1999 Total
Revenue									
Ren birevenue	\$ <u>2072.024</u>	\$ <u>2.121403</u>	\$ <u>31,908,738</u>	\$ <u>3,461221</u>	\$3,696,999	\$_712,831	\$2698324	\$46.67 <u>1</u> .540	\$44,764093
Expenditure									
Administration (note 17) Property operating Grants in fieu of	10 - 10	572,377 1.178242	7 161,096 22 464,692	6 81,955 2373,323	1,740,838 2,420,237	180 160 409 724	540,637 1 306,472	11 443 949 31 808 310	9 006 588 31 280 7 48
laxes Amortization	245,341	382,405	5,745,049	658,863	470 441	127,608	543 462	0,171,169	9 996 600
and interest	<u>41,455</u> 2 <u>509302</u>	<u>3 213 719</u> 5 <u>346 743</u>	<u>13773,760</u> 49,144 <u>597</u>	5 <u>298,458</u> 9010,599	<u>1896 707</u> <u>5528,223</u>	1.421,317 2,138,809	<u>4780 044</u> 7,250 615	<u>30.435460</u> 81,928,888	<u>29 381 942</u> 79,665 878
Operating loss	\$ <u>437.278</u>	\$ <u>3,225,340</u>	\$17235.859	\$5,549,376	5 <u>2,831,224</u>	\$ <u>1,425,978</u>	5 <u>4,5 52,291</u>	S <u>35 267 34</u> 8	\$ <u>34,901.765</u>

THE MANITOBA HOUSING AND RENEWAL CORPORATION SCHEDULE OF SPONSOR MANAGED HOUSING OPERATIONS YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000 (with comparative ligures for 1999)

		PRE	1986		PO\$T	1985		
	Rural and Native Section79	Viban and Ruial Section 82	Public Non Profit Section 95	Other	Public Non Profil Section 95	Rural and Native Section 79	2000 Total	1999 Total
Revenue								
Rentatievenie	\$16844 7	\$ <u>7,49</u> 1, <u>5</u> 89	\$_ <u>952989</u>	\$1, <u>4</u> 67, <u>019</u>	\$ <u>636,965</u>	\$ <u>113638</u>	\$ <u>10.83064</u> 7	\$11 946 213
<u>Excend</u> iture								
Administration (note 17) Property operation	12,100 196 809	1054,180 5902,194	79.073 523.240	72,350 796,686	56 322 363 446	10 807 51 623	1284832 7.733,998	1,8 86,262 7,015,283
Grants in lieu of taxes	19 815	1053553	171.323	256,211	166,834	10.044	1 617 780	1948951
Amortization and interest	<u>146 613</u> 275, <u>337</u>	<u>3046833</u> 11,058,760	<u>1,265 815</u> 2039,451	<u>421280</u> 1 <u>546 527</u>	<u>1003244</u> 1.529.645	<u>146,410</u> 218 \$84	<u>6030,195</u> 16666805	6 669 9 13 17 5 30 409
Operating loss (profit.)	\$106,820	\$ <u>3,565,171</u>	5 <u>1.082462</u>	s <u>79,508</u>	\$ <u>_692.881</u>	\$ <u>105,246</u>	\$ <u>5.836.158</u>	\$ <u>5,584,196</u>

THE MANITOBA HOUSING AND RENEWAL CORPORATION SCHEDULE OF RENTAL SUBSIDIES YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000 (with comparative total figures for 1999)

	2000 Total	1999 Total
Private non-profit (Post 1985)		
Net subsidy (note 18)	\$_3 <u>,4</u> 90,088	\$ 3,745,851
Rent supplement		
Pre 1966 - Section 82a - Section 82b	1,639,259 769,678 609,137	2,013,617 969,351 2,982,968
Post 1985 - Section 82	2.017.922	2,245,669
Totel rent supplement Less: federal subsidies	4,627,059 2,721,169	5,228,637 3,072,904
Net subsidy	1,905,890	2,155,733
CMHC units transferred (note 3)		
Rural and Native Program Urban Native Program Private Non-Profit Program Co-operative Non-Profit Program	6,288,209 7,390,808 5,635,344 <u>4,010,847</u> 25,305,208	7,252,433 4,478,303 3,091, 92 2,050,516 16,872,844
Less: federal subsidios	18,668, <u>4</u> 67	10,346,731
Net subsidy	6,636,741	6 <u>,</u> 526 <u>,</u> 113
Total rental subsidies	\$12,032,719	\$12,427,697

THE MANITOBA HOUSING AND RENEWAL CORPORATION NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - MARCH 31, 2000

1, Authority

The Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation (MHRC) operates under the authority of The Housing and Renewal Corporation Act, being Chapter H 160 Revised Statutes of Manitoba 1987. The purposes and objects of the Act are;

- a) to ensure that there is an adequate supply of housing stock in Manitoba;
- b) to enhance the affordability of, and accessibility to, adequate housing for Manitobans, particularly those of low and moderate income and those with specialized needs;
- c) to maintain and improve the condition of existing housing stock; and
- to stimulate and influence the activities of the housing market to the benefit of Manitobans as a whole.

MHRC is under the management and control of a Board of Directors appointed by the Lieutenant Governor In Council. The board shall consist of not fewer than five members and not more than 13 members and the Lieutenant Governor in Council may designate one of the members of the board as chairperson and one member as vice-chairperson.

The Corporation is aconomically dependent on the Government of the Province of Manitoba.

These financial statements include, in Schedule 8, the operating results of MHRC owned properties which are managed by The Manitoba Housing Authority (MHA). MHA was incorporated in 1992 as an agency of MHRC.

MHA is under the management and control of a Board of Directors who are appointed by the Minister of Family Services and Housing.

THE MANITOBA HOUSING AND RENEWAL CORPORATION NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - MARCH 31, 2000

2. Significant accounting policies

a) Basis of accounting

The Corporation's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

b) Loans and mortgagos recolvable

Leans and mortgages receivable are valued at principal amounts less an allowance for lean impairment.

c) Losn forgiveness

Loan forgiveness for forgivable loans is epproved in accordance with lite terms of the Ioan agreements. The Corporation records an asset valuation allowance equal to the amount of the loan at lite time the Ioan is granted. As forgiveness conditions are met by the borrower, the Corporation records the annual forgiveness by reducing both the forgivable Ioan and the accompanying valuation allowance.

d) Allowance for loan impairment

The Corporation maintains an allowance for ioun impairment, which reduces the carrying value of loans and mortgages receivable to their estimated realizable amounts. Depending on the program under which the loan or mortgage is made, estimated realizable amounts are determined with reference to the Corporation's historical loss experience on similar loans or the appraised value of the project financed by the loan or mortgage.

THE MANITOBA HOUSING AND RENEWAL CORPORATION NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - MARCH 31, 2000

Specific allowances are established for individual loans and mortgages for which the estimated realizable amount is less than the carrying value. The Corporation does not provide any additional non-specific, general provision for loan impairment. The Corporation's Board of Directors has approved a policy which defines whether an individual mortgage or loan balance is to be considered impaired based on the time period that it has been in arrears.

Housing projects and amortization

- Social housing projects are valued at cost less accumulated amortization.
- Market housing projects are valued at the lesser of cost less accumulated amortization and net realizable value.
- Cost includes direct construction costs, and acquisition costs and interest and other related carrying charges incurred during the period of construction.
- iv) Housing projects which are declared ebandoned or surplus to the needs of the Corporation are valued at the lesser of cost less accumulated amortization and not realizable value.
- v) Amortization of housing projects is based on the actual principal repayment of the long term debt. This policy is similar to that followed by Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC). Amortization for projects built under the Rural and Native Housing Program is based on the imputed principal repayment equivalent to that of 100% long term debt financing with CMHC.

f) Housing investment

Housing investment is valued at cost less accumulated amortization. Annual amortization is equal to the annual principal repayment of the imputed long term debt as determined by CMHC.
g) Interest in joint vonture

The Interest in joint venture is recognized using the proportionate consolidation method, Proportionate consolidation is a method of accounting and reporting whereby MHRC's prorate share of each of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures of the joint venture is combined on a line by line basis with similar items in MHRC's financial statements.

h) Land

Land is valued at the lower of cost and appraised value adjusted for estimated disposition costs, except for land leased to co-operatives. Cost includes ecquisition Costs and related carrying costs. The carrying costs of the land, which include interest, planning and development costs, grants in liau of taxes, loss revenue derived from use of undeveloped land, were capitalized to land to March 31, 1993. Effective April 1, 1993 the carrying costs are charged annually to operations. Cost for land acquired after March 31, 1993 consists of the original purchase price.

Land leased to co-operatives is valued at original cost. The Corporation incurs no liabilities or obligations with respect to the lessees' buildings situated on the land. The carrying costs of the land, net of lease revenue, are charged annually to MHRC operations.

I) Interest capitalization

interest costs on financing related to housing projects and housing investments are capitalized to the data of completion.

145

Pension costs and obligations.

Current service contributions for MHA employees are recognized as operating expanses. The Corporation has no further liability associated with the annual cost of pension benefits earned by employees.

k) Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is recorded on a straight-line basis at the rate of 25% per year.

I) Contributed services

Under an agreement entered into between The Maniloba Housing and Renewal Corporation and the Department of Housing, in 1984, the Department provides administrative services to MHRC at no cost. The value of these contributed services is \$5,107,500 (1999 - \$3,458,300) and is recorded as revenue and expanditure,

m) Modernization and Improvement

Normal, recurring modernization and improvement expanditures, which are funded by annual grent and subsidy revenues are expensed in the period in which likey are incurred. Significant, nonrecurring modernization and improvement costs, which are funded by designated revenues, are accrued in the same period that such designated grant or subsidy revenues are epproved by the funder and recorded by MHRC.

n) Financial Instrumonts

i) Financial Risk

Financial risk is the risk to the Corporation's operations that arises from fluctuations in interest rates, and the degree of volatility of those rates. The Corporation does not use derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to interest risk. This risk is mitigated through the almost exclusive use of fixed rate terms for its mortgages and loans receivable and its long term debt.

ii) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counterparty to an agreement with the Corporation will fail to perform its obligations. The Corporation conducts an assessment of credit issues prior to committing to such agreements and it actively monitors the credit risks associated with its accounts receivable and loans and mortgages receivable on an ongoing basis.

iii) Fair Valuo

There is no secondary market for many of the financial assets in which the Corporation invests or for the debt it issues. These circumstances, together with the uncertainty and potentially broad range of outcomes pertaining to the future cash flows related to these items, render the calculation of fair values, with appropriate reliability, impractical.

3. Acquisition of Control of Social Housing Operations

Pursuant to the Social Housing Agreement executed by MHRC and CMHC on September 3, 1998 which look effect October 1, 1998. CMHC transferred its ownership interest in Public Housing Projects to MHRC in accordance with a Declaration of Trust, and MHRC has assumed note responsibility for operating policy decisions relating to these projects. Previous agreement provided for the two parties to exercise joint control over operating policies. Operating to sees in programs for which MHRC has assumed responsibility have been reflected in Schedule D since the effective date logethor with CMHC subsidies towards program operating losses.

4. Cash

	2000	1999
On deposit with the Minister of Finance:		
Trust deposits	5-12,819,501	\$12,039,008
Modernization and Improvement fund	16,090,062	15,393,591
Risk reserve (und (note 26)	12,701,687	12,190,152
Mobile home lean guarantee program fund (note 27)	674,229	643,307
Security deposits	97,077	90,805
Noon m al program	115,782	110,033
	72,498,338	40.486,894
Bank	1,150,531	(4,672,651)
Petty cash	7,200	8,650
Cash	\$73,656,069	\$35,802,883

5. Accounts receivable and accruals

2000	1999
\$ 309,326	\$26,336.423
16.447.492	19,648,746
199,303	264,429
757,489	822,452
172.292	28,002
4,583,029	2,677,216
\$27,448,931	\$49,677,268
	\$ 309,326 16,447,492 199,303 757,469 172,292 4,563,029

6. Loans and mortgages receivable

a) Composition of loans and mortgages receivable

	2000	1999
Federal/Provincial Housing:		
Private Non-Profit Housing Program	\$114,372,310	\$115,421,863
Rural and Native Housing Program	188,023	238,867
Urban Native Housing Program	_43.839.000	44,650,948
	158.199.333	160,311,676
Market Rental Programs:		
Co-operative HomeStart Program	8,437,938	8,756,882
Co-operative Index Linked Program	10,062,709	10,462,298
Manitoba Rural RentalStart Program	607,400	601,162
Manitoba Senior RentalStart Program	5.664.423	10,112,344
	24 <u>,</u> 772 <u>,4</u> 70	29,952,686
Olhar Programs;		
Community Residences Program	8,104,350	8,919,046
Market Homeowner Programs	521,935	643,955
Homeowner Rehabilitation Programs	528,945	572,325
Other	225,307	241,291
	9,380,537	10,376,617
	192,352,340	200,640,981
Less - allowance for loan impairment	9,716,293	9,723_080
Loans and mortgages receivable	\$182,636,047	\$190,917,901

Loans and mortgages receivable bear Interest at various rates between 2% and 13.5% with maturities at various dates to 2024,

In addition to the toans and mortgages above, forgivable loans outstanding in the amount of \$6,587,992 (1999 - \$6,659,867) have been approved in accordance with the terms of the loan agreements. An asset valuation allowance equal to the amount of outstanding forgivable loans has been recorded by the Corporation.

b) Allowance for loan impairment

The allowance for to in imphirm init is comprised of the following specific provisions:

		2000	1999
	Markel rental programs	\$9,516,119	\$9,526,535
	Other programs	200,174	196,545
		\$ <u>9,716,293</u>	\$0,723,080
7.	Housing projects		
		2000	1999
	Completed Housing Projects:		
	Original cost	\$404,422,743	\$405,846,438
	Less - financing provided by CMHC	_20,205,747	_21,348,482
		384,218,996	384,500,976
	Loss - acounulated emortization	56.410,185	_50,393,863
	Hou ing projects	\$327,806,811	\$334,107,113

8. Housing investment

	2000	1999	
Housing investment	\$17,540,773	\$18 _{\$} 557,084	
Housing investment represents MHRC's share in social housing projects, which until October 1, 1998			
were administered by CMHC and subsequently have been administered by MHRC, under the Rural and			
Native Housing Program.			

On September 3, 1998, MHRC and CMHC executed a Declaration of Trust by which CMHC has transferred their ownership interest in cost-shared and 100% CMHC funded Public Housing projects to MHRC, as trustee. MHRC's Interest in these projects will be earned over the remainder of each project's CMHC subsidy commitment period, in amounts which will correspond to the annual amortization of the assets. No increase in housing investment has been recorded by MHRC.

9. Joint venture

- a) The Corporation contributed 124 acres of land, at appraised value, to a joint venture with Qualico Developments (Winnipeg) on July 21, 1993. The appraised value of the land at that time was \$2,220,000. On December 10, 1999 the joint venture was dissolved and the land was transferred to land for future dovelopment or rate,
- b) The Corporation contributed 179 acres of land, at appraised value, to a joint venture with Ladeo Company Limited on May 11, 1989. The appraised value of the land at that time, adjusted for subsequent sales, was \$2,786,707 (1999 - \$2,936,423) and is included in joint venture land in note 10. The joint venture activities include the servicing, development and sale of approximately 476 acres of land in the City of Winnipeg, Manitoba. In accordance with the terms of the agreement, the Corporation has provided loan guarantees for the purposes of the joint venture development in an amount not to exceed \$2,400,000 (note 27).

The following is a summary of the Corporation's pro rate share of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the Ladco Company Limited joint venture.

	2000	1990
Current Assets:		
Accounts receivable from land sales	\$ 659,405	\$_205.081
Long Term Assets;		
Development in progress	681,904	1,063,494
Refundable deposits	32,628	35,121
	_714,532	1,118,615
Total Assets	1,373,937	1,324,696
Current Liabilities:		
Bank Indebtedness of joint venture		309,789
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	26,770	_17,688
Total Liabilities	26,770	327,477
Net Asseta	\$1,347,167	\$ 997,219
Sales of land	\$1,109,790	\$ 487,962
Cost of land sales	_640,366	274,737
Gross margin	_469,424	_193,225
Expenses:		
Interest on bank indebtedness	7,057	30,468
General	50,356	85.981
Other	_60,859	18,393
Total expenses	118,072	114,842
Nel income for the year	\$ 361,362	\$ 76,383

10, Land

	2000	1999
Under development	\$ 187,210	\$ 197,920
Future development or sale	7,797,789	7,239,402
Leased to co-operatives	1,734,392	1,734,392
Joint ventures	_2,785,707	E,155,425
Land	\$12,505,099	\$14,327,139

11. Capital assets

Capital assets represent the costs incurred for the acquisition of computer hardware and software.

12. Deferred revenue

	2000	1999
Manitoba Housing Authority lenant prepaid rent	\$1,846.293	\$1.573.366
Other propeld land lease and subsidy contribution received in advance	_131,121	_144,739
Deferred revenue	\$1.977.414	\$1,718,105

13, Long-term debt

	2000	1999
Government of the Province of Maniloba:		
Advances, convertible to long-term advances, at prime interest rates	\$ 796,171	\$ 700,310
Long-term dv inces, at interest rates from 6.125% to 13.375% maturing at various dates to 2030 and requiring annual principal and interest payments		
of \$41,314,900 (1999 - \$41,737,666)	368,696,598	382,351,150
Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation:		
Long-term advances, at interest rates from 5.75% to 11.00% maturing at verious dates to 2030 and requiring annual principal and interest payments of \$15,467,245 (1999 - \$15,508,529)	198,920,187	202,146,267
Mortging a payable (as unned on property equilitions), at interest mits from 5.125% to 9.625% maturing it various dates to 2030 and requiring innull principal and interest payments of \$254,440 (1999 - \$254,440)	2,481,318	2,506,344
Long-lern) dobt	\$570,894,272	\$587 704 091

Principal repayments on the long-term debt are estimated as follows:

2001	\$ 8,414,019
2002	9,103,625
2003	9.849,750
2004	10.657,028
2005	11,530,469
Subsequent to 2005	521,339,381
	\$570 89 272

14, Deferred federal contributions

Pursuant to the Social Housing Agreement executed by MHRC and CMHC, CMHC will pay fixed annual contributions to MHRC for individual housing projects over the remainder of the CMHC subsidy commitment period. The Agreement took effect October 1, 1995 and has a funding expiration date of August 31, 2031. The Agreement provides that a specified amount of the annual federal contributions must be applied toward housing programs, which assist low income households, as defined in the Agreement. The portion of federal contributions that may be applied toward other housing programs is similarly specified. Unexpended federal contributions are carried forward by MHRC for future use, but such contributions must be fully used, in accordance with the Agreement, by the funding expiration date of August 31, 2031.

During 2000, restricted federal contributions received by MHRC exceeded amounts applied toward housing program expanditures by \$10,444,150 (1999 - \$6,349,611). These unexpanded contributions have been deferred and will be recognized as revenue in future years as the related expanditures are incurred.

15. Sinking fund

Under the provisions of The Housing and Renewal Corporation Act, MHRC is required to maintain a sinking fund on deposit with the Minister of Finance, where MHRC has funds available for that purpose. As at March 31, 2000, the Corporation determined that there were no funds available for the purpose of the sinking fund,

Commencing in the fiscal year ended March 31, 1994, MHRC no longer receives funds through the Department of Family Services and Housing for that purpose.

16. Grants from the Province of Manitoba

		2000	1999
	Department of Housing: MHRC operating programs	\$32,320,600	\$31,587,900
	Grants and subsidion	4,925,079	5,138,767
		37,245.699	36,726.667
	Grants recovered from the Department of Finance: Pensioner Tenant School Tax Assistance Program	730,217	733,267
	Grint ricovir d from the Department of Intergovirnmintal Affairs: Winniping Development Agreement, Housing Assistance for High Risk Groups Grints from the Province of Manitoba	861,000 \$ <u>38,8</u> 36,916	121,000 \$37,680,934
17.	Administrative services	2000	1999
	Administrative services provided by the Department of Housing were allocated as follows:		
	- Included in the Statement of Operations	\$2,980,300	\$2,201,100
	included in administration expenditure in Schedute B, Menitobn Housing Authority Housing Operations	1,985.800	1,713,800
	Sponter Managed Housing Oper tions	48,100	72,800
	 Included in private non-profit in Schedule D, Rental Subaidles 	81,000	115,900
	Included in ront supplement in Schedule D. Rental Subsidies	12,300	28,200
	included in CMHC units transferred in Schedule D, Rental Subsidies	768,600	<u> </u>
	Total Department of Family Services and Housing administrative services provided	5,876,100	4,131,600

Loss:	 paid to the Department of Housing by the Corporation from funds, recovered through federal/provincial cost shared program. 		673,300
	 paid to the Department of Family Services and Housing by the Corporation from funds received through the Social Housing Agreement 	_768,600	<u> </u>
Contribution	uted by the Department of Family Services using	\$5,107,500	\$3,458,300

18. Private Non-Profit (Post 1985)

The Corporation subsidizes the operating losses of private non-profit housing eorporations. The results of the operations of the private non-profit housing corporations are as follows:

	2000	1999
Revenue		
Rental revenue	\$_7,213,206	\$_7_110,062
Expenditure		
Administration	955,849	1,252,660
Property operating	4,833,375	4,779,415
Properly taxes	1,257,820	1,396,859
Amortization and Interest	13,141,910	13,201,193
	20,188,955	20,630,127
Operaling loss	12,975,749	13,513,465
Less; federal subsidies	9,485,661	9,787,814
Net subsidy	\$ 3 <u>,4</u> 90.088	\$ 3,745,851

19. Interest expense

	2000	1999
Interest expense	\$20,448,494	\$21,030,076

In addition to the interest expense above, there is also interest expense in the amount of \$30,439,332 (1999 - \$32,184,589) included in the emorization and interest figures in the Schedule of Housing Operations for MHRC Owned Properties, Schedule A and \$1,858,723 (1999 - \$1,939,189) included in the Schedule of Rental Subsidies, Schedule D for units transferred from CMHC under the Rural and Native Program.

20. Grants and subsidies

	2000	1999
Sheiter Allowance for Family Renters	\$ 980,054	\$1,094,184
Shelter Allowance for Elderly Renters	3,682,467	3,874,328
Elderly and Infirm Persons Housing	192,558	170,257
Pensioner Tenant School Tex Assistance	730,217	733.267
Residential Rehabilitation Assistance Program	1,521,920	
Winnipeg Development Agreement,		
Housing Assistance for High Risk Groups	861,000	_121,000
	\$7,968,236	\$5,993,034

21. Pension obligations

Employees of The Manitoba Housing Authority are eligible for pensions under the Manitoba Civil Service Superannuation Fund. This pension plan is a defined benefit plan, which requires The Manitoba Housing Authority to contribute an amount equal to the employees' contribution to the Supersinnuation Fund for

current services. Such payments are charged to operations as incurred and MHRC has no further liability associated with the annual cost of pension benefits earned,

Ponsion expense recorded for the year ended March 31, 2000 was \$391,246 (1999 - \$366,511).

22. Severance pay benefits

Effective April 1, 1998, the Corporation commenced recording the estimated liability for accumulated severance pay benefits for its employees. The amount of this estimated liability is determined using the method of culculation set by the Province of Manitoba.

Severance pay, at the employee's date of retirement, will be determined by multiplying the eligible employee's years of service (to a maximum of 22 or 15 years) by the employee's weekly selary at the date of retirement. Eligibility will require that the employee has achieved a minimum of nine years of service and that the employee is retiring from the Corporation.

The Province of Manitoba has accepted responsibility for the severance pay benefits accumulated to March 31, 1998 by the Corporation's employees. Accordingly, the Corporation recorded, effective April 1, 1998, a receivable of \$877,105 from the Province of Manitoba, which is an amount that is equal to the estimated Hability recorded for accumulated severance pay benefits at March 31, 1998.

This receivable from the Province of Manitoba has no terms of repayment and accordingly, the amount of this receivable will remain fixed at \$877,105.

23. Uncertainty due to the Year 2000 Issue

The Year 2000 issue arises because many computerized systems use two digits rether than four to identify a year. Date-sensitive systems may recognize the year 2000 as 1900 or some other date, resulting in errors when information using year 2000 dates is processed. In addition, similar problems may arise in some systems, which use certain dates in 1999 to represent something other than a date. Although the change in date has occurred, it is not possible to conclude that all aspects of the Year 2000 issue that may affect the entity, including those related to contours, suppliers, or other third parties, have been fully resolved.

24, Contingencies

The Corporation is involved in legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business, the outcome of which cannot be predicted at this time. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these cases will not materially affect the financial position of the Corporation. Any settlement will be recognized in the year the settlement occurs.

25, Risk Roservo Fund

Pur uant to the Social Housing Agreement dated September 3, 1998 between CMHC and MHRC, CMHC made a one-time payment of \$12,700,000 to MHRC in 1999. This amount was provided for the purpose of mitigating future open ting risks associated with MHRC's financial responsibility for housing programs transferred from CMHC pursuant to the Agreement. This amount has been recorded as a risk reserve fund and is increased by interest area of the roon and is reduced as the Corporation incurs expenses as a result of the Identified risks.

26. Commitments

As a result of the Social Housing Agreement dated September 3, 1996, MHRC is now fully responsible for the funding commitments of all Public Housing Projects in Munitoba. These commitments will expire on a staggered basis over the period ending 2031, concurrent with the Social Housing Agreement funding expiration date of August 31, 2031. An estimate of these commitments for each of the next five years is as follows:

2001	\$48,821,408
2002	48,534,904
2003	47,609,392
2004	46,542,890
2005	45,954,925

1000

27. Guarantees

The Corporation has guaranteed the repayment of mortgages and has issued letters of credit which guarantee the terms and conditions of land development agreements and construction contracts. The outstanding guarantees are as follows:

	2000	1999
Joint Venture Investment Guarantee (note 9)	\$2.400,000	\$2.400.000
Mobile Home Loan Guarantee Program	2,895,669	3,616,304
Rural Mortgage Lending Program	11,958	17,633
Other mortgage guarantees	<u>1,</u> 834 <u>,</u> 535	2,014,930
Total guarantees	\$7,142,162	\$8,048,867

A guarantee fee of 2 1/2% is charged for each mortgage under the Mobile Home Loan Guarantee Program. The assets of the Mobile Home Loan Guarantee Program as at March 31, 2000 nr \$720,847 (1999 - \$689,925) and are included in cash \$674,229 (1999 - \$643,307) (note 4) and in housing projects \$45,518 (1999 - \$45,818). The trust fund liability is included in accounts payable.

28. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures in the financial statements have been restated to conform with the presentation of the current year.

Direct-Managed Public Housing Portfolio

The Minitobe Housing Authority, (The MHA) acts as the property management agency for the directmanaged Public Housing Program. These housing projects are disigned to provide indicated and affordable housing for low-income seniors, families, and singles, and they are owned end capital funded by The Minitobe Housing and Renewal Corporition. Subsidies are provided through ongoing federal/provincial cost-shiring integements. Depending on the program under which each project was committed, subsidy costs equal to the difference between project operating costs and revenue based on rent-geared-to-incomic rintil rates may be shared on a 50 per cent federal / 50 per cent provincial basis or on 75 per cent federal / 25 per cint provincial basis. (For one program, this pre-1986 Section 95 Non-Prolit Housing Program, the subsidy is ditermined by mortgage interest rate write-down to 2 per cent for purposes of replayment.)

The direct-mininged public housing portfolio has been broken down by district, and housing categories are broken down by family (FAM.), elderly (ELD.), special purpose (SPEC.), and mortgage (MTG.) units

DISTRICT 1:		TOTAL			
WINNIPEG	FAM.	ELD.	SPEC.	MTG.	UNITS
1.1 Downtown	254	557	1		812
1.2 Central Park	282	423	3		708
1.3 St. James	480	309	0		789
1.4 Lord Selkirk	432	245	0		677
1.5 North End	458	394	0		852
1.6 Brooklands	705	0	0		705
1.7 Fort Garry	648	151	0		799
1.8 Fort Rouge	286	536	0		822
1.9 North East	769	0	0		769
1.10 St. Vital	559	191	0		750
TOTAL	4,873	2,806	4	0	7,683

DISTRICT 3: SELKIRK		TOTAL			
	FAM.	ELD,	SPEC,	MTG.	UNITS
<u>prodrA</u>	10	39)	49
Ashern	23	38			61
Balmoral		12			12
Beauselour	20	55			75
Birds Hill		8			8

District 3 continued on next page

DISTRICT 3:		TOTAL			
SELKIRK CONT'D	FAM.	ELD.	SPEC,	MTĠ.	UNITS
Çlandeboye				1	1
East Selkirk		12			12
Eriksdale	7	20		1	28
Fisher Branch	5	20		2	27
Fraserwood		12			12
Garson		12			12
Gimli	14	46		6	68
Grand Marais		8			8
Great Falls	1				1
Gunton				1	1
Hodgson		14			14
Inwood		10			10
Komarno		4			4
Lec du Bonnet	10	38			48
Moosehorn		22			22
Poplarfield		8			8
Powerview	7				7
Riverton	17	24		5	46
St. George		15			15
St. Laurent	28	20			48
Selkirk	237	139	1		377
Stonewall	10	28			38
Stony Mtn.		12			12
Teulon	4	18		2	24
Tyndall		12			12
Victoria Bch.		i i		1	1
Whitemouth		12		2	14
Wpg Beach		20			20
Total	393	680	1	21	1,095

DISTRICT 4;		TOTAL			
ALTONA	FAM,	ELD.	SPEC.	MTG.	UNITS
Altona	25	<u>18</u>			43
Dominion City	2	6			8
Emerson	1	18			17
Gretne	9	17			26
Grunthal		32	-		32
Hada hylle		4		11	5
lle des Chenes		12			12
La <u>Salie</u>		<u>6</u>			6
Leteller		4			4
Lorette	6	14			20
Middlebro	2_	4		1	7
Mitchell	5				6
Morden	43				43
Morna	17	28			45
New Bothwell				11	1
Niverville	10	15			25
Pinev		10		1	11
Plum Coulce		30			30
Richer		8			
Resenteld	2	_			2
St Adolphe	-	12			12
St Malo	4				4
St Pierre-Jolys	9				9
Ste. Agathe		10			10
Ste. Anne	4				4
South Junction	2	2		1	5
Sprague	4	12		2	18
Steinbach	47		1		48
Toistoi	1				1 1
Vassar	3	8		1	12
Vita	2	32			34
Winkler	55	12	1		68
Woodridge	1	10		1	12
Total	264	322	2	9	587

DISTRICT 6:		TOTAL			
PORTAGE	FAM.	ELD.	SPEC.	MTG.	UNITS
Carman	21	47			68
Cartwright	2	12			14
Clearwater		4			4
Fannystelle	9				9
Haywood		6			6
Manitou	10				10
Neepawa	19				19
Notre Dame	1	24			25
Oskville		10			10
Pilot Mound	6				6
Plumas		12			12
Portage la Pr.	169	133	1_		303
St. Claude	4	6			12
St Euslache		12			12
St Leon		2		1	3
Sidney	1				1
Somerset	7				7
Treherne	1	4			5
Westbourne		8			6
Total	250	282	1	1	534

DISTRICT 6: BRANDON		TOTAL.			
	FAM.	ELD.	SPEC.	MTG.	UNITS
Boissovain	7	25			32
Brandon	432	353	1		766
Brookdale		2			2
Carberry	12				12
Deloraine	7				7
Douglas	1			-	1
Elkhorn	2	18		2	22
Elphinstone		4			4

District 6 continued on next page

DISTRICT 6: BRANDON		TOTAL			
CONT'D	FAM.	ELD.	SPEC,	MTG.	
Erickson	4	6			10
Glenboro	5	14			19
Goodlands				1	1
Hamiota	6				6
Hartney	6				6
Kenton		8			8
Killarnev	12	15			27
Melita	6				8
Minlota	3				3
Minnedosa	13	55			66
Minto		4			4
Oaklake		20	_		20
Oakburn	3	4			7
Onanole	16	8			23
Reston		4			4
Rivers	15	12			27
Sandy Lake	1	12			13
Souris	7	60			67
Strathclair		12			12
Virden	19				19
Waskada		8			6
Total	578	642	1	3	1,224

DISTRICT 7: DAUPHIN		TOTAL			
	FAM.	ELD.	SPEC.	MTG.	UNITS
Alonsa		12		1	13
Dauphin	53	193	1		247
Eddystone		12			12
Ethelbert		20		1	21
Fork River				2	2
Gilbert Plains	6	18			24

District 7 continued on next page

DISTRICT 7: DAUPHIN CONT'D		TOTAL UNITS			
	FAM.	ELD.	SPEC.	MTG.	
Gienella	1	4			5
Grandview	11	18			29
Kelwood	2	8			10
Laurier	2	8			10
McCreary	3 1	12		2	17
Ochre River	2	12			14
Pina River		10			10
Riding Mtn.	1				1
Rorketon		8			6
Ste. Rose	9				9
Sifton		8			6
Winnipegosis	16	10	-	3	29
Total	106	353	1	9	469

DISTRICT 8: ROBLIN		MHA MANAGED					
	FAM,	ELD.	SPEC.	MTG.	UNITS		
Angusville		6			6		
Benito		30			30		
Binscarth	4	16		2	19		
Birch River	10	24			34		
Birtle	6	15			21		
Bowsman	1	9		3	13		
Foxwarren		6		-	e		
Inglis		10			10		
McAuley		2			:		
Minitônāš	7	18			25		
Roblin	30			1	3.		
Rossburn	3	14			17		
Russell	19	40			51		
St. Lazare	12	12			24		

District 8 continued on next page

DISTRICT 8: ROBLIN		MHA MA	NAGED		TOTAL
CONT'D	FAM.	ELD,	SPEC.	MTG.	
Swan River	78	103			181
Vista	1				1
Total	168	305	Ó	6	479

DISTRICT 9:		TOTAL			
THE PAS	FAM,	ELD.	SPEC.	MTG.	UNITS
Cranberry Ptg.	8		_		6
Flin Flon	70	36			106
Gillam	7				7
Leaf Rapids	153				153
Snow Lake		4			4
The Pas	172	66	1		239
Thompson	64		1		65
Total	474	106	2	0	582

DISTRICT 10:		TOTAL			
CHURCHILL	FAM.	ELD.	SPEC.	MTG.	UNITS
Churchill	329	10			339
Total	329	10	0	Ó	339

TOTAL	7,425	5,606	12	49	12,992
	7,460	0,000		40	12,002

APPENDIX "B"

Rent Supplement Units

The Rent Supplement Program is disigned to assist low- and modimate-incominating individently houreholds to obtain suitable housing in the private rental sector and in non-profit housing project. The provincial government has interval into agreements with owners/operators of private Kintal stock whereby the province ubsidizes the difference between the proved mark timital rate charged by the lindlord and the rent-geared-to-incoment rate pild by the qualifying tenant. The program is idministing by The Manitob. Houring Authority and subsidize costs are shared by the finderal and provincial governments on 50 per cent fideral / 80 per cent provincial basis for unit committed pre-1988 and on a 75 per cent federal / 25 per cent provincial basis for units committed post-1985.

DISTRICT 1: WINNIPEG	UNITS
All districts in Winnipeg	1,664
Total	1,664

DISTRICT 3: SELKIRK	UNITS
Inwood	7
Selkirk	10
Stonewall	9
Teulon	14
Woodlands	4
Total	44

DISTRICT 4: ALTONA	UNITS
Landmark	4
Morden	3
Rosenort	7
Ste Anne	21
\$teinbach	1
Total	36

DISTRICT 5: PORTAGE	UNITS
Carman	3
Fannystelle	2
Gladatone	2
Portage la Preirie	24
Swan Lake	2
Total	33

DISTRICT 8: BRANDON	UNITS
Brandon	84
Carberry	11
Deloraine	10
Miniota	7
Newdale	3
Souris	4
Total	119

Continued on following page

Rent Supplement Units, continued

DISTRICT 7: DAUPHIN	UNITS	
Dauphin	30	
Gilbert Plains	4	
Total	34	

DISTRICT 9: THE PAS	UNITS 13	
Flin Flon		
The Pas	35	
Thempsen	13	
Total	61	

DISTRICT 8: ROBLIN	UNITS	
Nit		
Total	0	

DISTRICT 10: CHURCHILL	UNITS	
NII		
Total	0	

TOTAL UNITS	1,991
-------------	-------

APPENDIX "C"

Provincially Administered Housing Portfolio

The Portfolio Administration Branch of Housing Services is responsible for a number of programs that were transferred from the federal government under the Social Housing Agreement, executed September 3, 1998. Some programs are targeted to provide housing assistance to clients/tinents in core need, while other programs are not targeted. The program descriptions and objectives can be summarized briefly, as follows:

Section(a) 26 and 27 Non-Profit Program:

Objective. To provide appropriate and economic rental housing accommodation for families and individuals of low income and for disadvantaged persons.

- This portion of the portfolio comprises housing projects developed between 1959 and 1978 and owned by non-profit organizations, and includes approximately 4,200 birds in nursing homes or personal care homes.
- These programs are not targeted to low-income households but are generally oriented to lower-end market rents.
- There is no ongoing federal subsidy associated with these projects.
- Projects are financed by CMHC (with loans at preferred interest rates for up to 50 years) and are owned by their non-profit sponsors/corporations.
- The department will administer the program and project operating agreements to ensure sponsors are achieving the principles and program objectives.

Section 95 (Pre-1986) Private Non-Profit Program:

Objective: To provide modest, affordable housing appropriate to the needs of low- and moderateincome families and individuals through public and private non-profit corporations,

- This portion of the portfolio includes housing projects developed between 1978 and 1986 and owned by non-profit organizations, and includes just over 900 nursing home beds.
- Projects are directly financed through CMHC or are financed through private lenders with mortgage insurance provided by CMHC.
- There is an ongoing federal subsidy obligation that generally takes the form of an interest rate write down (to 2 per cent), allowing projects to rent at the mid or lower end of market. There is some risk involved, in that if interest rates increase, the portion of the interest rate that is subsidized will increase.
- Only a portion of the portfolio is targeted to low-income households in need, so that not all unit subsidies are provided on a rent-to-income basis.
- The department will administer the program and project operating agreements to ensure sponsors are achieving the principles and program objectives.

Section 95 (Pre-1986) Co-Operative Housing Program:

Objective: To provide modest, affordable housing appropriate to the meds of low- and moderateincome families and individuals through non-profit housing co-operatives.

- This portion of the portfolio includes housing projects developed between 1981 and 1986 and owned by non-profit housing co-operatives.
- Projects are financed through private lenders with mortgage insurance provided through CMHC.

- There is an ongoing federal subsidy obligation that generally lakes the form of an interest rate write down (to 2 per cent), allowing project housing charges to be at the mid to lower end of market. There is some risk involved, in that if interest rates increase, the portion of the interest rate that is subsidized will increase.
- Only a portion of the portfolio is targeted to low-income households in need through the Rent Supplement program, so that limited unit sub-idles are provided on a rent-to-income basis.
- The department will administer the program and project operating agreements to ensure sponsors
 are achieving the principles and program objectives.

Section 98 (Pre-1986 and Post-1985) Urban Native Non-Profit Housing Program:

Objective: To provide modest, afford ble housing appropriate to the needs of low- and moderateincome native families and individuals through Urban Native non-profit corporations.

- The Urban Native Non-Profit Housing Program(s) provided mortgage financing to non-profit native
 organizations for the acquisition/d v lopment of rent-geared-to-income housing targeted to native
 households in communities with a population of 2,500 or greater. There are 12 native non-profit
 organizations with projects under these programs.
- This portion of the portfolio Includes roughly 910 units. Approximately 230 units were developed pre-1986 ind were funded unilaterally by CMHC (i.e., subsidy costs are not ahired by the province.)
- 679 units were developed post-1985 and subsidy costs are cost-shared on a 75 per cent/25 per cent basis by the federal and provincial governments respectively.
- The post-1985 portfolio also includes one special purpose Urban Native project with 16 units (Native Women's Transition Centre). The subsidy obligation for this project is an interest rate write down (to 2 per cent).
- The department will administer the program and project operating agreements to ensure sponsors are achieving the principles and program objectives.

Section 79 Rural and Native Housing (RNH) Program:

Objective: To assist native and non-native households in need in rural areas to access affordable, adequate, and suitable rental housing.

- The federal portion of the RNH program provides rent-gearsd-to-income accommodation targeted primarily to native households in communities with a population of less than 2,500. (The provincial RNH portfolio is target of to households in need, but it is not targeted to native households.)
- This portion of the portfolio includes roughly 1,900 units.
- Projects are jointly owned by the federal/provincial partnership, and subsidy costs are cost-shared 75 per cent/25 per cent by the federal and provincial governments respectively.
- · At the expiry of project operating agreements, ownership of the projects transfers to the province.
- The department will administer the program and project operating agreements to ensure sponsors are achieving the principles and program objectives.

Section 95 Index-Linked Mortgage (ILM) Co-Operative Housing Program:

Objective: To support the production and operation of cost-effective co-operative housing to provide security of tenure for moderate-income households who cannot afford homeownership.

- The ILM co-op program provides ongoing assistance to non-profit housing co-ops to maintain occupancy charges at of below market rents for similar rent I housing in the market area.
- The program operated from 1986 to 1995. There were 18 projects were developed under this
 program, compflying just under 800 units in total.
- The program was developed as a market-housing program with income targeting achieved through the provision of Rent Supplement subsidies for up to 50 per cent of the units in any project.

- Projects were financed using an index-linked montgage. Under the ILM, initial payments are sat lower than with a conventional equal payment montgage and are increased annually by a factor equal to the Consumer Price Index less 2 per cent. The federal assistance is increased annually by the same factor (i.e., CPI less 2 per cent))
- Rent Supplement assistance is provided under the Post-1985 Rent Supplement program. Occupants
 of Rent Supplement units pay rent-general-to-income. Subsidy costs are shared 75 per cent/25 per
 cent by the fectoral and provincial governments respectively.
- The department will administer the program and project operating agreements to ensure cooperatives are achieving the principles and program objectives.

Section 82 Public Housing Program: Sponsored Management:

Objective: To provide adequate publicly owned rental housing accommodation for individuals and families of low income within their financial capacities.

- Although projects are owned by the province, they are managed by sponsor groups or non-profit
 organizations that are usually associated with a church or service group (as opposed to the directmanaged portfolio that is owned by the province and managed by the MHA.) Projects are operated in
 accordance with the policies and procedures of Manitoba Housing.
- Housing projects were typically developed in the early 1970's through to 1978.
- Federal/provincial cost sharing arrangements are 50 per cent federal/50 per cent provincial. Assistance for these projects generally covers the difference between total project operating cests (including debt repayment), and total project revenues.
- Applicants must meet income, affordability, adequacy and suitability criteria, and rents are based on the rent-geared-to-income rental rate currently in effect.

Section 95 (Post 1985) Private Non-Profit Program:

Objective: To assist households in need to obtain affordable, adequate and suitable housing.

- Between 1985 and 1994, the federal/provincial partnership provided assistance to private non-profit
 corporations for the construction and operation of multiple-unit housing projects.
- Projects could include both market (non-targeted) units and units targeted to low-income households who meet income, affordability, adequacy and suitability criteria,
- Rents for the targeted units are based on the rent-geared-to-income rental rate currently in effect.

This table shows the distribution of units across the different program areas of the portfelie.

PROVINCIALLY ADMINISTERED HOUSING PORTFOLIO

PROGRAM TYPE	PROVINCIAL UNITS	FEDERAL UNITS		TOTALS
		FEDERAL UNILATERAL	NATIVE TARGETED	
Sponsor managed – owned by province but operated by non- profit sponsor groups	3,291			3,291
Non-Profit owned & operated – province cost shares subsidies on its +2,000 units	1,925	11,790		13,715
Co-operative programs including non-profit co-ops and ILM co-ops		2,127		2,127
Urban Native – owned and operated by non-profit urban native groups			910	910
TOTALS	5,216	13,917	910	20,043
		14,827		